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(Amounts expressed in HK$'million, unless specified)

(LB BETBEN - BRFIZHI)

Turnover

Profit for the year attributable to

ordinary equity holders of the Company

Total equity

Total assets

Total liabilities to total equity ratio (times)

Total interest-bearing debts to
total equity ratio (times)

Current ratio (times)

Trade and bills receivables
to turnover (days)

Inventories to turnover (days)
Net assets per share (HK cents)
Return on total assets (%)
Return on turnover (%)
Interest cover (times)

EBITDA

EBITDA on turnover (%)

Basic earnings per share (HK cents)

Dividends per share (HK cents)
Dividend yield (%)
Number of issued shares (million)

Number of employees:
Hong Kong and Macau
Taiwan
Mainland China
Indonesia

Total

e
ARREEREFEE
AR

g

RBLLE(2E)

L ETES
LERE(A)

FELERRA)
BREEFROEE)
REEEHRE%)
ERBOHRE%)
FSRELR(ZH)
BB TEREEATE

BB HER
BEmAIBLEEE%)

EXBRERCEEM)
BRRECEEA)
REE]RE %)
ERTRHHE(FE)
EEAH:
BEREM

Lt
8=

REIAE
Hie

2

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023

Notes 2023
Bz cg=zf
6,059 8,043 7,352 7,630 8,210
75 191 274 169 325
5,016 5,436 5,400 4,930 5378
6,947 8,978 8,740 8,312 8,579
0.4 0.7 0.6 0.7 0.6
0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3
3.0 2.1 2.2 2.0 2.0
48 51 58 44 42
92 13 119 101 97
364 394 391 357 389
1.1 2.1 3.1 2.0 38
1.2 24 37 22 4.0
1 3 7 15 5 12
2 47 671 903 821 693
78 83 12.3 10.8 8.4
3 54 13.8 19.8 12.2 235
20 18.0 15.0 10.0 30.0
4 14.8 12.3 8.4 8.0 10.2
1,382 1,382 1,382 1,382 1,382
605 583 555 47 769
- - - 7 9
9,049 11,844 11,981 1,11 11,879
130 62 - - .
9,784 12,489 12,536 11,589 12,657




Notes:

Financial and Operational Highlights B i EE £ KR E

Interest cover was calculated by dividing the profit before interest and tax
by the interest expenses.

EBITDA is the earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation
expenses.

Number of shares was on weighted average basis.

Dividend yield was calculated by dividing the dividends per share by the
closing market price per share as at the end of the respective reporting
period.

The financial results of the above refer to the results of the Group for each
financial year. And, the other figures used were the position of the Group as
at the end of the respective reporting period.
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Chairman’s Statement [EiREE

For the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group’s profit attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the Company was HK$75 million, a drop
of 60.7% compared with HK$191 million reported for 2022. Revenue
decreased by 24.7% and gross profit margin fell to 25.9% from last
year’'s 29.0%. The Board has recommended a final dividend of HK10.0
cents per share.

In the year, the textile business faced serious challenges. The Russia-
Ukraine war caused global inflation and disrupted consumer sentiment
internationally. In the second half of 2022, substantial retailers needed
to destock inventories instead of procuring new products. The Group
experienced immense operating pressure mainly due to rising costs and
a slowdown in order demand.

China’s consumer market was also impacted by stringent pandemic
control measures throughout the year. Many China cities adopted
strict lockdown policies, resulting many stores of the Group had to
close or shorten the business time. In the year, the Group had actively
consolidated its retail network to enhance operational efficiency.

Looking forward to 2023, the global business environment remains
uncertain. In view of high inflation and interest rate level, global
economic recovery is expected to be slow. On the positive front, with
the relaxation of COVID-19 related pandemic restrictions in many
countries, worldwide consumer confidence is resuming. The reopening
of borders in China is also expected to drive international economic
growth.

The Group has decided to set up another production base in Southeast
Asia. The new production facilities will enhance the Group’s business
flexibility against geopolitical risks and promote operating efficiency.
The Group is actively investigating such expansion opportunity in
Vietnam and hope the new investment can be fulfilled within the next
financial year.

The coming year is full of both opportunities and challenges. The Group
remains committed to overcome the ongoing difficulties to optimize
business performance. On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank
our shareholders, business partners and bankers for their continuous
support. | would also like to thank our colleagues for their devotedness
and hard working.

Poon Bun Chak
Executive Chairman
Hong Kong, 16 June 2023
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis B2 8 2 il R 247

REVIEW OF BUSINESS AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

For this fiscal year ended 31 March 2023, the Group's total revenue
decreased by 24.7% to HK$6,059 million (2022: HK$8,043 million). Profit
for the year attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the Company
amounted to HK$75 million (2022: HK$191 million), a drop of 60.7%.
The Group's gross profit margin was 25.9% (2022: 29.0%), a decrease of
3.1 percentage points from last year.

The Board has recommended a final dividend of HK10.0 cents (2022:
HK10.0 cents). Including the interim dividend of HK10.0 cents (2022:
HK8.0 cents), total dividend per ordinary share for the year would be
HK20.0 cents (2022: HK18.0 cents), an increase of 11.1% from last year.

Textile business

Turnover of the textile business decreased by 22.5% to HK$4,297
million (2022: HK$5,544 million). The amount represented 70.9% (2022:
68.9%) of the Group’s total revenue. Though the impact of COVID-19
pandemic tended to end, raising interest rates combating high inflation
had a negative impact on the sputtering economy, resulting in stunting
market demand of the retailers and curbing consumer spending.
With sluggish market demand and weak customer sentiment, the
sale and gross profit margin of the textile business decreased. The
Group continued focusing on cost reduction to enhance operating
profitability. In the year, revenue decreased by 22.5% and gross profit
margin decreased by 3.2 percentage points. The performance and the
key financial ratios of the business were as follows:

(Amounts expressed in HK$'million, unless specified)

(LB BEETBEN - BRFZHI)

¥XBREERARRER
BEZZ-_=F=ZA=+—HLFXUBEE  ~&
Bz AW ARD24.7EE R EBE6,059FET(Z
T F  B¥S03EER) c AAFEBREM
BEEGEAEE AN ABESEEL(ZE==
BEI1MEHET)  BA60.7% c NEBZEFRE
25.9% (ZFZZF :29.0%) » BREFEMT 3.1
EEHE -

EEERBRERBREEREBRBERE10.04L(=
TTF BE1001) - ERTHREEREE

BRABE10.0M (=== F : B¥8.ol)  SZBR
BEZFHAERBE20.0L(ZZ=ZF : #B%18.0

i) - BREFEFH11.1% ©

R

RIS B R 22.5% EEE4,297TH B T (=
T_F B¥SSMAEER) o BB AKREEA
EEFHZT709% (ZFE="F :68.9%) ° #2019
FRBRRSHARITHFEBRER - EME LS
NeRRSESNECEENEETE  RTEFNT
S ERBEBRIMNFEEE S - EHHEERERRHE
BEBHERINERT  HEEBWRARERET
B o AR EMEEE T ARG LURFAKEFIE o F
A WARA22.5% » MEFETERI2EEHDEH -
MEBZRERTEMHELRRIINT ¢

Net sales HEFHE 4,297 5,544 4,644 4919 4,759
Gross profit margin (%) EFE(%) 18.1 213 23.8 232 18.3
Operating profit (note 1) EERBEET) m 564 567 540 354
EBITDA (note 1) BB ERESERFE L) 408 790 77 770 526
Return on total assets (%) (note 2) BEEWRE(%)(Hi2) 3.0 7.5 6.1 6.9 42
Return on sales (%) (note 2) HERRE%) (H72) 43 10.1 9.2 8.9 5.9
Return on equity (%) (note 2) RWEE(%) (M72) 39 11.4 9.1 10.8 6.8
Capital expenditure ERMRH 246 251 126 76 160
Notes: (1) Exclude interest income, rental income, finance cost, compensation Mt : (1) T EIFZFEKA » KA ~ BIFEEH - X

for the loss of inventories due to a fire accident and loss of
inventories due to a fire accident.
(2) Exclude rental income.

EfFIE% -
(2) TEEFEEERA -

BAkELEFRAT —ZT-=F#
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REVIEW OF BUSINESS AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT
(continued)

Retail and distribution business

Sales of the business amounted to HK$1,761 million (2022: HK$2,496
million). The amount was 29.1% (2022: 31.0%) of the Group’s total
turnover. The gross profit margin of retail and distribution business was
44.9%, a slight decrease from last year’s 45.3%. For the mainland China
market, the Group continued to reduce its retail network to control the
operating cost. During the year, the Group net reduced 267 self-opened
shops in the mainland China, representing 26.9% of the self-opened
shops in this market. Meanwhile, the Group shifted to expand its online
sales, consignment sales and franchising business. For the Hong Kong
market, as the social distancing measures were ceased and cross-border
travels resumed at the end of the year, the Group's retail operations in
Hong Kong has improved significantly. The turnover and gross profit
margin of retail operation in Hong Kong increased by 14.0% and
4.7%, respectively, during the year compared with that of last year.
The performance and the key financial ratios of the business were as
follows:

(a)

the business performance and the key financial ratios were as

follows:

EROERARER®)

SERDHER
IEBEEREABE1,7EET(ZEF . B
#¥2,496HE ) WEBAREEMBE T 229.1%

ZEF 131.0%) c TERDHEBNEFES
44.9% - Lk ZFE 245 3% MR - PEAMTHISA
| FEEEERRTEREUERSERE - KE
BERNADE R FEMEIRALE  hEmER
EEH26.9% © S > AEEEBERER LHE
RERBFITCEER - BBETIEHE  BEFRLER
IEEEIEEBUE R BIBIRIERE - AEBERBNTE
EMARENE  BENTEEBEEEREMNEHEE
FEBLED B EF14.0%R4.7% o WEK 2RI
REBBHLEREBIRNT :

(@) EBRBREIBUBLLRBIMT

(Amounts expressed in HK$'million, unless specified) 2021 2020
(LBEEETAEN  BREFIFHI)

Net sales HEFH 1,761 2,496 2,705 2,709 3,448
Gross profit margin (%) EFIE(%) 44.9 453 44.1 475 50.1
Sales growth of comparable shops A tL/ERSEER R LR (%) (H15E1)

(%) (note 1) (12.7) (4.8) (8.4) (17.1) (12.8)
Operating profit/(loss) (note 2) 2ERB/ (B8 (HA2) (267) (289) (199) (316) (110
EBITDA (note 2) BB MEREBHAFIBE2) (126) (26) 108 3 (24)
Return on total assets (%) (note 3) ~ BBEWRR(%)(H:#3) (12.8) (10.4) (6.9) (11.1) (4.3)
Return on sales (%) (note 3) EEWEE (%) (H1:73) (15.4) (10.9) (6.8) (10.6) (2.9)
Return on equity (%) (note 3) R (%) (H33) (226.0) (73.4) (29.6) (53.4) (88)
Capital expenditure BAMTH 18 49 57 146 76

Notes: (1) Comparable shops include shops with full year operation BaF . (1) WHEHERZERAN—FHGEE
during the year and the preceding year. FEEBREH
(2) Exclude interest income, rental income and finance cost. 2) TEEFEKA  HEUWARYKE
ﬁ o
(3) Exclude rental income. (3) T EEFEHEZHKA -
(b)  the analysis of turnover by major brand was as follows: (b) REEREHEEINWNOT :
(HK$'million)
(B EET)
Baleno HEH 1,71 2,380 2,525 2,484 3,073
Others Hith 50 116 180 225 375
Total CEH 1,761 2,496 2,705 2,709 3,448

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023
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REVIEW OF BUSINESS AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

(continued)

Retail and distribution business (continued)

(0

Mainland China

the development in different markets was as follows:

(0

EKOERARER#E)

ZERDHER(H)

EHISRRERMT

HE AR

Net sales (HK$'million)
Increase/(decrease) in net sales (%)
Retail floor area (sq. ft.)*

Number of sales associates

Number of outlets™

Hong Kong

WERE(EREET) 1,105 1,936 2,184 2,085 2,767

BEFE LM (D)%) #3) (1) 5 (25) (19)

TEEEmE(FLR) 1,064,905 1,554,031 1,867,355 1,690,117 1,626,047

EESEE (= 2,895 3,319 3,919 3,446 4,182

FImEAE 1,687 1,666 2,026 1,838 2,183
B8

Net sales (HK$'million)
Increase/(decrease) in net sales (%)
Retail floor area (sq. ft.)*

Number of sales associates

Number of outlets™

Indonesia

HERREREET) 629
HEFE2BM (D)%) 14
TEREEB(FLR) 93,274
SEEHA 504
Fm#E 85

552

6
91,597
407
85

521
(17)
96,516
377

88

624 681
(8) 18
90,281 87,752
288 571
83 78

e

Net sales (HK$'million) HEFHEYEET) 27 8 - - -
Increase in net sales (%) HEFHE BN %) 238 NATER - - -
Retail floor area (sq. ft.)* SEEERB(FIR) 23,636 11,679 - - -
Number of sales associates** EXEYR 110 62 - - -
Number of outlets'* PImE A 8 4 - - -
As at the end of the reporting period REEERAR
# For self-managed stores # HE&)E
s Including self-managed stores, consignment stores and franchise s EIFEERE - BERFTEEE
stores

RBAEREARRLR

—EC=FR
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REVIEW OF BUSINESS AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT
(continued)

Income tax expense

Income tax expenses increased by HK$1 million to HK$13 million (2022:
HK$12 million).

Share of profit of an associate

Share of profit of an associate accounted for using equity method was
HK$28.8 million for the year ended 31 March 2022, which was mainly
contributed by the gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment.
There was no share of profit of an associate for the year ended 31
March 2023.

FINANCIAL CONDITION

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group continued to maintain a sound financial position. The
current ratio, the total bank borrowings and the gearing ratio as at the
year end were 3.0, HK$432 million and -0.3 (2022: 2.1, HK$1,308 million
and -0.2) respectively. Bank borrowings decreased during the period as
the Group repaid its borrowings with cash generated from operating
activities to alleviate the surge in interest cost due to interest rate hike.
The gearing ratio refers to the ratio of the total interest-bearing debts,
net of cash and cash equivalents, to the total equity.

During the year, the interest cover, the trade and bills receivables to
turnover and the inventories to turnover were 3 times, 48 days and
92 days (2022: 7 times, 51 days and 113 days) respectively. The Group
mainly satisfied its funding requirements with cash inflow from its
operating activities and bank borrowings. At the year end, the cash
and cash equivalents, the equity attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the Company and the unutilized banking facilities were HK$1,927
million, HK$5,026 million and HK$6,036 million (2022: HK$2,364 million,
HK$5,437 million and HK$5,530 million), respectively.

Capital expenditure

The capital expenditure incurred by the Group during the year was
HK$264 million (2022: HK$300 million). The capital expenditure incurred
by the textile and garment business for the year was HK$246 million
(2022: HK$251 million), of which HK$143 million (2022: HK$115 million)
was for the addition of plant and machinery for the dyeing, knitting
and garment factories and HK$103 million (2022: HK$136 million) was
for “Coal to Gas” conversion project. For the retail and distribution
business, our capital expenditure incurred for the year amounted to
HK$18 million (2022: HK$49 million) was mainly for the addition of
leasehold improvements of the retail outlets.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023
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FINANCIAL CONDITION (continued)

Pledge of assets

No significant assets were pledged as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March
2022.

Contingent liabilities
Details of the contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March
2022 have been set out in note 32 to the financial statements.

Foreign exchange and interest rate risks

The Group continued to adopt a strict and prudent policy in managing
its interest rate and currency exchange risks. The major interest bearing
bank borrowings of the Group were HKD, USD and RMB fixed or
floating rate borrowings with maturity due within one year (2022:
within one year). At the year end, the cash and cash equivalents, debt
instruments at amortised cost and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss were mainly denominated in HKD, RMB and USD. The
cash and cash equivalents were placed as fixed deposits with well
established financial institutions at fixed interest rate with maturity due
within one year (2022: within one year). And, the debt instruments at
amortised cost and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
were mainly fixed interest rate investments with maturity due within
two years or at perpetuity (2022: within three years or at perpetuity).
Federal Reserve of the United States sharply tightened its monetary
policy to combat inflation during the year, the USD and HKD interest
rates rose drastically. To reduce the borrowing cost, the Group repaid
its borrowings substantially during the year. The Group will continue
to monitor the interest rate risk and arrange appropriate financial
instruments to reduce its risk whenever appropriate.

During the year, the major assets, liabilities, revenue, expenses and
procurements of the Group were denominated in HKD, USD, RMB and
YEN (2022: HKD, USD, RMB and YEN) and the Group had arranged
foreign exchange forward contracts to reduce its currency exchange
risk.

HUMAN RESOURCES

At the year end, the Group had about 9,784 (2022: 12,489) employees
in the Greater China and Indonesia. The remuneration of the employees
was largely based on industry practice and the performance of
individual employee.

B REAR R ()

EERA
RIE-=F=A=+—HRZZEZ-F=A=1+—
B WEEXEECHRMA -

REEE
RIE-=F=A=+—HRZZEZ-F=A=1+—
BB & EHME BRI HRERMEI2A -

BE 5 R R R A
FEBESBREREERREEAT REERER -
FEBIEMSRTERBESIIENET £
RARBER  YR—FR(ZEZ-F —FR)F
B RER BERREZEY  ROBHERAINE
BIARBRANAEFABSNEREETERBT
ARBRER - BERBITESKDHENERFERD
TREBFE-FR(CE2F  —FR)EBNERE
FEREHER - ZCHERFNEBTAREARE
SFABENEREEIEDEESRRE  HMAR
MERRKE(ZEZZF  ZFRHKE) - ZEE
FRERFASBWEERBERUANEER - BltEx
RBTFIRZE LT - BREDEERSE - REBRNE
ABREABOER - NEESEEERFREE - 3
REER 2 PER 5 T A BURR 2k -

RAFR - AEETEEE - BfF - B - HER
BEAEBL - ZX ARBRET(ZZEZZF 18
T ERT - ARBRER)  AEBECRHEHRINE
BRLUBEEERER -

ADER

RAEFER  REBENEREEB7A(ZE=Z
12,489 N ) RAFERIE - ETHFHMEEETER
WITEZEREETEAZRR -

BAkELEFRAT —ZT-=F#



Management’s Discussion and Analysis B2 8 2 i il 2 547

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to promoting the long term sustainability of
the environment and communities in which it operates. The Group
has established environmental management system and energy
management system in the textile manufacturing operations in
accordance with international standards ISO 14001:2015 and ISO
50001:2018 respectively. The environmental management system
is reviewed from time to time in order to reduce risks related to
environmental issues. While the energy management system will enable
the Group to achieve continually improvement of energy performance,
and therefore reduce energy cost and greenhouse gas emissions in long
term.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group was in compliance
with the applicable environmental protection laws and regulations in
connection with waste water, greenhouse gas emission, as well as solid
waste generated from its textile manufacturing operations.

Relevant details of the Group’s environmental policies and performance
will be reported in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report of
the Company to be published on the websites of the Company and The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

COMPLIANCE WITH THE APPLICABLE LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group has ensured and continues to ensure full compliance with
the applicable laws and regulations that have significant impact on its
operations, including but not limited to laws and regulations in relation
to environmental protection, product safety and liabilities, customer
rights protection, employment and occupational safety.

The management will monitor the impact for any changes in the

relevant laws and regulations from time to time and seek external
advice if considered necessary.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group has been active in
participating in charitable donation, caring for the needy people and
supporting and sponsoring educational and environmental protection
activities. In addition, we also encourage our employees, customers and
business partners to partake in the aforesaid activities with a view to
developing a better future for our community.

During the year, some of the activities/organisations the Group
participated in/donated or sponsored to were:

(1

Educational Fund in Dongguan City of Guangdong Province;

(2)  Sponsorship for Dongguan Dragon Boat Competition;

(3)  Sponsorship for university students in poverty;

(4) The Community Chest of Hong Kong “Love Teeth Day”;

(5) The Community Chest of Hong Kong “Green Low Carbon Day"”;
(6) Evangelical Lutheran Church Social Service - Hong Kong;

(7)  St. James’ Settlement;

(8) The Hong Kong Council of Social Service “Caring Company”;
(9) Hong Kong Red Cross “Red Twinkle Star Campaign 2022"; and
(10) WWF-Hong Kong.

The Group believes that the development of a better future for our
community relies on the participation of people, corporations and the
government. Therefore, we will continue to invest resources in all major
social, educational and environmental protection activities to strive for
a better future for our community.

OUTLOOK

Looking forward to 2023, the global business environment remains
uncertain. In view of high inflation and interest rate level, global
economic recovery is expected to be slow. On the positive front, with
the relaxation of COVID-19 related pandemic restrictions in many
countries, worldwide consumer confidence is resuming. The reopening
of borders in China is also expected to drive international economic
growth.

The Group has decided to set up another production base in Southeast
Asia. The new production facilities will enhance the Group’s business
flexibility against geopolitical risks and promote operating efficiency.
The Group is actively investigating such expansion opportunity in
Vietnam and hope the new investment can be fulfilled within the next
financial year.
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Report of the Directors EE & &

The board of directors (the “Board”) has pleasure in presenting the
report and the audited financial statements of Texwinca Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group’s principal activities during the year consisted of the
production, dyeing and sale of knitted fabric, yarn and garments; the
retailing and distribution of casual apparel and accessories and the
provision of franchise services. There were no significant changes in the
nature of the Group's principal activities during the year.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Further discussion and review on the business activities of the Group as
required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) of Hong
Kong, including a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group; material events that have occurred since the end
of the financial year; an indication of likely future development in
the Group’s business; an analysis of the Group’s performance during
the year using financial key performance indicators; a discussion on
compliance with relevant laws and regulations; and a description of the
Group’s environmental policies and performance and corporate social
responsibility are contained in the preceding Chairman’s Statement and
Management’s Discussion and Analysis set out on page 6 and pages 7 to
13, respectively, of this Annual Report. Those discussions form part of
this Report of the Directors.

In addition, details of the Group’s financial risk management are
disclosed in note 37 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 March 2023 and the Group’s
financial position at that date are set out in the financial statements on
pages 49 to 52.

The Board has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) in
order to allow shareholders of the Group to participate in the Group's
profits whilst retain adequate reserves for the Group’s future growth.
The Group intends to make semiannual distributions which will
depend upon the anticipated consolidated annual profits of the Group,
having taken into consideration certain criteria set out in the Dividend
Policy, including the Group’s financial performance, retained profits,
distributable reserves, expected working capital requirements, capital
expenditure requirements, future expansion plans and any other factors
which the Board deems relevant.

An interim dividend of HK10.0 cents per ordinary share was paid on 6
January 2023. The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend
of HK10.0 cents per ordinary share in respect of the year to shareholders
on the Register of Members on 6 September 2023.
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION B ERBE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non- THRAKAEERBEIEMBEEAG2LERS
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, & - SEHFIERERHBE > IiNEESEXITE
as extracted from the audited financial statements and restated/ RERKREEES|EHHF o IWREL TiERCHEX
reclassified as appropriate, is set out below. This summary does not BB R IS °

form part of the audited financial statements.

Results HE

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1-BLEE
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

—EC=f C—E--E C—E--EFE —ECEE —ZE-hE
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BEFr  BEFT  BETR BEFTT BEFT

REVENUE WA 6,058,755 8,043,172 7,351,573 7,630,306 8,210,053
PROFIT BEFORE TAX FRELARF] 76,168 198,518 419,692 270,976 397,753
Income tax expense 18 (13,067) (11,809) (145,733) (101,922) (77,336)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REE BRI 63,101 186,709 273,959 169,054 320,417
Attributable to: 5B
Ordinary equity holders of the Company 7N\ BB AR & 75,149 191,064 274,213 169,054 325,246
Non-controlling interests e R R (12,048) (4,355) (254) - (4,829)

63,101 186,709 273,959 169,054 320,417

Assets, Liabilities and Non-Controlling Interests EE - AEEEERESR

Year ended 31 March
BE=B=T-HILEE
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

—g-= g —E--F CZE-EE —E-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000
BlFr  EBEFr  BEFn BETr  BETr

TOTAL ASSETS mEE 6,946,622  8977,748 8740394 8312332 8,578,956
TOTAL LIABILITIES #aE (1,931,059)  (3,542,229) (3,340,641) (3,382,119)  (3,201,402)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS FEERER 10,248 1,855 251 - -

5025811 5437374 5,400,004 4,930,213 5,377,554

BAESEERAT —T-=5% G
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES AND CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment, investment
properties and construction in progress of the Group during the
year are set out in notes 12, 13 and 15 to the financial statements,
respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

There was no movement in the Company’s share capital during the
year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED SECURITIES
OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 38 to the financial statements and in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2023, the Company’s reserves available for distribution
and/or distribution in specie amounted to HK$1,550,063,000. In
addition, the Company’s share premium account and capital redemption
reserve, in the total amount of HK$705,060,000, may be distributed in
the form of fully paid bonus shares.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totaling
HK$456,000 (2022: HK$521,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for approximately 26% of the total sales for the year.
Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 31% of the total purchases for the year.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial
interest in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The bye-laws of the Company provides that each Director or other
officer of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the
assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he or she
may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his or
her office or otherwise in relation thereto. In addition, the Company
has maintained appropriate directors and officers liability insurance in
respect of relevant legal actions against the Directors.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive directors:

Poon Bun Chak (Executive Chairman)
Ting Kit Chung (Chief Executive Officer)
Poon Ho Tak

Independent non-executive directors:
Au Son Yiu (Note 1)

Cheng Shu Wing

Law Brian Chung Nin

Ho Lai Hong (Note 2)

Notes:

1. Mr. Au Son Yiu retired as an independent non-executive director with
effect from the conclusion of the annual general meeting held on 31
August 2022.

2. Mr. Ho Lai Hong was appointed as an independent non-executive director

with effect from 31 August 2022.

Mr. Ho Lai Hong was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company with effect from 31 August 2022. In accordance
with clause 86(2) of the Company’s bye-laws, Mr. Ho shall hold office
until the first annual general meeting after his appointment and, being
eligible, offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

Except Mr. Ho, all the existing directors will retire and, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting in accordance with Clause 87(1) of the Company’s bye-laws.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from
Mr. Cheng Shu Wing, Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin and Mr. Ho Lai Hong,
and still considers them to be independent as at the date of this report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The service contracts entered into between the Company and each
of the executive directors as listed above may be terminated by
either party by giving not less than three months’ written notice or
compensation in lieu.

Save as disclosed above, no director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Company’s board
of directors with reference to directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 34 to the financial statements, no director
nor a connected entity of a director had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance to the business of the Group to which the Company, or any
of the Company’s subsidiaries was a party during the year.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Executive directors

Mr. Poon Bun Chak, aged 74, is an Executive Director and the Executive
Chairman of the Company and responsible for overseeing the planning
and development of the Group. He founded the Group in 1975. He has
more than 50 years’ experience in the textile field. He is the father of
Mr. Poon Ho Tak, an Executive Director of the Company and the father-
in-law of Mr. Wu Chi Hang, a senior management of the Group.

Mr. Ting Kit Chung, aged 67, is an Executive Director and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company. He is responsible for the general
administration and financial management of the Group. He joined the
Group in 1991. He holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from The University
of Hong Kong and has more than 10 years’ banking experience.

Mr. Poon Ho Tak, aged 46, is an Executive Director of the Company
and responsible for overseeing the overall general management of the
textile business. After his studies at The University of New South Wales,
Australia, he joined the Group as a management trainee in 2003 and
was appointed as an executive director of the Company in October
2017. He is a son of Mr. Poon Bun Chak, the Executive Chairman of
the Company and a brother-in-law of Mr. Wu Chi Hang, a senior
management of the Group.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (continued)

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Cheng Shu Wing, aged 73, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in July 1992. He is a director
of Techluxe Investments Limited. He holds a Bachelor of Business
Administration degree from The Chinese University of Hong Kong
and has more than 30 years’ experience in the banking and securities
industries in Hong Kong.

Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin, aged 65, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in April 2011. He has worked
for several major international accounting and financial institutions.
Besides, he possesses extensive experience in auditing, corporate finance
and private equity. Mr. Law graduated from University of Toronto in
1980 with a degree in Bachelor of Commerce. He has been a member of
the Chartered Professional Accountants of Ontario, Canada since 1983.

Mr. Ho Lai Hong, aged 65, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in August 2022. He has over
30 years of corporate banking, corporate finance and management
experiences with Mizuho Bank Ltd. Prior to his retirement from Mizuho
Bank Ltd. in March 2018, he was the general manager/alternate chief
executive of Mizuho Bank Ltd., Hong Kong Branch. In addition, he
was an independent non-executive director of Foshan Water and
Environmental Protection Co., Ltd and Leo Paper Group (Hong Kong)
Limited. He holds a Master of Business Administration Degree from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is also a fellow member of
The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute, a fellow member of
the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute and a fellow and
council member of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Ho is also
an independent non-executive director of Yue Yuen Industrial (Holdings)
Limited (stock code: 551) and KRP Development Holdings Limited (stock
code: 2421), both companies listed on the Stock Exchange.

Senior management

Mr. Chan Chi Hon, aged 60, is the Group’s Financial Controller and
Company Secretary. He joined the Group in 1997. Mr. Chan holds
a Master’s degree in commerce from The University of New South
Wales, Australia and is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a certified practising accountant of the
CPA Australia. He has more than 35 years’ experience in auditing and
accounting.

Mr. Ng Mo Ping, aged 57, is the director and General Manager of a
major subsidiary of the Group’s textile business. He joined the Group in
1988 and has more than 35 years’ experience in the textile industry.

Mr. Wu Chi Hang, aged 39, is a director of the Group's retail operations.
He joined the Group in 2013. Mr. Wu holds a Master of Science in
Engineering Business Management from University of Warwick in the
United Kingdom. He has more than 15 years’ experience in apparel
retailing and textile field. He is a son-in-law of Mr. Poon Bun Chak, the
Executive Chairman of the Company and a brother-in-law of Mr. Poon
Ho Tak, the Executive Director of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2023, the interests and short positions of the directors
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) set out Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), were as
follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

Name of directors

Capacity

Executive directors:

HITEE
Poon Bun Chak Founder of a family trust
EWIE RIRfEFEZAIHA
Ting Kit Chung Beneficial owner
THEE BRER
Notes:
1. Mr. Poon Bun Chak is a founder of a family trust and is deemed to be

interested in 698,830,104 Shares held under the family trust. For details,
please refer to the “Substantial shareholders’ and other person’s interests
in shares and underlying shares” under the Report of the Directors.

2. The issued share capital of the Company is 1,381,696,104 shares as at 31
March 2023.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2023, none of the directors had
registered an interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares
of the Company or any of its associated corporations that was required
to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.
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Percentage of
the Company's
issued share
capital

(Note 2)

EZ 2 F)
BRITRE
BAR

(Bfaz2)

Number of
ordinary
I ETE

1 698,830,104 50.58

6,100,000 0.44
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in the Company granted to any directors
or their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such rights in any
other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" AND OTHER PERSON’S
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2023, the following interests of 5% or more of the issued
share capital of the Company were recorded in the register of interests
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

Capacity

Trustee

ZEA

UBS Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited

EECBEREN
REREABE  BREAESIHEE ANREBR
AR ARG T 2 R TR AN 2 0 6 BR 4 T 0
R MRS BRITEL SR A DR REEAM
BEARGRSREARY  HSEBTREME M
ARG IR -

FERRREMATRRG R EERGE
=
RIZEZ=F=A=+—8 " UTHEEAXQTEEIT
BAS% o  CRB(ESRPERGNE
336N ELEAA D A BRFVESELMA :

Percentage of

Poon’s Holdings Limited
BERIEZERBRAA
Farrow Star Limited
Pandanus Associates Inc.
Pandanus Partners L.P.
FIL Limited

Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.

Fidelity Funds

L — Long position
P - Lending pool

Through controlled corporation
EIEHEE

Directly owned

EEER

Through controlled corporations
ERESEE

Through controlled corporations
EREREE

Through controlled corporations
EREEEE

Approved lending agent
ROERHAEA

Beneficial owner

BRER

Number of the Company’s
ordinary shares issued share
Notes held capital
(Note 3)
1EA AT
B BEITRAE
EZEBRBE BO®E
(BfaE3)
1 698,830,104 (L) 50.58
1 698,830,104 (L) 50.58
1 698,830,104 (L) 50.58
2 138,224,000 (L) 10.00
2 138,224,000 (L) 10.00
2 138,224,000 (L) 10.00
84,469,283 (L) 6.11
84,469,283 (P) 6.11
83,640,000 (L) 6.05
L—1FE&
P—EIEHBIR T
EAEREFRAT —ZT-=FRH °
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" AND OTHER PERSON'S
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

(continued)

Notes:

1. UBS Trustees (B.V.1.) Limited, as a trustee of a family trust founded by Mr.
Poon Bun Chak, holds the entire issued share capital of Poon’s Holdings
Limited through its nominee, UBS Nominees Limited. Poon’s Holdings
Limited holds the entire issued share capital of Farrow Star Limited. Farrow
Star Limited in turn holds 698,830,104 shares of the Company. Therefore,
each of Mr. Poon Bun Chak, UBS Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited, Poon’s Holdings
Limited and Farrow Star Limited is deemed to be interested in 698,830,104
Shares held by Farrow Star Limited.

2. Pandanus Associates Inc. has the entire control of Pandanus Partners
L.P. which in turn owns 38.71% in FIL Limited. FIL Limited is deemed to
be interested in 138,224,000 shares of the Company through a series of
subsidiaries. Therefore, each of Pandanus Associates Inc., Pandanus Partners
L.P. and FIL Limited is deemed to be interested in 138,224,000 shares of the
Company.

3. The issued share capital of the Company is 1,381,696,104 shares as at 31
March 2023.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2023, no person, other than
the directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in the section
“Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and underlying shares”
above, had registered an interest and short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company that was required to be recorded
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed the continuing connected transactions set out below, disclosed
in compliance with the requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules, and have confirmed that these continuing connected transactions
were entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(ii)  on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the
Group than terms available to or from independent third parties;
and

(iii)  in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on

terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Ernst & Young, the Company’s independent auditor, were engaged to
report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information and with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ernst
& Young have issued their unqualified letter containing their findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed below by the Group in accordance with relevant clauses of
Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

Details of non-exempt continuing connected transactions:

In accordance with Rules 14A.49 of the Listing Rules, the Group is
required to disclose certain details of its non-exempt continuing
connected transactions in compliance with Rule 14A.71 and 14A.72.

(1)  Lease of a property as a retail outlet from a connected person

On 26 January 2022, the Group entered into a lease agreement
with Mountain Rich Limited (“MRL"), a company controlled
and owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an executive director and
controlling shareholder of the Company, to lease Tianjin Bin
Jiang Fu Shi Commercial Building at 282-286 Bin Jiang Road, He
Ping Qu, Tianjin, China from MRL as a retail outlet for the retail
and distribution business of the Group for a term of two years
commencing from 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2024 at the monthly
rent of RMB930,930.

(2) Lease of a property as a director’s quarter from a connected
person

On 26 January 2022, the Group entered into a lease agreement
with Latex (Hong Kong) Limited (“Latex”), a company wholly
owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an executive director and
controlling shareholder of the Company, to lease 22 Perkins Road,
Jardine’s Lookout, Hong Kong from Latex as a director’s quarter
of the Group for a term of two years commencing from 1 April
2022 to 31 March 2024 at the monthly rent of HK$400,000.

BERERS #)
ARRZBAIRBR K S HABE M EERRA
EECRARERSRERE BB ALENZE
AR E IR B 5300035 4 B B IS SR T B
SREE LI E R LUK 2 BB FE A 35 5| 5574038 4R
BEE L THIREZ BERER S B R T
WG o RAKEHAEHFERAEBMRIE EHRE
F14AS6IEABER X E U TR ERER S FEL >
RE REBERERERAREHZEREERR
o

TERRNBEBEISHE -
BRETHRBEVALKRE  AEFEAFESE
VAT RVAATGREBETERENIFEREIZ N
ER4D HAER ©

[ — BB LR — Y EEBTEFTT
RIZE-—F—-A=+xH  FEEHLEE
BERATTWE ) (HAATANATESR
EREBRREWELCELRHRES)BTHER
#FBUEABEMNATFEXETNFEEEL
1E282— 2865 R IRBETIREIEE © F AL
EESERDHEEBNTENT B ==
FNA—HEZZ_NFE=A=1+—HAH®
F - 5 AARY930,9307T °

(1)

(2) [E—BEALRHE—YEEBEERE
MR-ZZBEZZF—B=+ B AEEHEE
(BB)ERQAT LB (HRQ2ANTES
RERBFEWELEZERE)STHER
#® o AN EARESDEL AEEE229  F
AREE-—EEEEZA -H-ZT-_FWIA
—HBEZZE-_NF=RA=t+—HAHNE &
A& %HB%400,0007T °

BAkELEFRAT —ZT-=F#



Report of the Directors EE & &

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Details of non-exempt continuing connected transactions: (continued)

(3)

Lease of a property as a training center from a connected person
On 26 January 2022, the Group entered into a lease agreement
with Winson Link Enterprises Limited (“WLEL"), a company
wholly-owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an executive director
and controlling shareholder of the Company, to lease Room
42078, 42nd Floor, Metroplaza Tower I, 223 Hing Fong Road,
Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong as a training centre
of the Group and a car parking space at Ground Floor, LMK
Development Estate, 10-16 Kwai Ting Road, Kwai Chung, New
Territories, Hong Kong from WLEL for a term of two years
commencing from 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2024 at the monthly
rent of HK$69,280.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and

within the knowledge of the Board, at least 25% of the Company’s total

issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their re-appointment as

auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual

general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Poon Bun Chak
Executive Chairman

Hong Kong, 16 June 2023
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The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance and enhancing corporate value and accountability. The
principles as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules have been adopted to
shape our corporate governance structure. This report describes how
the principles of the CG Code have been applied during the year ended
31 March 2023 under different aspects.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CG CODE

In the opinion of the directors, the Company has complied with all the
code provisions of the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules throughout the financial year, except for the following deviation:

Under code provision F.2.2 of the CG Code, the chairman of the Board
should attend the annual general meeting of the Company.

The chairman of the Board has delegated the duty of attending the
annual general meeting to one of the executive directors of the
Company. The chairman considers the executive director a suitable
person for taking up such duty as the executive director has good
knowledge in each operating segment of the Group.

CORPORATE CULTURE

The Board embraces a culture built on these core values, with a view to
achieving the objectives of our investors, satisfying the requirements of
our customers, accomplishing the goals of our vendors and realising the
advancement of our employees.

The corporate culture of the Group is summarized as follows:

Corporate To become an internationally renowned company

Vision: with competitive edges

Corporate To promote industry development through

Mission: technological advancement

Corporate Sincere cooperation, bold innovation and effective

Spirit: execution

Core Values: Diligence, progressiveness, responsibility, loyalty and
gratitude

Corporate Business Concept: customer first, win-win cooperation,

Philosophy: environmental protection and social contribution

Management Concept: unity, care, motivation and
conservation

Quality Concept: full participation and quality
orientation

Team Concept: close collaboration, efficient
communication, joint commitment and shared success

FEEBEEERSEENCEE AR RALKEE
MREEM - AR BERM LR BN ER14FTE (B3
ERTFAD(REXERTH ) SHEFR S EH b
EREE c ARERMALATNBEZT-=F=A
=t -RLEFEANAEEETESEERALEER
SFRIFTEEEIRR -

BriEREATA

BREENER  AAARSHUFE —EBTEHHR
IR B4R R S EEATRAMA TN - T
B STRR D -

EEEARTFAF22EREEFTE IR AHEARD
AZBRRBERE -

EEEIRBHERRBFAS 2BBEZERQRE —
NHTES - TEIRZHITESREEAE B
HITESHAREZEE B+ TH -

M

EFTSRSEERUEROERZXL  HRERR
BECZER - MEEFZER - ERHEERZEMNIL
EBREEME -

REBPEECRBIFNT ¢

MR

RABEBFONEBRM AR

¥ 0 HORIWRA  EBTERE
EEH . BHEE BRAN - ST
BEE 2R ER- BE - BH R

ReBo-BEEL AR

BTRR - EfEtE

EEES-E4 BT HE - #51

=

&b

I BER-282H DG

BEES - REBE - SREE
HEEE  HERR

BAkELEFRAT —ZT-=F#



Corporate Governance Report {+EE RS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board composition

As of the date of this annual report, the Board is comprised of six
members including three executive directors and three independent
non-executive directors (“INEDs"). The names of directors and their
positions are as follows:

Name of Directors Position

=g

EBRMER

RAFRAL  ESREAEME  BE=UHNTE
ERZMBIFATES - ESHEREMIMNT -

EEHA

By
Executive directors:
HITES

Mr. Poon Bun Chak
BWIELE

Mr. Ting Kit Chung
THEBEE

Mr. Poon Ho Tak
EEEEE

HITERE

THBH

Independent non-executive directors:
BYFHTES !

Mr. Cheng Shu Wing

BRI ER e

Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin

EMPFLE

Mr. Ho Lai Hong (Note)

AIRBEREE (ML)

Note: Mr. Ho Lai Hong was appointed as an independent non-executive director
with effect from 31 August 2022.

Mr. Poon Ho Tak is a son of Mr. Poon Bun Chak.

Mr. Au Son Yiu retired as an independent non-executive director with
effect from the conclusion of the annual general meeting held on 31
August 2022.

The biographical details of all the existing directors which include
relationships among members of the Board are set out on pages 18 to
19.

An updated list of directors of the Company and their respective roles
and functions has been maintained on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

Re-election of Directors

Mr. Ho Lai Hong was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company with effect from 31 August 2022. In accordance
with clause 86(2) of the Company’s bye-laws, Mr. Ho shall hold office
until the first annual general meeting after his appointment and, being
eligible, offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting to be held on 24 August 2023 (“2023 AGM").

Except Mr. Ho, all the existing directors will retire and, being eligible,

will offer themselves for re-election at the 2023 AGM in accordance
with Clause 87(1) of the Company’s bye-laws.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Executive chairman and chief executive officer

The Executive Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are Mr. Poon
Bun Chak and Mr. Ting Kit Chung respectively; therefore the roles of
the Executive Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are segregated.
The primary role of the Executive Chairman is to provide leadership
for the Board and to ensure that it works effectively in discharging its
responsibilities. The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the day-to-
day management of the Group’s business.

Independence and qualification of independent non-executive directors
The Company has three INEDs representing more than one third of
its Board, which is in compliance with Rule 3.10(1) and Rule 3.10A of
the Listing Rules. All the INEDs possess a wide range of business and
financial experience. One of the INEDs, Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin,
possesses professional accounting qualification in full compliance with
Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. In accordance with Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules, all the INEDs have confirmed their independence for the
year ended 31 March 2023.

Mechanism regarding Independent Views to the Board

The Executive Chairman of the Board holds meeting(s) with the
independent non-executive directors without the presence of other
executive directors at least once per year to ensure independent views
and input are available to the Board. Such mechanism is reviewed
annually by the Board to ensure its effective implementation.

Role of the Board

The overall management of the Group is vested with the Board and the
day-to-day management of the business is delegated to the executive
management.

The principal roles of the Board are:

(1)

to lay down the Group’s objectives, strategies, policies and
business plan;

(2)  to monitor the performance of each operating segment;

(3) to set appropriate policies to manage risks in pursuit of the
Group's strategic objectives;

(4) to authorise material borrowings and expenditures;

(5) to prepare and approve financial statements, annual and interim
reports, and make judgments that are fair and reasonable in the
preparation of the Company’s disclosure statements;

(6) to perform corporate governance functions in accordance
with the CG Code, including the determination of the Group’s
corporate governance policies, and the review and monitoring of
the corporate governance practices of the Group; and

(7)  to oversee and review the effectiveness of the risk management

and internal control systems of the Group through review of the
reports from Audit Committee.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board Diversity

The Board currently has all male Directors and is committed to
enhancing gender diversity of the Board. The Board targets to appoint
at least one female member to the Board by 2024. The Nomination
Committee will identify suitable candidate(s), having due regard
to the Nomination Policy and the Board Diversity Policy, and make
recommendation to the Board on the appointment. The Board will
strive to ensure the Board is made up of a reasonable and justifiable
proportion of women by reference to stakeholders’ expectations and
the pool of qualified candidates.

Directors’ insurance
The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover for the
directors in connection with the discharge of their responsibilities.

Induction and continuous professional development

Newly appointed directors will receive a comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction on the first occasion of their appointment so as to
ensure that they have appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Company as well as the obligation and responsibility
of being a director under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory
requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. Reading materials on the latest development of applicable
laws, rules and regulations will be provided to directors where
appropriate. All directors are also encouraged to attend relevant
training courses at the Company’s expense.

According to the records maintained by the Company, the existing
directors received the following training during the financial year:

Directors
==
Executive directors: HITES
Poon Bun Chak EWIE
Ting Kit Chung TR
Poon Ho Tak BEEE
Independent non-executive directors: BYEBITES :
Cheng Shu Wing e
Law Brian Chung Nin EME
Ho Lai Hong IEEE
A: Reading materials relating to the Group, general business or director’s

duties and responsibilities, etc.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board process

The Company has in place clear board process. Regular board meetings
are scheduled at least four times per year. Agendas and accompanying
board papers are served to all directors at least five business days in
advance of each board meeting to facilitate informed discussion and
decision making. Directors may include any matters they wish to discuss
in the agendas. Minutes of the Board and committee meetings are
prepared and kept by the company secretary of the Company, and are
open for inspection by directors upon request. All directors have access
to the advice and services of the company secretary, and are allowed to
seek external professional advice if needed.

Directors’ attendance at meetings

As reflected in their high attendance in the Board and Board Committee
meetings during the year, the Directors continued to participate
extensively in the Board’s discussions and decisions and Company'’s
affairs in 2022/2023. The INEDs also held separate meetings with the
Chairman to discuss Board and relevant matters.

Annual general meeting and board meetings

The Company held an annual general meeting and four regular
board meetings during the year ended 31 March 2023. Attendance of
individual Board members at the meetings is set out below:

Directors

-

Executive directors: HITES:

Poon Bun Chak EWIE

Ting Kit Chung THE

Poon Ho Tak EEE
Independent non-executive directors: BIYFHITES

Au Son Yiu (retired on 31 August 2022)

Cheng Shu Wing R
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three board committees to oversee certain
aspects of the Company’s affairs. Each board committee has its own
terms of reference relating to its authority and duties, which have been
approved by the Board and are reviewed periodically. The terms of
reference of each board committee are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

Audit committee

The Company has established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. The
Audit Committee consists of three INEDs, namely Mr. Law Brian Chung
Nin, Mr. Cheng Shu Wing and Mr. Ho Lai Hong. The Audit Committee
is chaired by Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin, a qualified accounting
professional.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include:

(a)

monitoring the preparation of the financial statements;

(b) monitoring and assessing the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group;

() monitoring the performance of the Group’s internal audit team;

(d)  considering the appointment and removal of the external auditor,

the audit fee and the terms of engagement; and

(e)

reviewing and commenting on the connected transactions of the
Group.

The Audit Committee held six meetings during the year ended 31 March
2023 to review the followings:

(a)

the risk management and internal control of the Group;

(b) the effectiveness of internal audit function;

() the financial reporting process and the financial statements of the
Group; and

(d) the continuing connected transactions pursuant to the Listing

Rules.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Audit committee (continued)

The attendance of Audit Committee meetings during the year ended 31
March 2023 is set out below:

Members of the Audit Committee
EREREHE

Law Brian Chung Nin

Au Son Yiu (retired on 31 August 2022)
Cheng Shu Wing

EfEF

UGS

Ho Lai Hong (appointed on 31 August 2022) AIBE(R=E==FNA=+—AEZET)

Remuneration committee

The Company has established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing
Rules. The Remuneration Committee consists of three INEDs and one
executive director, namely Mr. Ho Lai Hong, Mr. Cheng Shu Wing,
Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin and Mr. Ting Kit Chung, respectively. The
Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Ho Lai Hong.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendation to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure
for the remuneration of directors and senior management as well
as the compensations payable to directors. The remuneration of the
directors and senior management is determined with reference to
the performance of each individual and the Company, the market
conditions and the industry practice. Besides, the Remuneration
Committee will ensure that no director or any of his associate will be
involved in the determination of his own remuneration.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Remuneration Committee
held three meetings to make recommendations to the Board on the
terms of executive director’s contract, directors’ fee, the remuneration
and performance bonus of executive directors and senior management
as well as update the terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Remuneration committee (continued)

The attendance of Remuneration Committee meetings during the year
ended 31 March 2023 is set out below:

Members of the Remuneration Committee

FMESERE

Ho Lai Hong (appointed on 31 August 2022) fiiBE(R=E==_FNA=1+—AEZF)
BRRB(AR-_Z-__FN\A=+—BEME)

Au Son Yiu (retired on 31 August 2022)

Cheng Shu Wing RS
Law Brian Chung Nin EE
Ting Kit Chung TS

Details of the remuneration of each director and the members of the
senior management by band for the year ended 31 March 2023 are
set out in note 7 to the financial statements contained in this Annual
Report.

Nomination committee
The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee"”) consists of three INEDs and one executive director, namely
Mr. Cheng Shu Wing, Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin, Mr. Ho Lai Hong and
Mr. Ting Kit Chung, respectively. The Nomination Committee is chaired
by Mr. Cheng Shu Wing.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for making recommendation
of candidates with appropriate experience and qualification to the
Board; reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board;
reviewing nomination policy for directors and Board diversity policy;
and assessing independence of INEDs.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Nomination Committee held
one meeting to review the structure, size and composition (including
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board ensuring that the Board
has a balance of expertise, skills and experience; to review nomination
policy for directors and Board diversity policy; to review and recommend
the re-appointment of directors standing for re-election at the
Company’s 2022 annual general meeting; and to assess independence
of the INEDs.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination committee (continued)

The attendance of Nomination Committee meeting during the year
ended 31 March 2023 is set out below:

Members of the Nomination Committee
REZEENE
Cheng Shu Wing

Au Son Yiu (retired on 31 August 2022)
Law Brian Chung Nin
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Ho Lai Hong (appointed on 31 August 2022) {AIBEE(R=—E=-=FN\B=1t—BEZEF) -

Ting Kit Chung THR

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has undertaken the corporate governance function to
maintain effective corporate governance within the Group. The
corporate governance duties of the Board have been set out in the
terms of reference of the Board on corporate governance functions
which are available on the website of the Company.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Board reviewed and
monitored the Company's policies and practices on corporate
governance, training and continuous professional development of
directors; human rights policy; approved the anti-corruption policy and
the mechanisms ensuring independent views available to the Board and
reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
this report.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the Company’s code of
conduct for dealings in securities of the Company by the directors. Based
on specific enquiry of the Company’s directors, they have all complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the
financial year.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Mr. Chan Chi Hon, is responsible for facilitating
the board process, as well as communications among directors, with
shareholders and management. The Company Secretary’s biography
has been set out in the “Biographical details of Directors and Senior
Management” section of the Report of the Directors.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company Secretary
undertook over 15 hours of professional training to upgrade his skills
and knowledge.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 March 2023, fees paid/payable for audit and
non-audit services by the Company to its principal external auditor were
as follows:

Services

BR#%

Audit services rendered
Review of continuing connected transactions

BiRH %*ﬂi %
EREE

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for preparing the financial statements of the
Company. The statement from the external auditor of the Company
about their responsibilities has been set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 40 to 48.

The directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems. Such systems are designed to mitigating
risks inherent in our business faced by the Group to an acceptable
level, but not eliminating all risks. Hence, such systems can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement in
financial information or financial loss.

Through the Audit Committee, the Board reviews the effectiveness and
efficiency of risk management and internal control systems annually.
To achieve this, the Audit Committee, acting on behalf of the Board,
oversees the following process:

(1) regular reviews of the principal business risks and the control
measures to mitigate, reduce or transfer such risks;

(2)  risk-based audits on the major operating activities by the internal
audit team; and

(3)  discussion with the external auditor matters on auditing, internal
control and financial report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL (continued)
For the risk assessment and control activities, “top-down"” approach
is complemented by the “bottom-up” aspects and the involvement of
operating units in identifying operation risks. Management conducts
an internal control self-assessment annually. Department heads have to
complete relevant control self-assessment questionnaires and confirm
to the management that appropriate internal control policies and
procedures have been established and properly complied with.

Risk Management and Internal Control Framework Diagram:

Top-down Oversight, identification, assessment and mitigation of risk at

corporate level

Top-down
Oversight, identification,
assessment and mitigation
of risk at corporate level

Responsible for the
Group’s risk management
and internal control

Identification, assessment
and mitigation of risk at
operation level
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Report on any control weakness to the Audit Committee

During the year, the internal audit team, which reports directly to the
Audit Committee, has reviewed the risk management and internal
controls of each major operating segment of the Group and has
reported its findings to the Audit Committee. The Board and the Audit
Committee are satisfied with the effectiveness and efficiency of the risk

management and internal control systems of the Group.
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INSIDE INFORMATION POLICY

The Company has established policy for ensuring that inside information
is disseminated to the public in an equal and timely manner in
accordance with applicable laws and regulations. Senior management
of the corporate affairs and financial control functions of the Group
are delegated with responsibilities to control and monitor the proper
procedures to be observed on the disclosure of inside information.
Access to inside information is at all times confined to relevant senior
management and on “as needed” basis, until proper disclosure or
dissemination of inside information in accordance with applicable
laws and regulations. Relevant personnel and other professional
parties involved are reminded to preserve confidentiality of the inside
information until it is publicly disclosed.

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

The Group has adopted a whistleblowing policy to facilitate employees
and other stakeholders reporting on any suspected misconduct or
malpractice within the Group in confidence and without fear of reprisal
or victimisation. The policy is available on the website of the Company.

ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICY

The Group has adopted and implemented a sound anti-corruption
policy and is committed to conducting business honestly, ethically and
with integrity. The policy is available on the website of the Company.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) setting out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board.
The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance. In designing
the Board’s composition, Board diversity has been considered from a
number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will be based
on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

The Company will continue to review our Board Diversity Policy. In
particular, when the Board identifies potential Director candidate(s)
in the future, it will ensure that sufficient consideration will be given
to gender diversity in light of the gender distribution of the boards
of listed company on the Stock Exchange which operates in the same
industry as the Company.

GENDER DIVERSITY OF WORKFORCE

The Board places emphasis on diversity (including gender diversity)
across all levels of the Group. As at 31 March 2023, about 43.6% of our
workforce in the region of Hong Kong, inclusive of textile and garment
manufacturing, is female. Appropriate balance of gender diversity of
workforce is maintained taking into account the business models and
operational needs. Details on the gender diversity at workforce levels
together with relevant data can be found in the ESG report of the
Company.
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NOMINATION POLICY FOR DIRECTORS

The nomination policy sets out the nomination procedures and
the process and criteria to select and recommend candidates for
directorship. The policy is included in the term of reference of the
Nomination Committee.

According to the nomination policy, the Nomination Committee would
select the candidates based on the objective criteria, including without
limitation, age, skills, knowledge, experience, expertise, professional
and educational qualifications, background and the benefit of
diversity as set out under the Board Diversity Policy. The Nomination
Committee would also take into account whether the candidate can
devote sufficient time to the Company, and in case of INEDs, would
also consider the independence requirements under the Listing Rules.
The Nomination Committee monitors the implementation of the
nomination policy and will review and recommend any revisions to
the Board for consideration and approval, when necessary, to enhance
effectiveness.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year, a special resolution was passed at the Company’s
annual general meeting held on 31 August 2022 to approve
amendments of the Company’s Bye-laws which were made in
order to align the Core Shareholder Protection Standards set out in
Appendix 3 of the Listing Rules which took effect on 1 January 2022
and the relevant requirements of the applicable laws of Bermuda.
Other amendments to the Bye-laws include explicitly setting out the
flexibility of the Company to hold general meetings, as well as other
minor corresponding and housekeeping amendments. An updated
consolidated version of the Company’s constitutional documents is
available on the websites and the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SHAREHOLDERS'’ RIGHTS

Convening of special general meetings on requisition by shareholders
According to Clause 58 of Company’s bye-laws, one or more
shareholders (including a clearing house (or its nominee)) holding, as at
the date of deposit of the requisition, in aggregate not less than one-
tenth (10%) voting rights, on a one vote per share basis in the share
capital of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Secretary of the Company, to convene
a special general meeting and/or add resolutions to the agenda of a
meeting; and such meeting shall be held within two months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionists themselves
may do so in accordance with the provisions of Section 74(3) of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended) (the “Companies Act"”).
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general meetings by
shareholders

Shareholder(s) is/are entitled to put forward a proposal (which may
properly be put to the meeting) for consideration at a general meeting
of the Company when (i) the shareholder(s) representing not less than
one-twentieth (5%) of the total voting rights of the Company on the
date of the requisition; or (ii) the requisition is made by not less than
100 members holding shares in the Company.

The requisition specifying the proposal, duly signed by the shareholders
concerned, together with a statement with respect to the matter
referred to in the proposal must be deposited at the registered office
of the Company. The Company would take appropriate actions and
make necessary arrangements, and the shareholders concerned would
be responsible for the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in
accordance with the requirements under Sections 79 and 80 of the
Companies Act once valid documents are received.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

We strive to provide quality information to shareholders as well as
our many stakeholders regarding the latest developments whilst
ensuring that relevant information is equally and simultaneously
provided and accessible to all interested parties. The Company has
adopted a Shareholder Communication Policy which provides the
below communication channels to shareholders so as to enable them
to engage actively with the Company and exercise their right as
shareholders in an informed manner.

(1)  Meeting shareholders in annual general meetings ("AGM")
to explain results of the Company and answer questions of
shareholders;

(2) Disseminating corporate information to shareholders according
to the rules and regulations;

(3) Meeting fund managers to promote the business of the Company;
and

(4) Publishing the background, the latest development and the
results of the Group on the Company'’s website.

The Company ensures that shareholders’ views are communicated to
the Board. The chairman of the AGM proposes separate resolutions
for each issue to be considered. Members of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee also attend the
AGM to answer questions from shareholders.
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Corporate Governance Report

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

AGM proceedings are reviewed from time to time to ensure that the
Company follows the best corporate governance practices. The notice
of AGM is distributed to all shareholders by the designated period prior
to the AGM and the accompanying circular also sets out details of each
proposed resolution and other relevant information as required under
the Listing Rules. The chairman of the AGM exercises his power under
the Company’s bye-laws to put each proposed resolution to the vote
by way of a poll. The procedures for conducting a poll are explained at
the meeting prior to the polls being taken. Poll results are posted on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange on the day of the
AGM.

Making enquiries to the Board

The Group values feedback from shareholders on its efforts to
promote transparency and foster investor relationships. Comments and
suggestions to the Board or to the Company are welcome to contact the
Company Secretary.

Designated contact information
Texwinca Holdings Limited

Address 16th Floor, Metroplaza Tower II, 223 Hing Fong Road,
Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong

Telephone (852) 2610 7116/(852) 2610 7257

Fax (852) 2233 1116/(852) 2233 1257

Email IR@texwinca.com
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EY:

To the shareholders of
Texwinca Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Texwinca
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set
out on pages 49 to 156, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2023, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 March 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as
a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide
a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our
description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that
context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to
respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters
below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matters

BREETEE
Provision for inventories
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEMERNMEERRETEE

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had inventories, net of
provision, of HK$1,519,889,000 which comprised textile
and apparel products. The consumption of inventories
is subject to changing consumer demands and market
trends which increased the level of judgement involved
in estimating inventory provisions. Judgements were
required to assess the appropriate level of provision for
items which might be ultimately obsoleted or sold below
cost as a result of a reduction in customers’ demand. Such
judgements included management’s expectations for
future sales net of estimated selling expenses.

RIZE-=F=ZA=+—H0  BEEEEIREEEEFESEYE
1,519,889,0007C » EFEEHBEIREER - TENERS
FINEFPERRTGBRNNE  BERES I EERER
BRNHEBRIZES - FHMEUTEREFFERRLD Mo BHEKB
BRRUBEREAEENFEEFESBREZEHE - ZZHE
BEEEBHINMRHEEERBNARRHEEET -

We obtained an understanding of the inventory
provision policy adopted by management. We also
evaluated whether the inventory provision was
made in accordance with the policy. We examined
management’s estimation regarding the obsolescence
percentage applied based on past experience,
subsequent sales and usage status, and market-specific
considerations.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued) FARETEEHE)
Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter
2 S BB N EERERETEE
Relevant disclosures about the significant accounting We tested the underlying data used by management
judgement and estimates, the provision for inventories to calculate the inventory obsolescence provisions by
and the balance of inventories are included in notes 3, 6 reviewing the inventory ageing analysis and checking,
and 20 to the consolidated financial statements. on a sample basis, the subsequent sales and usage.

FENERSTHE R - FEREREHNEBEKRES R ?ﬂ%ﬁ’"’l%ﬁﬁﬁ“ﬁﬁ‘é“ PR EMEREERER - UARE
RERBMIEIRRMFES ~ 65220 BRUGHEFERERENERRS -

We tested the resultant calculation by assessing the
calculation criteria and recalculating the provision for
the inventories based on those criteria.

BMUAHEFER BN EER Y U ZE L EHRTE LU
ATEER

We also assessed management’s calculation of net
realisable value by checking to the latest or subsequent
selling prices.

&ﬁﬂﬁﬁf FREAREE  UEEEEM 2R EEN
B
Recoverability of trade receivables
FEWER X HY AT Y B] 1%
As at 31 March 2023, the carrying amount of trade We tested the controls over the Group’s collection
receivables before loss allowance for impairment of trade procedures and the Group's estimation of expected
receivables amounted to HK$589,079,000 and the loss credit losses. We evaluated the appropriateness of
allowance for impairment of trade receivables amounted the allowance of doubtful debts recognised by test
to HK$26,707,000. checking the historical cash collection trend, subsequent

settlements, ageing analysis of the trade receivables
and considered whether the historical loss rates
were appropriately adjusted based on the current
local economic environment and forward-looking
information by evaluating the correlation of market
information used. We also considered the adequacy of
the Group’s disclosure about the degree of estimation
involved in arriving at the allowance amount.

REZ-=F=A=+—0  BERERZNEKRRIRERERXE B SEERERFMNERNR SEEEEHREEES
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FEBRUZEREEELBENAR - RMTFEZE &
SEREFRESEMIRAHEENEERERE ©
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued) BRRETEE®)

Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BREEITER BB BN EERRETSE
During the year, management used a provision matrix
to calculate expected credit losses (“ECLs"”) for trade
receivables. The matrix was initially based on the
Group's historical default rates, and specific factors that
management considered in the estimation of the rates

including the type of customers, ageing of the balances
and recent historical payment patterns. Management
then calibrated the matrix to adjust the historical credit
loss experience with forward-looking information, such as
forecasted economic conditions. We focused on this area
because of a high level of management’s judgement and
the materiality of the amounts involved.

REE EEECABBEEUGTERRERINEAREES
BoEENSRE BERENELENRSEEH  mEEER
R EZRZENFERZAERTRE - SRNRERT
HNELARER - EEEEARANSER RS AR EER
ARZIEEARBRELEERE - ARSREEBAFHEK
FHHEREASHE  MERMEENLLEE -

Relevant disclosures about the significant accounting
judgement and estimates and the provision for
impairment of trade receivables are included in notes 3
and 21 to the consolidated financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matters

BREtER

FARETEEE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMFFRFNAEEBERRTSHE

Impairment assessment of right-of-use assets and property, plant and equipment

RAREERYR - BERR B ETE

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had right-of-use assets of
HK$404,793,000 and property, plant and equipment of
HK$1,204,066,000. The Group’s management performed
impairment assessment of right-of-use assets and property,
plant and equipment for identified retail outlets that
continued to underperform by estimating the recoverable
amount of their right-of-use assets and property, plant
and equipment based on value in use calculation.
An impairment of approximately HK$6,013,000 and
HK$339,000 has been recorded for the year ended 31
March 2023 to reduce the carrying amounts of certain
right-of-use assets and property, plant and equipment,
respectively, to their estimated recoverable amounts.
Management considers each retail shop as an individual
cash-generating unit as each shop generates independent
cash flows, which are largely independent of the cash
flows generated by other assets. The Group determines
impairment provision based on the cash flow forecasts
of loss-making retail shops. The evaluation process is
inherently subjective and dependent on a number of
estimates.

REZ-=F=A=+—0 - FEENFEAREERYE &
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Relevant disclosures about the significant accounting
judgement and estimates and the details about the
impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets are included in notes 3, 12 and 14
to the consolidated financial statements.

ERTESTHHENGETNERREUREGREYE BERR

BHNERAREENREMENFELEERS UBMRNME
3~ 12M14m
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Our audit procedures in relation to management'’s
impairment assessment included, among others,
evaluating the Group’s policies and procedures in
identifying impairment indicators and assessing
management’s significant assumptions adopted, in
particular those relating to the cash flow forecasts
of loss-making retail shops, by reviewing the Group's
business plan, comparing with the market discount rate
and evaluating the growth rate by comparing to market
data. Our procedures also included a comparison of the
cash flow forecasts with historical data of the Group.
Also, we checked, on a sample basis, the accuracy and
relevance of the input data used.
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the
Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group'’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant

audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have

complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence

and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that

may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where

applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ip Hing Lam.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

16 June 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss Zi &1 &

Year ended 31 March 2023 i Z —E - =4 =H=+—HIF FZF

REVENUE
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income and gains

Selling and distribution expenses
Administrative expenses

Other operating expenses, net
Finance costs

Share of profit of an associate

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX,
COMPENSATION FOR THE LOSS OF
INVENTORIES AND LOSS OF
INVENTORIES DUE TO A FIRE ACCIDENT

Compensation for the loss of inventories
due to a fire accident

Loss of inventories due to a fire accident

PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Income tax expense

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Ordinary equity holders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

Basic and diluted (HK cents)

A
SHERA

E7
HABWA K Wz
THEM
HitgEER - 38
Bii5E A

FEAL S N RDER

BB - KKBHEREFRAN
BERAKEHEREFRE
AR (B518)

R KBHEREFIRRAEEE

BB ADEF
BiE

AR ERR
A -

RAREERERAE
R R

BEAAREBRES
FEEBRER

EARREER CERE )

Notes
Kzt

11

2023 2022
—EB-=F — g2

HK$’000 HK$°000
BETFT BEFT
6,058,755 8,043,172
(4,486,790) (5,714,222)
1,571,965 2,328,950
201,967 154,085
(971,391) (1,254,294)
(753,747) (808,651)
(45,425) (53,744)
(34,329) (34,345)

- 28,795

(30,960) 360,796
107,128 -
- (162,278)

76,168 198,518
(13,067) (11,809)
63,101 186,709
75,149 191,064
(12,048) (4,355)
63,101 186,709

5.4 13.8
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income ZRE2HWA X

Year ended 31 March 2023 i Z —E - =4 =H=+—HIF FZF

2023 2022
—EB-=fF — g2
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REERF 63,101 186,709
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) Ht2mEB A (FER)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that may REBHBETERSEE
be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent BENEMEEBA(EE) :
periods:
Exchange differences on translation of foreign — BREEINEEEEEL
operations ZERERE (206,717) 95,096

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) FOR FEEHME2EBA(BE)
THE YEAR, NET OF TAX MR (206,717) 95,096

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) FOR AEE2EWBA(EE) 485

THE YEAR (143,616) 281,805

Attributable to: SE
Ordinary equity holders of the Company ARBEBESMEE (135,223) 286,076
Non-controlling interests IR ES (8,393) (4,271)
(143,616) 281,805

@ TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position =& Bt &R R TR

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets

Investment properties

Construction in progress

Trademarks

Prepayments

Long-term rental deposits

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Long-term debt instruments at
amortised cost

Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Trade receivables

Bills receivable

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Debt instruments at amortised cost

Derivative financial assets

Tax recoverable

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade payables

Bills payable

Other payables and accrued liabilities
Lease liabilities

Derivative financial liabilities
Interest-bearing bank borrowings
Tax payable

Total current liabilities

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

FREEE

ME - MERRE

FEREESE
REME

EEIR

E

EfSRE
REESES
BARERABEN
CREE
REIRE #EAN
BEITA

EERIEEE

BIFRBEE

RBEE

7&

FEWARR

W RE

BNRIE TER
H it B AR

BRREFTARES

BROBERANEBTA

PTEEMERE

AU EI A

RERBESEEY

BRBEE

RBAE

FE A BRX

EARE
HiEN R K BT EE
HERE

TESHes

M SSRITER

FEfH iR

BRBEE

REERRBRE

12
14
13
15
16
22
22

18

19
28

20
21
21

22

18

19

23

24

25

26
14
23
27

31 March 2023 —E-=#=H=+—H

2023 2022
—E-=F —ZE——
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETFT BT T
1,204,066 1,139,878
404,793 524,651
543,405 532,077
5,218 128,657
33,293 33,293
1,799 14,530
66,540 69,518
23,986 50,786
14,860 30,102
47,954 73,293
2,345,914 2,596,785
1,519,889 2,484,148
562,372 906,551
239,822 219,877
252,326 316,793
17,364 2,346
25,357 79,009
7,513 8,251
48,629 -
1,927,436 2,363,988
4,600,708 6,380,963
435,979 908,449
- 10,108
531,762 580,686
117,871 176,824
5,829 5,395
431,688 1,308,278
3,964 42,875
1,527,093 3,032,615
3,073,615 3,348,348
5,419,529 5,945,133
EkEREAFRAT —ZT-=F%



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 4= & Bt & AR R 3R

31 March 2023 —E-=#=H=+—H

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other payables and accrued liabilities
Lease liabilities

FRBEE
HitE SRR Bt A E

Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE
Total non-current liabilities BIERBERE
Net assets EEFH
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to ordinary equity - NG
holders of the Company ERmEEER

Issued capital 2EITRAE
Reserves e
Proposed final dividend BORCRER IR B
Non-controlling interests IR ES
Total equity B

Poon Bun Chak Ting Kit Chung

Director Director

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023

26
14
28

29
30
10

EF

2023 2022
—E-=F T
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT
9,999 9,160
298,152 400,412
95,815 100,042
403,966 509,614
5,015,563 5,435,519
69,085 69,085
4,818,556 5,230,119
138,170 138,170
5,025,811 5,437,374
(10,248) (1,855)
5,015,563 5,435,519
EE
THAE
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 48 & HRhEFE

Year ended 31 March 2023 i Z —E - =4 =H=+—HIF FZF

2023
—E-=F

2022
==

HK$000
BEFT

HK$000
BEFT

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES K& FIEEHSRE

Profit before tax RREE A A 76,168 198,518
Adjustments for: A
Finance costs BHRER 8 34,329 34,345
Share of profit of an associate FE(REEE N BDEF] - (28,795)
Interest income FEWA 5 (41,534) (28,839)
Net fair value losses/(gains) on foreign INESTESRT A
exchange derivative financial instruments A A ERE, () F5E 6 3,122 (7,353)
Net fair value losses/(gains) on financial RAARBETTABREDN
assets at fair value through profit or loss SREERE (W) FHE 6 (11,616) 4,594
Loss/(gain) on revision of lease terms arising [0 #i$E#FE & EAPR & &)
from changes in the non-cancellable MELNEEER
period of leases BE () 14 (39,408) 63
COVID-19-related rent concessions HE AR 220195 B TR
from lessors EEHEENESRSS 14 (1,021) (4,493)
Net fair value gains on investment REWMEQIRE
properties Wi g5 6 (11,328) (14,082)
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BERRBITE
equipment 6 222,829 225,798
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FEREEEINE 6 158,611 239,114
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of items of HENE RERREER
property, plant and equipment B8 (&) F4E 6 (3,702) 6,121
Impairment of items of property, ME - BEKZERE
plant and equipment 6 537 -
Impairment of right-of-use assets FREEERE 6 6,013 40,769
Write-down/(reversal of write-down) FEMR, (HUsEE)
of inventories 6 (88,153) 75,064
Reversal of impairment of FEUER TR ERE
trade receivables 6 (2,639) (22,126)
Reversal of impairment of REEHERANERIA
debt instruments at amortised cost RERE 6 (517) (2,820)
Customs and value-added tax related to EAXKEHIERBIER
loss of inventories due to a fire accident FEZEBRIEER - 52,274
Reversal of value-added tax related to loss EAXNEHIEKCEREFEZ
of inventories due to a fire accident HEE B (13,191) -
288,500 768,152
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL (3Em) 881,002 (168,574)
Decrease in trade and bills receivables EWERS R ZER D 279,879 79,778
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, FENFE - ST e R EMmER
deposits and other receivables WL, () 91,411 (11,205)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and FEERM R EREEN G
bills payables (431,068) 28,384
Increase/(decrease) in other Hb IR R
payables and accrued liabilities FESTREE M, () 694 (100,098)
Cash generated from operations REmBRE 1,110,418 596,437
Tax refunded/(paid) 2R (B)FHE (86,698) 306,148
Net cash flows from operating activities BEMBRESRNTE 1,023,720 902,585
EkEREAFRAT —ZT-=F% e



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 4 8 & HhE R

Year ended 31 March 2023 i Z —E - =4 =H=+—HIF FZF

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest received

Net redemption from/(payment to)
settlement of derivative financial
instruments

Purchases of items of property, plant
and equipment

Additions to construction in progress

Addition of debt instruments at
amortised cost

Net redemption of debt instruments
at amortised cost

Addition of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Net redemption of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

Proceeds from disposal of items of
property, plant and equipment

Decrease/(increase) in non-pledged time
deposits with original maturity over
three months when acquired

Dividend received from an associate

Contribution from a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary

Acquisition of interests in an associate

Net cash flows from/(used in) investing
activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Principal portion of lease payments

New interest-bearing bank borrowings

Repayment of interest-bearing bank
borrowings

Interest paid

Dividends paid

Net cash flows used in financing activities

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
year

Foreign exchange adjustments

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

REEFDRERE
2WFIR
FETESM T ANUE
BB, (Z13) %58

BEWX  BERREERE

NEEREIRE
BERCHERANEETA

MEEZ E MR
BERTAFE
BEROAERA
BEENEMERE
BEZ A REFABRN
TREEFHR
HEMEE - BER
RIGEE WA

REIZ A=A LRz
EH R B IEIER
B (3Ehn)
CWEE A BRE

MiE A RBEERRFVIE

W D RRENIRER

REFBHRER/A(RHE)
R

MEFHRERE
HERAESHN
M ERITER
BIEMSIRITER

2AFR
2RRE

RMETBRERLFHE
RERBRSEEY

2o, ORd) B
FAZRERREEEY
SN FEEE

ERZRERREEEY

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023

2022
—EB-=F T
HK$’000 HK$’000
BYFT BT
41,534 28,839
(1,631) 3,667
(147,234) (156,041)
15 (102,907) (135,700)
- (61,540)
69,411 61,142
(785,056) -
808,454 15,303
16,175 19,401
1,026,081 (1,316,992)
- 34,421
- 2,667
- (1,323)
924,827 (1,506,156)
31(b) (150,347) (237,591)
31(b) 2,437,032 3,830,193
31(b) (3,313,733) (3,377,438)
(34,329) (34,345)
(276,340) (248,706)
(1,337,717) (67,887)
610,830 (671,458)
995,240 1,648,537
(21,301) 18,161
1,584,769 995,240




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 48 & HRhEFE

Year ended 31 March 2023 i Z —E - =4 =H=+—HIF FZF

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances

Non-pledged time deposits with original
maturity within three months
when acquired

Non-pledged time deposits with original
maturity over three months
when acquired

Cash and cash equivalents as stated
in the consolidated statement of
financial position

Less: Non-pledged time deposits with
original maturity over three
months when acquired

Cash and cash equivalents as stated
in the consolidated statement
of cash flows

RERBSSENERIN

RERRITER
REIX A=EAREHz
IR E X

RETM A=A ERIH 2

IR E I

RERRESEEY
MEREGFE BRI R

W RETLH=Z@EAMULE
2 IR E TR

RERBRESEEY -
MFRGFERERER

24

24

24

2023
—EB-=fF

HK$000
BEFT

2022
—E-C

HK$000
BETFT

552,301 631,782
1,032,468 363,458
342,667 1,368,748
1,927,436 2,363,988
(342,667) (1,368,748)
1,584,769 995,240
RAEKEARRLE —T-=F8



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R =E

31 March 2023 —E-=#=H=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. QAFRREEER
Texwinca Holdings Limited is a limited liability company BmXEEEERATNABRESMALZER
incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office of the Company BEERAR  ADRZEMHIEE A Clarendon
is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
11, Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company is Bermuda c AR T EEE N BB BHR
located at 16th Floor, Metroplaza Tower II, 223 Hing Fong Road, EREE 2GR ESE _E1642 -

Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong.

As at the year end, the directors consider the immediate holding MARELE  EETANEBERAEETMR
company and the ultimate holding company of the Group to be _\TZFarrow Star Limited R B K IERER A A
Farrow Star Limited and Poon’s Holdings Limited respectively, DRIBAEEHEER AT RRERIZRAT

both of which are incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following NEREE > REFBFELL T ER
principal activities:

. Production, dyeing and sale of knitted fabric, yarn and . M MORRKRZEHEREL ;
garments;
. Retailing and distribution of casual apparel and accessories; o ERER2EERDHE &
and
. Provision of franchise services. . RS RS RS
Information of subsidiaries KB AT EL
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: RANTBZEFEMBLATZFBOT ¢
Place of incorporation/  Issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity
registration registered attributable to
and business share capital the Company Principal activities
ML EER BRTEE/ AN
EEY gRERA ZERE TEER
2023 2022
—E_=F —E_C
Trustland Inc British Virgin Islands US$18,000 100 100 Investment holding
EBREZHE 18,000% 7T REER
Nice Dyeing Factory Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000 100 100 Sale of finished knitted
Non-voting fabric and dyed yarn
deferred
HK$3,125,000
KERBERA BE BERA EEHEAREY
##1,0007T R
ERFEELERE

7B1#3,125,0007C

@ TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023



1.

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

31 March 2023 —E-=#=H=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1.

Information of subsidiaries (continued)

Dongguan Texwinca Textile &
Garment Limited*

RE@XEHHARRERAF

Texwinca Enterprises (China) Limited

BKE(RE)BREERLT

Texwinca Enterprises Limited

BAEEXERAA

Creative Textile Technology
Company (Guangdong) Limited*

ARG E(ER)BRDR*

Creative Textile Technology
Company (Guangxi) Limited*

ARG E (BR)BRLR*

Creative Textile Technology
Company (Henan) Limited*

ARG ERE (TR BRA T

Creative Textile Technology
Company Limited

AR GEBRAR

Win Ready Industrial Limited

KEEXERAT

Place of incorporation/
registration

and business

MR BER
BEWY

PRC/Mainland China

hE/REIAKE
British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
RBRELHB/ B
Hong Kong
BB
PRC/Mainland China
hE/REIAKE
PRC/Mainland China
hE/REIAKE
PRC/Mainland China
hE/REIAKE
British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

RBELHE/ &8

Hong Kong

BB

Issued ordinary/
registered
share capital
ERAEE/
BRERA

HK$2,857,950,000

75152,857,950,0007C

US$1

HK$150,000,000
##150,000,0007¢
HK$60,000,000
7#%#60,000,0007T
HK$80,000,000
7#%#£80,000,0007T
Us$1
1%
Ordinary
HK$10 and
Non-voting
deferred HK$2
BBRRABHI0TR

BERZBELERA
BT

—E-=E

AEIREBEER (&)

MERRERE)

Percentage of equity
attributable to
the Company
AR RIS
ZARE

2023 2022

—E-CF

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

RBAEREARRLR

Principal activities

TERH

Production, dyeing
and sale of knitted
fabric and yarn

AR RRY  ERRER

Investment holding and
trading of machines

REBRREERKR

Provision of management
services

REEERS

Production and sale
of garments
B2 S
Production and sale
of garments
B2 B8
Production and sale
of garments
B2 B8
Sale of garments

B2 $#HE

Property holding

HEmE

—EC=FR



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R =E

31 March 2023 —E-=#=H=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1.

Information of subsidiaries (continued)

Winson Knitting Factory
Company Limited

Winlife Trading Limited
KETERAE

Knight Force Inc.
BBt

Baleno Holdings Limited
HEREEERAT
Baleno Kingdom Limited

HERERAE
Baleno Hong Kong Limited
HEREBERAT

Guangzhou Friendship Baleno
Co. Ltd.*

BEMEER R REAARL R

Beijing Xing Yu Baleno Garment &
Decoration Co. Ltd*

TREFHEERERGERL T

Place of incorporation/

registration
and business

KL BER
sk

Hong Kong

BB

Hong Kong

BB

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

RBRL#EE/ BB

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

KEELBE/ BB

Hong Kong

BB
Hong Kong
BB

PRC/Mainland China

hE/HEARE

PRC/Mainland China

hE/HEARE

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023

Issued ordinary/
registered
share capital
BRTEE/
ERERE

Ordinary HK$10
and Non-voting
deferred
HK$1,000,000

EERETBBI0TR
ERFEELRE
##1,000,0007T

HK$15,903,100
7##15,903,1007T

Us$1
[

(E"

US$20,000

20,000% 7T

HK$10,000

7##10,0007T
HK$2
BT

HK$103,800,000

7##103,800,0007T

US$500,000

500,000% 7T

RAREEER @)
M A mER (F)
Percentage of equity
attributable to
the Company Principal activities
AR R LR
ZADE TEEH
2023 2022
—EC-= —E-C
100 100  Property holding
BEME
100 100  Property holding
BENE
100 100  Sale of garments
K ZSHE
100 100 Investment holding and
retailing of casual
apparel and accessories
REERRERK
# 22 E
100 100  Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessories
ERREN 2 TERDH
100 100  Retailing of casual apparel
and accessories
ERREN2EE
100 100  Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessories
ERREN 2 TERDH
100 100  Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessories
ERREN 2 TERDH



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)

Information of subsidiaries (continued)

Place of incorporation/  Issued ordinary/
registration registered
and business share capital

R B R BR{TEE/
S EERRE

-—

31 March 2023 —E-=#=H=+—H

HEGAIREBRA A PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000

FE/ R AR AR#1,000,0007

Tianjin Dafu Friendship Baleno Co. PRC/Mainland China HK$2,100,000

Ltd.*

REXEMEHRABR AT hE/REIAKE 7#2,100,0007T

Huge Growth Corporation British Virgin Islands/ US$1
Mainland China

BSERAR RBRELHE/HEAE 1X%

Bigpoint Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$1
Hong Kong

RHBRAR KBRZ#EE/ 1%
5

Successful Channel Corporation British Virgin Islands/ US$1
Mainland China

HIEERE RBRELHE/HEAE 1%%

PT Baleno Kingdom Indonesia Indonesia Indonesian
Rupiah (“IDR")
10,000,000,000

g 10,000,000,000ENfE &
* These entities are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises

under the laws of the PRC.

All subsidiaries other than Trustland Inc are indirectly held by the
Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

RAREEER (#)
MEDRER(E)
Percentage of equity
attributable to
the Company Principal activities
AN AR
ZEDE TEER
2023 2022
“E-=fF C—E-—f
100 100  Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessories
ERRSN2EERDH
100 100  Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessories
ERRSN2EERDH
100 100  Property holding
HEWE
100 100  Holding of trademarks

and provision of
franchise services

FEBERRAE
RE R

100 100  Property holding
EZ=EIES

51 51  Retailing of casual apparel

and accessories

ERRE 2 TE

* ZERE L AREFEEREMBIERE

2o

BrTrustland Incsh - A EFREKIBARHEHAR
ATBEEE -

ERFAIHADBZMELR  ESRAHRE
HAKBARFEZREBREIRZEIERSE
SEEEFRERANND - EFARFIIHM
MBLARESRIERN IR

BAkELEFRAT —ZT-=F#
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2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (which
include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for investment properties, certain buildings
included in property, plant and equipment, financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss and derivative financial assets
and liabilities which have been measured at fair value. These
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$")
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2023. A
subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights
results in control. When the Company has, directly or indirectly,
less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b)

rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
()  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023
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2.1

2.2

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to ordinary equity holders of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating
to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in
full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control described above. A change
in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control,
is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(ii) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive income
is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate,
on the same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the first
time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before
Intended Use

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative
2018-2020 Examples accompanying HKFRS 16, and

HKAS 41

2.1

2.2
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R =E
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)
The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs that are
applicable to the Group are described below:

(a)

(b)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are intended to replace a
reference to the previous Framework for the Preparation
and Presentation of Financial Statements with a reference
to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting (the
“Conceptual Framework"”) issued in June 2018 without
significantly changing its requirements. The amendments
also add to HKFRS 3 an exception to its recognition
principle for an entity to refer to the Conceptual
Framework to determine what constitutes an asset or a
liability. The exception specifies that, for liabilities and
contingent liabilities that would be within the scope of
HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were incurred separately
rather than assumed in a business combination, an entity
applying HKFRS 3 should refer to HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-
Int 21 respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework.
Furthermore, the amendments clarify that contingent
assets do not qualify for recognition at the acquisition date.
The Group has applied the amendments prospectively to
business combinations that occurred on or after 1 April
2022. As there were no contingent assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities within the scope of the amendments
arising in the business combination that occurred during
the year, the amendments did not have any impact on the
financial position and performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting
from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
any proceeds from selling items produced while bringing
that asset to the location and condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds
from selling any such items, and the cost of those items as
determined by HKAS 2 Inventories, in profit or loss. The
Group has applied the amendments retrospectively to items
of property, plant and equipment made available for use
on or after 1 April 2022. Since there was no sale of items
produced prior to the property, plant and equipment being
available for use, the amendments did not have any impact
on the financial position or performance of the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(@]

(d)

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37,
the cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that
relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to
a contract include both the incremental costs of fulfilling
that contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling
that contract (e.g., an allocation of the depreciation
charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used
in fulfilling the contract as well as contract management
and supervision costs). General and administrative costs do
not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless
they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under
the contract. The Group has applied the amendments
prospectively to contracts for which it has not yet fulfilled
all its obligations at 1 April 2022 and no onerous contracts
were identified. Therefore, the amendments did not have
any impact on the financial position or performance of the
Group.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out
amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, Illustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41. Details of the
amendments that are expected to be applicable to the
Group are as follows:

o HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees
that an entity includes when assessing whether the
terms of a new or modified financial liability are
substantially different from the terms of the original
financial liability. These fees include only those paid
or received between the borrower and the lender,
including fees paid or received by either the borrower
or lender on the other’s behalf. The Group has
applied the amendment prospectively from 1 April
2022. As there was no modification or exchange of
the Group’s financial liabilities during the year, the
amendment did not have any impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group.

31 March 2023 —E-=#=H=+—H
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2.3

Amendments to HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKFRS 17

Amendment to HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial
statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and  Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
HKAS 28 (2011)

Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture?

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback?
Insurance Contracts’
Insurance Contracts’s

Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and HKFRS 9 -
Comparative Informations

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current (the “2020 Amendments”)4
Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
(the “2022 Amendments”)?
Disclosure of Accounting Policies’

Definition of Accounting Estimates’
Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction’

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the effective date of
the 2020 Amendments was deferred to annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2024. In addition, as a consequence of the 2020
Amendments and 2022 Amendments, Hong Kong Interpretation 5
Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause
was revised to align the corresponding wording with no change in
conclusion

As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in October
2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption
that permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for
annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023

An entity that chooses to apply the transition option relating to the
classification overlay set out in this amendment shall apply it on
initial application of HKFRS 17
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2.3

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in
HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture. The
amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss resulting
from a downstream transaction when the sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture
constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets that
do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the
transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to the
extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or joint
venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively. The
previous mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January 2016
and a new mandatory effective date will be determined after
the completion of a broader review of accounting for associates
and joint ventures. However, the amendments are available for
adoption now.

Amendments to HKFRS 16 specify the requirements that a
seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a sale
and leaseback transaction to ensure the seller-lessee does not
recognise any amount of the gain or loss that relates to the
right of use it retains. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 April 2024 and shall be applied
retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions entered into
after the date of initial application of HKFRS 16 (i.e., 1 January
2019). Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

31 March 2023 —E-=#=H=+—H
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities
as current or non-current, in particular the determination over
whether an entity has a right to defer settlement of the liabilities
for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Classification
of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood that the entity
will exercise its right to defer settlement of the liability. The
amendments also clarify the situations that are considered a
settlement of a liability. In 2022, the HKICPA issued the 2022
Amendments to further clarify that, among covenants of a
liability arising from a loan arrangement, only those with which
an entity must comply on or before the reporting date affect the
classification of that liability as current or non-current. In addition,
the 2022 Amendments require additional disclosures by an entity
that classifies liabilities arising from loan arrangements as non-
current when it has a right to defer settlement of those liabilities
that are subject to the entity complying with future covenants
within 12 months after the reporting period. The amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April
2024 and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier application is
permitted. An entity that applies the 2020 Amendments early
is required to apply simultaneously the 2022 Amendments, and
vice versa. The Group is currently assessing the impact of the
amendments and whether existing loan agreements may require
revision. Based on a preliminary assessment, the amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group's
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies require
entities to disclose their material accounting policy information
rather than their significant accounting policies. Accounting
policy information is material if, when considered together with
other information included in an entity’s financial statements,
it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the
primary users of general purpose financial statements make
on the basis of those financial statements. Amendments to
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 provide non-mandatory guidance
on how to apply the concept of materiality to accounting policy
disclosures. Amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 April 2023 and earlier application
is permitted. Since the guidance provided in the amendments to
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 is non-mandatory, an effective date
for these amendments is not necessary. The Group is currently
revisiting the accounting policy disclosures to ensure consistency
with the amendments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)
Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes
in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies.
Accounting estimates are defined as monetary amounts in
financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty.
The amendments also clarify how entities use measurement
techniques and inputs to develop accounting estimates. The
amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning
on or after 1 April 2023 and apply to changes in accounting
policies and changes in accounting estimates that occur on or
after the start of that period. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exception in HKAS 12 so that it no longer applies
to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences, such as leases and decommissioning
obligations. Therefore, entities are required to recognise a
deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient taxable profit is
available) and a deferred tax liability for temporary differences
arising from these transactions. The amendments are effective
for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April
2023 and shall be applied to transactions related to leases and
decommissioning obligations at the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented, with any cumulative effect
recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
profits or other component of equity as appropriate at that date.
In addition, the amendments shall be applied prospectively to
transactions other than leases and decommissioning obligations.
Earlier application is permitted.

Upon initial application of these amendments, the Group will
recognise deferred tax for all temporary differences related
to leases at the beginning of the earliest comparative period
presented. The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of the impact of amendments to HKAS 12.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss and derivative financial assets
and liabilities at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the
principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly

Level 3 -  based on valuation techniques for which the lowest

level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end
of each reporting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets, financial assets and investment
properties) the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. In testing a cash-generating unit for
impairment, a portion of the carrying amount of a corporate
asset (e.g., a headquarters building) is allocated to an individual
cash-generating unit if it can be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-
generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is accounted
for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which
it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for in
accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued
asset.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R =E

31 March 2023 —E=-=#=H=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s

family and that person

(M

(i)

(iii)

or

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions

applies:

0]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)
(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary
of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity; and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. When an item of
property, plant and equipment is classified as held for sale, it is
not depreciated and is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives
and depreciates them accordingly.

Change in values of property, plant and equipment are dealt
with as movement in the asset revaluation reserve. If the total
of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an individual
asset basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to profit or loss.
Any subsequent revaluation surplus is credited to profit or loss
to the extent of the deficit previously charged. On disposal of
a revalued asset, the relevant portion of the asset revaluation
reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is transferred to
retained profits as a movement in reserves.

For a transfer from owner-occupied properties to investment
properties, the related revaluation surplus is retained in the
asset revaluation reserve and remains there until the subsequent
disposal or retirement of the property, when it is transferred from
the revaluation surplus to retained profits.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off

the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its

residual value over its estimated useful life. The estimated useful
lives used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 25 years or over the remaining
lease terms of related land,
whichever is shorter

Leasehold improvements Over the remaining lease terms

Plant and machinery 10 to 20 years

Furniture, fixtures and office 5 years
equipment
Motor vehicles and yacht 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents plant and machinery under
construction, which are stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and are not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs
of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather
than for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market
conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of

investment properties are included in the statement of profit or
loss in the year in which they arise.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investment properties (continued)

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year of the retirement or disposal.

If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied
property becomes an investment property, the Group accounts
for such property in accordance with the policy stated under
“Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” up to the date
of change in use, and any difference at that date between the
carrying amount and the fair value of the property is accounted
for as a revaluation in accordance with the policy stated under
“Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” above.

Trademarks

The useful lives of trademarks are assessed to be indefinite.
Trademarks with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment
annually either individually or at the cash-generating unit level
and are not amortised. The useful life of a trademark with
an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether
indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the
change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. For fabric, yarn and garments, cost is determined on a
weighted average basis and, for work in progress and finished
goods, cost comprises direct materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of overheads. For casual apparel and
accessories, cost is determined on a weighted average basis
and includes all costs of purchases and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.
Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal or to
make the sale.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make
lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to
use the underlying assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R =E

31 March 2023 —E=-=#=H=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)

(a)

(b)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful
lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land Over the remaining lease terms
Premises Over the remaining lease terms

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected
to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group
and payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option
to terminate the lease. The variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as an
expense in the period in which the event or condition that
triggers the payment occurs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(b) Lease liabilities (continued)
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit
in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in lease
payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments resulting
from a change in an index or rate) or a change in assessment
of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

(o) Short-term leases
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of premises (that is those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option). Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised
as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and
non-lease components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to each component on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for on a straight-
line basis over the lease terms and is included in other income in
the statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental
income. Contingent rents are recognised as other income in the
period in which they are earned.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or
loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics
and the Group's business model for managing them. With the
exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component
or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are
measured at the transaction price determined under HKFRS 15 in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition”
below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income,
it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount
outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI
are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers
to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate
cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows
will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the
financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured
at amortised cost are held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows, while financial assets classified and measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income are held within a
business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are not
held within the aforementioned business models are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to impairment.
Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes
in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments, equity investments,
debt investments and financial products issued by financial
institutions. Dividends on equity investments classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are also recognised as
other income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of
payment has been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and
the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected
cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held
or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the
default (a lifetime ECL).
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R =E

31 March 2023 —E=-=#=H=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4 FESBERIBIE#)

(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach (continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk
on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition
and considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical and
forward-looking information. The Group considers that there
has been a significant increase in credit risk when contractual
payments are more than 90 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the
Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Group is
unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the
Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under
the general approach and they are classified within the following
stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables
which apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 -  Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has established
a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing
component, the Group chooses as its accounting policy to adopt
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs with policies as
described above.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
or
° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows

from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a

"

third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and

rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a “pass-through” arrangement,
it evaluates, if and to what extent, it has retained the risk
and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues
to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Group's
continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or loans and
borrowings and payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables, bills
payable, financial liabilities included in other payables and
accrued liabilities, lease liabilities, derivative financial liabilities
and interest-bearing bank borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit
or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This
category also includes derivative financial instruments entered
into by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments
in hedge relationships as defined by HKFRS 9. Separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss
recognised in the statement of profit or loss does not include any
interest charged on these financial liabilities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of
recognition, and only if the criteria in HKFRS 9 are satisfied. Gains
or losses on liabilities designated at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised in the statement of profit or loss, except for
the gains or losses arising from the Group’s own credit risk which
are presented in other comprehensive income with no subsequent
reclassification to the statement of profit or loss. The net fair
value gain or loss recognised in the statement of profit or loss
does not include any interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in the statement of profit
or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its
foreign currency risk. Such derivative financial instruments are
initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at
fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is
positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are taken directly to the statement of profit or loss.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is included
in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations
and practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and an associate, when the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and an associate, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or
different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Government subsidies

Government subsidies are recognised at their fair values where
there is reasonable assurance that the subsidy will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
subsidy relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the costs, for which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed. Where the grant relates
to an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred income account
and is released to profit or loss over the expected useful life of
the relevant asset by equal annual instalments or deducted from
the carrying amount of the asset and released to profit or loss by
way of a reduced depreciation charge.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and bank balances and
time deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity
of generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial

position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
cash at banks, which are not restricted as to use.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Customer loyalty programme

The Group operates a loyalty programme in its retailing operation
which allows customers to accumulate award credits when they
purchase products from the Group.

The consideration received is allocated between the products sold
and the award credits issued. The consideration allocated to the
award credits is measured by reference to their fair value, i.e. the
value of the future redemption obligations by applying statistical
techniques.

The fair value of the award credits issued is deferred and
recognised as revenue when the award credits are redeemed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

(a) Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point
in time when control of the asset is transferred to the
customer, generally on delivery of the goods.

Rights of return

For contracts which provide a customer with a right to
return the goods within a specified period, the expected
value method is used to estimate the goods that will not be
returned because this method best predicts the amount of
variable consideration to which the Group will be entitled.
The requirements in HKFRS 15 on constraining estimates of
variable consideration are applied in order to determine
the amount of variable consideration that can be included
in the transaction price. For goods that are expected
to be returned, instead of revenue, a refund liability is
recognised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(b)  Rendering of services
Revenue from the provision of services is recognised upon
the completion of the relevant services.

()  Provision of franchise and royalty services
Revenue from the provision of franchise and royalty services
is recognised over the scheduled period on a straight-line
basis because the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life
of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate,
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms.

Income from the sale of scrap materials is recognised at the point
in time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer,
generally on delivery of the goods.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to
the customer).

Dividends

Final and special dividends proposed by the directors are classified
as a separate allocation of retained profits within the equity
section of the statement of financial position, until they have
been approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. When
these dividends have been approved by the shareholders and
declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s bye-laws grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are
recognised immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of
its employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made based on
a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate overseas
are required to participate in central pension schemes operated
by the local municipal governments. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs
to the central pension schemes. The contributions are charged
to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension schemes.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R =E

31 March 2023 —E-=#=H=+—H

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included
in the financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency rates
of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured.
The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item
measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition
of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e.,
translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is
also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and an
associate are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at
the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these
entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their
statements of profit or loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates that approximate to those prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive income
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Significant judgement in determining the lease term of contracts
with renewal options

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension
options. The Group applies judgement in evaluating whether or
not to exercise the option to renew the lease. That is, it considers
all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to
exercise the renewal. After the commencement date, the Group
reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change
in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability
to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew the lease (e.g.,
construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant
customisation to the leased asset).

3.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R =E

31 March 2023 —E=-=#=H=+—H

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets

The Group has to exercise judgement in determining whether
an asset is impaired or the event previously causing the asset
impairment no longer exists, particularly in assessing: (1) whether
an event has occurred that may affect the asset value or such
event affecting the asset value has not been in existence; (2)
whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported by the
net present value of future cash flows which are estimated based
upon the continued use of the asset or derecognition; and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow
projections including whether these cash flow projections are
discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions
selected by management to determine the level of impairment,
including the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in
the cash flow projections, could materially affect the net present
value used in the impairment test. The carrying amounts of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets and the
information about impairment of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets are disclosed in notes 12, 14 and 6 to the
financial statements, respectively.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. The carrying value of deferred tax assets relating to
recognised tax losses at 31 March 2023 was HK$29,196,000 (2022:
HK$35,952,000). Further details are contained in note 28 to the
financial statements.

Impairment of trademarks

The Group determines whether trademarks with indefinite useful
lives are impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires an
estimation of the value in use of the trademarks. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future sales from the cash-generating units which use
the trademarks and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. Further
details are contained in note 16 to the financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

The Group considers information from a variety of sources,
including (i) current prices in an active market for properties of a
different nature, condition and location (or subject to different
leases or other contracts), adjusted to reflect those differences;
(ii) recent prices of similar properties on less active markets, with
adjustments to reflect any changes in economic conditions since
the date of the transactions that occurred at those prices; and (iii)
independent valuations.

The carrying amount of investment properties at 31 March 2023
was HK$543,405,000 (2022: HK$532,077,000). Further details,
including the key assumptions used for fair value measurement
and a sensitivity analysis, are given in note 13 to the financial
statements.

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value is made
based on the estimated net realisable value of inventories.
The assessment of the required write-down amount involves
management'’s judgement and estimates, based on management’s
expectations for future sales net of estimated selling expenses.
Where the actual outcome or expectation in future is different
from the original estimate, such differences will have an impact
on the carrying amounts of the inventories and the write-down
charge/write-back amount in the period in which such estimate
has been changed. The carrying amount of inventories at 31
March 2023 was HK$1,519,889,000 (2022: HK$2,484,148,000).

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns. The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s
historical observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the
matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-
looking information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions
are expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to
an increased number of defaults in the manufacturing sector, the
historical default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are analysed.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R =E
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables
(continued)

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes
in circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The Group’s
historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic
conditions may also not be representative of a customer’s actual
default in the future. The carrying amount of trade receivables at
31 March 2023 was HK$562,372,000 (2022: HK$906,551,000). The
information about the ECLs on the Group’s trade receivables is
disclosed in note 21 to the financial statements.

Impairment of debt instruments at amortised cost

The Group reviews portfolios of debt instruments measured at
amortised cost to assess whether any impairment losses exist and
the amount of impairment losses if there is significant increase in
credit risk. The impairment loss for debt instruments measured
at amortised cost using the expected credit loss model is subject
to a number of key parameters and assumptions, including
the identification of loss stages, estimates of probability of
default, loss given default, exposures at default and discount
rate, adjustments for forward-looking information and other
adjustment factors. The carrying amount of debt instruments at
amortised cost was HK$40,217,000 (2022: HK$109,111,000) as at
31 March 2023 (note 19).

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit
in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate
("IBR") to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest
that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term,
and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would
have to pay”, which requires estimation when no observable
rates are available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter
into financing transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to
reflect the terms and conditions of the lease (for example, when
leases are not in the subsidiary’s functional currency). The Group
estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest
rates) when available and is required to make certain entity-
specific estimates (such as the subsidiary’s stand-alone credit
rating).
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on their products and services and has three
reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) the production, dyeing and sale of knitted fabric, yarn and
garments segment;

(b) the retailing and distribution of casual apparel and
accessories segment; and

() the "others” segment comprises, principally, the provision
of franchise services and property investment.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/
(loss) which is a measure of adjusted profit/(loss) before tax. The
adjusted profit/(loss) before tax is measured consistently with the
Group's profit before tax except interest income, compensation
for the loss of inventories due to a fire accident, loss of inventories
due to a fire accident, non-lease related finance costs and share
of profit of an associate, are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude time deposits, tax recoverable and
deferred tax assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank borrowings,
tax payable and deferred tax liabilities as these liabilities are
managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference
to the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the
prevailing market prices.
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31 March 2023 —E-=#=H=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. BEIEER @)
The following tables present revenue, profit and certain assets, THRAKRNEFHEEZE-ZE-_=F=A=+—-HEK
liabilities and expenditures information of the Group for the TEF=A=1+—HILEFEEZRA &R
years ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022: REnEE - BERZLEER :

Production, dyeing and  Retailing and distribution
sale of knitted fabric, o casual apparel and
yarn and garments accessories Others Eliminations Consolidated
A RYRAKZ ERR T2
EERER SERDE Aft B &8

2023 2022 023 2022 023 2022 2023 2022 023 2022
“BCCE CECCE OCBCCE OCE “BCCE CECCF CBCCE CECCE OCECZE O CECC
HK$'000  HKS$000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$:000
BETL  BEFr  BETn BETr BEFn BEfn BEFn BT BEFn BETa

AERA:

Segment revenue:

Sales to external customers EFHREF 4296693 5543575 1760944 2,495,864 1,118 373 - - 6058755 8,043,172

Intersegment sales TEEZEE 85,406 154,532 13,857 9,561 6,987 8334 (106,.250) (172,427 - -

Other revenue =00 51,137 46,217 80,938 35,461 33,085 46,234 @) (272600 160,433 125,246

4433236 5744384 1,855,739 2,540,886 41,190 58301 (110977)  (175153) 6,219,188 8,168,418

Segment results PEEE 17,027 563,944  (267,349)  (288,795) 39,230 2,383 (1,91) 12,887 (59,063) 310,419
Reconciliation: -
Interest income FEHA 41,534 28,839
Compensation for the loss of S EHEREREANEE

inventories due to a fire accident 107,128 -
Loss of inventories due toafire X S(EHERBEREX

accident - (162218)
Finance costs (excluding interest ~ BHBER(TEERE

on lease liabilities) 8&xs) (1B3a1) (725
Share of profit of an associate FibBe N 57 - B7%
Profit before tax BtaTaR 76168 198,518
Income tax expense BB (13,067)  (11,809)
Profit for the year REERR 63101 186,709
Segment assets PEEE 4,652,287 5721516 2,122,077 2,541,870 595,261 574,296  (1,804,721) (1,671,433) 5474904 7,172,249
Reconciliation: i
Unallocated assets TREE 1471718 1,805,499
Total assets HEE 6,946,622 8,977,748
Segment liabilities HEEE 906,272 1,159,284 2,002,339 2,226,301 48,348 39529 (1,557,367) (1,334,080) 1,399,592 2,091,034
Reconciliation: E
Unallocated liabilities FEER 531467 1,451,195
Total liabilities ek 1,931,059 3,542,229
Other segment information: EthABER
Depreciation of property, NE  BERZER

plant and equipment and FREEENE

right-of-use assets 191,840 194,978 189,600 269,934 - - - - 381,440 464,912
Capital expenditure* BRfERH* 246,350 251,417 17,554 48,699 - - - - 263,904 300,116
Write-down/(reversal of HFEHE/ (EEE)

write-down) of inventories (94,908) 107,128 6,755 (32,064) - - - - (88153) 75,064
Reversal of impairment of trade ~ EWEHHERE

receivables - (4397) (2639 (17,729 - - - - (2639) (22,126
Impairment of right-of-use assets ~ EREEENE - - 6013 40,769 - - - - 6013 40,769
Impairment of items of property, /% - BERAERHE

plant and equipment 198 - 339 - - - - - 537 -
Reversal of impairment of debt T E#HAR

instruments at amortised cost EHIERERD - - (517) (2,820) - - - - (517) (2.820)
Net fair value gains on RENELR

investment properties WETFE - - - - (138) (1408 - - (11328) (1408

* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and * BAMXHBEREYF > MERRE £
equipment, construction in progress and the land portion classified BIRBRSHEREAELEN LG

under right-of-use assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Geographical information

The following table presents geographical revenue and non-
current assets information of the Group for the years ended 31
March 2023 and 31 March 2022:

31 March 2023 —E-=#=H=+—H

EEIBEER (#)

i
TRAFEEBZE-_E-=F=A=1+—-BK
B A=+—BLFEEZHHRRAR
knBEEER

USA Mainland China Japan Hong Kong Others Eliminations Consolidated
| MERRE B ik 4 Hi Be
03 A2 plk} 022 03 022 3 A plk} 022 03 A2 plk} 022
ZECCE CECCE CECCE CECCE CECCE CECCE CECCE CECCE CECCE CECCE CECCE CECCE OCECCE CECCE
HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSO00  HKSOO0 ~ HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00
Vi oA A 10 j BEFr  BEfr  BEFT Vi.59 Vi 59 Vi.597 T
Revenve fromexternal ~ SPRREUA
customers 1733507 2694177 2525380 3829672 894443 692169 669921 717612 35414 10958 - - 6058755 8043172
Non-current assets FrEHEE - - 147385 1,660,509 - - 83068 843768 2001 1289  (135564)  (144,083) 2192574 2373086

The Group’s geographical revenue and non-current assets
information, excluding long-term rental deposits, financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, long-term debt instruments at
amortised cost and deferred tax assets, are based on the locations
of the markets and assets, respectively.

Information about major customers
Revenue from customers individually contributing over 10% to
the total revenue of the Group during the year is as follows:

Customer A

* This customer individually contributed less than 10% of the total
revenue from the Group during the year ended 31 March 2022.

In the prior year, no sales to a single external customers
contributed to more than 10% of the Group's revenue.

REEBBBARFERBEEER(TEER
HEESERE ROAESABSENEREE
RURCEBENANERTARELENESE
BN BIRETEREEZFAELDHE

FERFZER
REEBERI10% U EAEBBHERE TP K
BT

2023
—EB-=F

2022
— § ———

HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
872,462 *

* REFREF-—_E-_—HF=H=+—HIF
EEE AR EFERAMT10% ©

RUAIFE » REIMRAEFHRAGREER
WA10% L £ -
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R =E

31 March 2023 —E-=#=H=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. WA~ A AR S
Revenue from contracts with customers REEEFEFITLNEHHKA
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WA DT -
2023 2022
—E-= —E-=
HK$°000 HK$’000
EETT BT T
Sale of goods HEEm 6,055,153 8,022,048
Rendering of yarn dyeing services RMRD IR 2,484 17,391
Franchise and royalty income R RE REFUWA 1,118 3,733
6,058,755 8,043,172
(i)  Disaggregated revenue information (i)  DHFRAEH
For the year ended 31 March 2023 BE-_Z-_=F=A=1+—HLEE
Rendering of Franchise
Sale of yarndyeing and royalty
Types of goods or services goods services income Total
RERY HHRER
EmREREESR HEE M BR 75 ERBA A%
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$’000
BT T BETT BT T BT T
Segments 78
Production, dyeing and #4875 ~ B RKKZ
sale of knitted fabric, EHRER
yarn and garments 4,294,209 2,484 - 4,296,693
Retailing and distribution {ERK& &2
of casual apparel and ZERDH
accessories 1,760,944 - - 1,760,944
Others Hith - - 1,118 1,118
Total revenue from EEWAEET
customers 6,055,153 2,484 1,118 6,058,755

Geographical markets HiZ T 5

Hong Kong BB 669,921 - - 669,921
Mainland China PRI R RE 2,521,778 2,484 1,118 2,525,380
United States of America %[l 1,733,597 - - 1,733,597
Japan SN 894,443 - - 894,443
Others Hit 235,414 - - 235,414
Total revenue from EEWRAEET

customers 6,055,153 2,484 1,118 6,058,755
Timing of revenue WA FERR B

recognition

At a point in time AE—BE 6,055,153 2,484 - 6,057,637

Over time RE—R - - 1,118 1,118
Total revenue from ZEERAE

customers 6,055,153 2,484 1,118 6,058,755
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5.

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2022

Types of goods or services

EmRRBES

5.

Sale of
goods

HEER
HK$000
BT T

31 March 2023 —E-=#=H=+—H

WA ~ AR WS #)

RERESITINENORA (F)

() PR EH ()
BE-E--—F=A=1+-—BLEE

Franchise
and royalty
income
HFRER
HRWA
HK$000
BT

Rendering of
yarn dyeing
services
RERD
BR#%
HK$000
BT

Total
Pa
=N
HK$°000
BEFT

Segments E
Production, dyeing and  #t4i% « O RKKZ

sale of knitted fabric, EHERER

yarn and garments 5,526,184 17,391 - 5,543,575
Retailing and distribution {EAR & &%) =

of casual apparel and ZERDH

accessories 2,495,864 - - 2,495,864
Others Hith - - 3,733 3,733
Total revenue from EFWAAT

customers 8,022,048 17,391 3,733 8,043,172
Geographical markets 35 T 5
Hong Kong B8 717,612 - - 717,612
Mainland China alE1PN S 3,808,548 17,391 3,733 3,829,672
United States of America [ 2,694,177 - - 2,694,177
Japan SR:N 692,169 - - 692,169
Others Hith 109,542 - - 109,542
Total revenue from EFPWAEE

customers 8,022,048 17,391 3,733 8,043,172
Timing of revenue WA R

recognition

At a point in time RE—BFE 8,022,048 17,391 - 8,039,439

Over time RE—FER - - 3,733 3,733
Total revenue from EFEWRAE

customers 8,022,048 17,391 3,733 8,043,172

EkEREAFRAT —ZT-=F%



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R =E

31 March 2023 —E-=#=H=+—H

@®

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued) 5 WA > HRA R WK #)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued) RERFFITLNEHNHRA (E)
(i)  Disaggregated revenue information (continued) ()  DHRUAER(E)
The following table shows the amounts of revenue TREATRIREHABRIL R RS
recognised in the current reporting period that were et AEHEaBEZWASEE
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the
reporting period:
2023 2022
—=-= —=s——
HK$°000 HK$’000
EETT BT T
Revenue recognised that was included in  RER] - FHEHEZUA
the contract liabilities at the beginning BEREH
of the year: e
Sale of goods HEER 13,074 14,534
Customer loyalty programmes EFEHE 11,850 4,294
24,924 18,828
(i) Performance obligations (i)  BHEF
Information about the Group’s performance obligations is FEBEBVEFEENT :
summarised below:
Sale of goods HEH R

The performance obligation is satisfied upon acceptance of
the products by the customers. The Group’s trading terms
with its customers are mainly on credit and by cash. The
credit period is generally within 90 days.

Rendering of services

The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time
when services are rendered and payment is generally due
upon completion of services and customer acceptance,
except for some customers, where payment in advance is
normally required.

Franchise and royalty income

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services
are rendered and advances are normally required before
rendering the services. Franchise contracts are for periods
of one to two years.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(iii)

Unsatisfied performance obligations

For the sale of goods and rendering of yarn dyeing services,
the Group does not expect to have any contracts where
the period between the transfer of the promised goods
or services to the customer and payment by the customer
exceeds one year, and therefore the transaction price
allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed as
permitted by HKFRS 15.

For franchise and royalty income, the amounts of
transaction prices allocated to the remaining performance
obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31
March 2023 and 31 March 2022 are as follows:

Within one year —FR
More than one year ZR—E

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the
remaining performance obligations expected to be
recognised as revenue after one year relate to franchise
services, of which the performance obligations are to
be satisfied within two years. All the other amounts of
transaction prices allocated to the remaining performance
obligations are expected to be recognised as revenue within
one year. The amounts disclosed above do not include
variable consideration which is constrained.

31 March 2023 —E-=#=H=+—H

5. WA~ Eb AR WS )
RERESITINENORA (F)

(iii)

FERERIE T
PMEEERREHRORYE - FAEEL
BHEBENESN TP N REEHTRE
HANERRRIBORRGBB—F 7
LUZRE B BIREERAEISKTE
ERBRXZEREEHBRERZE
o

RETCERERRA > R=T==

ZR=+t—-BR=-ZE-_-F=A=+-—
B BXSGEREERTHENEMR
(REATHRIBHARBITINOT :

2023 2022
2= —g-=
HK$000 HK$000
EBETT BETFT
1,499 1,574
3,872 -
5,371 1,574

FEHERBR - FRERBRAZRT
BHEESRARMFRETETZE
FRER - MAERMBRTRIEETR
BER-—FAERBBA - EXHEZ
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R =E

31 March 2023 —E-=#=H=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued) 5 WA > HRA R WK #)
2023 2022
—E=-= —E-—
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Other income and gains Hp A R iz
Interest income FIEWA 41,534 28,839
Net fair value gains on foreign exchange JNEfTAE SR T EAAE
derivative financial instruments W aRFRE 23 - 7,353
Net fair value gains on financial assets & 2Q A{EFTAEBREH
at fair value through profit or loss SRIEEWR T 11,616 -
Gross rental income from investment REYELLEAERS
property operating leases ON -t 14,402 13,887
Compensation from suppliers for R ERESHEREE
defective goods 3,445 13,204
Government subsidies* BT Bh R 18,743 8,948
Net fair value gains on investment REMERAREWRZFEE
properties 13 11,328 14,082
Sales of scrap materials SHERER 24,837 22,117
Rental income from suppliers and others fHFERT R H AL IA 9,969 7,932
Sales of steam HEER 8,597 1,699
Reversal of impairment of trade PR TR ERE
receivables 21 2,639 22,126
Reversal of impairment of debt REEHEMANER TR
instruments at amortised cost AR B 19 517 2,820

Gain on revision of leases term arising  E Al #HSEEE
from changes in the non-cancellable BARRE B MAEEN

period of leases HEBT 2 W& 14 39,408 -
Subsidies from e-commerce platform BT AMmEL 9,358 -
Sundry income BB 5,574 11,078
201,967 154,085
# Various government grants have been received from local # 1T BT W E & BB T o £EIE
governments. They mainly represented financial assistance for BB EEN I F R EZ LA ERE
the acquisition of the Group’s new machinery items, which are B BEREEBENIEWER 25
transferred from deferred income to profit or loss over the useful BR E UL E 7920193 2 73 ik 5 & = BB
lives of the relevant assets. Balance also included COVID-19 relief B e REFEZZFZF=+—H  AEEHL
subsidies received. As at 31 March 2023, there were no unfulfilled R HE R F BB AT 7 B) 50 R BE B RSB 7T 1R
conditions and other contingencies attaching to the government HREMEAE -

grants that had been recognised by the Group.
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6.

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

31 March 2023 —E-=#=H=+—H

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

(crediting):

Cost of inventories sold*
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Employee benefit expenses, including directors’
and senior management'’s remuneration
(note 7):

Wages, salaries and other allowances
Retirement benefit scheme contributions**

Lease payments not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities

Contingent rents under operating leases

Covid-19-related rent concessions from lessors

Auditor's remuneration
Foreign exchange differences, net*
Net fair value gain on investment properties*

Gross rental income from investment property
operating leases*
Less: direct operating expenses (including
repair and maintenance) arising from
rental earning investment properties

Net rental income

Write-down/(reversal of write-down) of
inventories*

Reversal of impairment of trade receivables*

Reversal of impairment of debt instruments at
amortised cost*

Impairment of right-of-use assets*

Impairment of items of property, plant and
equipment*

Net fair value (gains)/losses on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss*
Net fair value (gains)/losses on foreign
exchange derivative financial instruments*
Net (gain)/loss on disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment*

Compensation for the loss of inventories due
to a fire accident (note)

Loss of inventories due to a fire accident (note)

CEEIZRA
NE - BERREIE
EREEERE

EEEFHX - BEESN
BREEAEME
(Hret7) :

TE  HERHMEN
RARERIE BT

AER(FRENEEAR
Z3t8)
SERAT2AERS

HBARMEZ 20195 2B HS

HENESRR
R E
ERER P
REMER AEWRFE

RENFLLHEHSMALER

o EREERX (BRERER

EEER)REWERENE

HEWAFE
FERA, (AR *

FER RS R B

REBENANEBTA
PEREEEHEY

EREEERNE"

WE - BERRERE

BAAES ARENERERE
(kis) /EiREaE
MNESTEERIARR
(i) /B EFE
HEME - BERREER
(i) /EEFE
RKEHEREFRAMNEE
(Hfet)
RKEHEREFRK ()

BRBE A& A
AEE 2 RBATRRB IR () :

12
14(a)

14(c)
14(c)

14(c)

13

21

19
14(a)

12

2023 2022
—EB=-= —E-Z
HK$'000 HK$°000
BEFT BHTT
4,486,790 5,714,222
222,829 225,798
158,611 239,114
1,153,909 1,294,912
7,960 7,387
1,161,869 1,302,299
163,426 104,763
83,223 209,160
(1,021) (4,493)
2,890 2,820
(11,121) 1,232
(11,328) (14,082)
(14,402) (13,887)
3,399 3,272
(11,003) (10,615)
(88,153) 75,064
(2,639) (22,126)
(517) (2,820)
6,013 40,769
537 -
(11,616) 4,594
3,122 (7,353)
(3,702) 6,121
(107,128) -
- 162,278
RAEKEARRLE —T-=F8
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R =E

31 March 2023 —E=-=#=H=+—H

6.

PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued)

Note: During the year ended 31 March 2022, certain inventories located

*%

in Mainland China were damaged in a fire accident which occurred
at a third party warehouse. The carrying amount of the damaged
inventories and related customs and value-added tax (“VAT”)
amounting to HK$162,278,000 was written off. During the year
ended 31 March 2023, the partial compensation has been paid
by the insurance company. The input VAT paid on the affected
inventories is allowed to offset the output VAT, i.e. the input VAT
is recoverable. The total amount of approximately HK$107,128,000
was credited to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Cost of inventories sold includes write-down/(reversal of write-
down) of inventories, staff costs, depreciation and lease payments
totalling HK$441,782,000 (2022: HK$709,858,000) which are also
included in the respective total amounts disclosed above for each of
these types of expenses.

These items are included in the “Other operating expenses,
net”/”Other income and gains” on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by the Group
as the employer to reduce the existing level of contributions.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S 7.

REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES

Directors’ remuneration

Directors’ remuneration paid during the year, disclosed pursuant
to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation,

is as follows:

31 March 2023 —E-=#=H=+—H

ESNSREEAEHERAMUES
FMES

EEME

BLEMBA - BB DQEEHGE383(1))
(b) » (ORMFERLABREESNEER) R
PIE=F > AEEXNESMES 2 REWT ¢

2023 2022
—E=-= —=—=
HK$000 HK$’000
BYTFT BHEFT
Fees: wWeE
Executive directors HITES 30 30
Independent non-executive directors BIHHITES 1,654 1,590
1,684 1,620
Other emoluments: HAihBi < -
Executive directors: HITES
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMRIIERSER 24,987 24,876
Performance related bonuses* RIBHMTEAT 8,746 20,961
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIKER T EIH 18 18
33,751 45,855
35,435 47,475
* The executive directors of the Company are entitled to discretionary * ARAHTEFZFTHBLL A EEEZ

performance payments not exceeding a certain percentage of the
profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company. The
performance related bonuses paid to each director were determined
with reference to the performance of the directors and the results
of the Group.

HrE & EEFIE T O EEBBIELN
RBHHTEAL - ENGLEEZREHHTE
ACRELFEZEF XL REB 2 FE
EE -

BAkELEFRAT —ZT-=F#



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R =E

31 March 2023 —E-=#=H=+—H

7. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’'S 7. EENESHEEASHMORENES

REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID SIES (&)
EMPLOYEES (continued)

Directors’ remuneration (continued) BEEWe(F)

(a) Independent non-executive directors () BUEHiTEE

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors
during the year were as follows:

REREXNFBILFATES2HE

mT
2023 2022
—Z-= —Z:-=
HK$'000 HK$°000
BYTFT BEF T
Au Son Yiu (note (i) BERWR (H17E (1)) 233 530
Cheng Shu Wing S 550 530
Law Brian Chung Nin EPE 550 530
Ho Lai Hong (note (ii)) o B R (Kt aE (i) 321 -
1,654 1,590
Notes: Bifat -
(i) Mr. Au Son Yiu retired as independent non-executive director (i) EBEBELER_E_—F)NA=+—
on 31 August 2022. ARFBTHBITESE °
(i)  Mr. Ho Lai Hong was appointed as an independent non- (i) HEEELER=F-Z—FNA=1+—
executive director on 31 August 2022. AEZFEBEVHHTES -
There were no other emoluments payable to the RERN UE(ZZE-_F : H)aB
independent non-executive directors during the year (2022: FHTESITHMME -
Nil).
(b)  Executive directors (b) HITEE
Salaries, Retirement
allowances  Performance benefit
and benefits related scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions  remuneration
e 2R 3] RINER
ik FELEF A SRR MWemE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
BYTT BETT BYTT BETFT
2023 —E-=f
Poon Bun Chak EWE 10 15,598 4,406 - 20,014
Poon Ho Tak EEE 10 2,414 2,490 18 4,932
Ting Kit Chung THER 10 6,975 1,850 - 8,835
30 24,987 8,746 18 33,781
2022 —E-fF
Poon Bun Chak EWE 10 15,514 10,596 - 26,120
Poon Ho Tak e 10 2,430 5,490 18 7,948
Ting Kit Chung THAE 10 6,932 4,875 - 11,817
30 24,876 20,961 18 45,885
Save as disclosed above, there was no arrangement PR ECFIEEE S URESHRFRY
under which a director waived or agreed to waive any FRENEIBDEREEFAHENZ
remuneration during the year or after the year end. B
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31 March 2023 —E-=#=H=+—H

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S 7. EEMNSRESEAEMERENES

REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID HES (@)
EMPLOYEES (continued)
Senior management’s remuneration BREBAEME
Senior management’s remuneration for the year was within the AEEEIXNEHREBEAEMESBR TSI
following bands: :
2023 2022
—g== —g-=
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
e
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 $#2,500,001 T2 % 43,000,007 1 1
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 2 7% %4,000,0007¢ 1 1
HK$11,500,001 to HK$12,000,000 #%11,500,001 70 Z % 412,000,0007 1 1
3 3
Five highest paid employees INBSHMES
The five highest paid employees during the year included three rERANESHFMEEERE= (=2
directors (2022: three), details of whose remuneration are set out F =) ESE HFEMWFBEEHNALENIE
in “Directors’ remuneration” above. Details of the remuneration EME IR - BTMU(ZZTE=F : ML) &
for the year of the remaining two (2022: two) highest paid SHMES (EXFERANTES) WAREEFHH
employees who are not directors of the Company are as follows: R

2023 2022

—EB-=F S
HK$'000 HK$°000
BT T JBEET T
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMRIRESER 15,786 15,693
Retirement benefit scheme contributions EIRERIFTEIHR 36 36
15,822 15,729

BAESEERAT —T-=5% @
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7.

8.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES (continued)

Five highest paid employees (continued)

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

7.

EENEfEBEAEMERANVNES
FiNES (@)

RUBRSHMES(H)
FEECXNHESESHWNESHEBRT
HIgaE :

Number of employees

EEAR

2023
—EB-=F

HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 713,500,001 £ & %54,000,0007C 1 1
HK$11,500,001 to HK$12,000,000 7B#11,500,001 7t 2 7%8%512,000,0007T 1 1
2 2

FINANCE COSTS 8. HKEA
2023 2022

—E-=F T
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T JBHF T
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts RITERRBEZFE 13,431 7,257
Interest on lease liabilities (note 14(b)) HEEBERNE (KE14(b)) 20,898 27,088
34,329 34,345
INCOME TAX 9. ®HE

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2022: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong during the year, except for one subsidiary of the Group
which is a qualifying entity under the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime. The first HK$2,000,000 (2022: HK$2,000,000) of assessable
profits of this subsidiary are taxed at 8.25% (2022: 8.25%) and the
remaining assessable profits are taxed at 16.5% (2022: 16.5%).

Pursuant to the PRC Income Tax Law and the respective
regulations, companies of the Group which operate in Mainland
China were subject to Corporate Income Tax (“CIT") at the rate
of 25% (2022: 25%) on the taxable profit for the years ended 31
March 2023 and 2022.

Certain companies of the Group which operate in Mainland China
were subject to CIT at the rate of 15% (2022: 15%) as a qualified
high and new technology enterprise and entitled to deduct
qualifying research and development expense from taxable profit
during the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023

ERFEHERFANS BRI (45T ER
BURRIUBIE16.5% (ZF=-_F : 16.5%)12
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BT EB%2000000T(ZB=-2F : B
#£2,000,0007T) Ky FER B R H1%8.25% (= F
TTF 0 8.25%) MBI RAT 0 SR T EERRL
FEAIZE16.5% (ZF==F : 16.5%) HIBL R

RIBPEIFIEBUERERER  AEERTE
AEEN AT BERBE_E_=FR=-F
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INCOME TAX (continued) 9.

Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at

BIE#E)
M EWFERFEHIE - DR AEmE
IS FE T 2 RB 2 B TR R E -

the rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group
operates.

2023 2022
—E-= —E_—

HK$000
BHEFT

HK$000
BT

Current - Hong Kong and Mainland China: RE-FERPEIKFE :

Charge for the year RNEEEE 19,239 76,711

Overprovision in prior years EEEREEE (20,081) (24,826)
Deferred (note 28) IRAE (f1E£28) 13,909 (40,076)
Total tax charge for the year REEREBEES 13,067 11,809

BRAAQNARAKRS BHME QBT RE
REE 2 FRBU AT R AR R E B R 5 8 2 B IR B
REAFEREEBEGERHNT ¢

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax using the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the
Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the
tax expense at the effective tax rates is as follows:

2023 2022
—E-=F

—E-—

HK$°000
JBMF T

HK$000
BRTT

Profit before tax BRBLADEF 76,168 198,518
Tax at the statutory tax rates BEAERENEE (22,541) 6,974
Adjustments in respect of current tax of REFENESBHBERFE

previous years (20,081) (24,826)

Profits and losses attributable to an associate JE{GEE A BB % - (4,751)

Income not subject to tax BRAHBZ WA (54,674) (27,421)
Expenses not deductible for tax o ER B < & A 36,516 27,244
Effect of withholding tax on the AL E R EME D B A H DK

distributable profits of the Group's PRC A NTEIR B E

subsidiaries (20,144) (6,361)
Unrecognised tax losses RIERFIEEE 89,001 72,835
Tax losses utilised from previous periods CEABRTHEZBIEEE (10,924) (1,333)
Recognition of deferred tax assets on EFWRE(BX)WELR EER

inventory gains/(losses) 16,069 (24,342)
Others Hith (155) (6,210)
Total tax charge for the year REEBIEBES 13,067 11,809

BAESEERAT —T-=5% @
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10. DIVIDENDS

1.

Interim dividend — HK10.0 cents

FHIRE -8
(2022: HK8.0 cents) per ordinary share (ZEB-—F : EH8.01L)

Proposed final dividend - HK10.0 cents

10. BE

(2022: HK10.0 cents) per ordinary share (Z2-F  #E110.00l)

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval
of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the Company, and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 1,381,696,104 (2022: 1,381,696,104) in issue during the
year.

The Company had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue
during the years ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022.
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11.

R AR B 5 10.01L

BRAHRE - SREEREE10.01L

2023 2022
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BEFT
138,170 110,536
138,170 138,170
276,340 248,706
REEHKZ RBREAFAD T RENEH
HONWRRBFAELES -

BEARAEEEERAEESRAER

EXgREBNSEDEAQAIEBESMA
ERLEZFEENERZFNECRITEER
1,381,696, 1041 (=T = =4 : 1,381,696,104
%) 2 IS IR BT o

RN T RE
——&=H
TE T 5| B

ZHF=ZAZT—HRK=E
EFEERTECHITHE

=2
—H
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i
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12. Y- BERRE
Furniture,
fixtures Motor
Leasehold Plant and and office vehicles
Buildings improvements machinery  equipment and yacht Total
& KBR
BF HESRFEE RBEREE  BOZERGE  NEREBE fi
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Vi BETr AEFI BETT BETT BETT
31 March 2023 ZE-=£Zf=1-H
At 1 April 2022: W_E-_—EmA-7:
Cost or valuation RASGE 1,284,634 997,891 3,252,460 252,674 110,754 5,898,413
Accumulated depreciation and ZEHTERAE
impairment (910,056) (954,665  (2,618,274) (180,891) (94,649)  (4,758,535)
Net carrying amount REFE 374,578 43,226 634,186 71,783 16,105 1,139,878

At 1 April 2022, net of accumulated ~ R=B==£NA-H -

depreciation and impairment EMBEHTERAE 374,578 13,226 634,186 7783 16,105 1,139,878
Additions RE - 29,758 105,550 18,137 1,552 160,997
Disposals RE - (7,276) (593) (4,543) (61) (12,473)
Depreciation provided during the FRITEERE(HiLs)

year (note 6) (40,244) (31,930) (122,076) (21,796) (6,783) (222,829)
Transfer from construction in BRERIR(MH15)

progress (note 15) 22,751 - 191,760 - - 214,511
Impairment (note 6) RE(His) - (339) - (198) - (537)
Foreign exchange adjustments NERZE (25,225) (1,024) (41,700) (6,588) (944) (75,481)
At 31 March 2023, net of RIBZ=F=f=+-H>

accumulated depreciation and BHNREGHTERAE

impairment 331,860 32,415 767,127 56,795 15,869 1,204,066
At 31 March 2023: RZB-=£=5=+-8:

Cost or valuation RAGEE 1,221,865 853,305 3,229,111 234,558 105,263 5,644,102

Accumulated depreciation and ZiERAE

impairment (890,005) (820,890) (2,461,984) (177,763) (89,394) (4,440,036)

Net carrying amount REFE 331,860 32,415 767,127 56,795 15,869 1,204,066
Analysis of cost or valuation: RSB -

At cost B 1,208,263 853,305 3,229,111 234,558 105,263 5,630,500

At 31 March 1992 valuation R-nA=#=ZA=t+-H

fbfE 13,602 - - - - 13,602
1,221,865 853,305 3,229,111 234,558 105,263 5,644,102

BAESEERAT —T-=5% @
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 12. Y% - BERRE®)
Furniture,
fixtures Motor
Leasehold Plant and and office vehicles
Buildings  improvements machinery  equipment and yacht Total
B RER
BF HEETEE HEREW  BOERE  OREREE CH
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
BETFT BETFT BETT BEFT BEFT BEFT
31 March 2022 “E-CEZA=1-H
At 1 April 2021: RZE=-%MA-R:
Cost or valuation RS E 1,240,003 960,268 3,289,775 286,027 110,941 5,887,014
Accumulated depreciation and ZEHTERAE
impairment (836,499) (922,416)  (2,666,367) (219,160) (96,090) (4,740,532
Net carrying amount REEE 403,504 37,852 623,408 66,867 14,851 1,146,482

At 1 April 2021, net of accumulated ~ R=F=-FMA-H -

depreciation and impairment BHREHITERAA 403,504 37,852 623,408 66,867 14,851 1,146,482
Additions RE 301 39,985 87,738 28,114 8,278 164,416
Disposals EE (208) (456) (16,168) (7,890) (800) (25,522)
Depreciation provided during the ~ ERTERE(Hi26)

year (note 6) (42,891) (34,199) (123,319) (18,663) (6,726) (225,798)
Transfer from construction in BEERIR(MH15)

progress (note 15) - - 38,479 - - 38,479
Foreign exchange adjustments MNERE 13,872 44 24,048 3,355 502 41,821
At 31 March 2022, net of RIB-ZF=f=+-H-

accumulated depreciation and ENRESHTERAE

impairment 374,578 43,226 634,186 71,783 16,105 1,139,878
At 31 March 2022: RZE-Z#=A=1+-H:

Cost or valuation BAS{EE 1,284,634 997,891 3,252,460 252,674 110,754 5,898,413

Accumulated depreciation and ZERAE

impairment (910,056) (954,665) (2,618,274) (180,891) (94,649) (4,758,535)

Net carrying amount REFE 374,578 43,26 634,186 71,783 16,105 1,139,878
Analysis of cost or valuation: B EE -

At cost B 1,271,032 997,891 3,252,460 252,674 110,754 5,884,811

At 31 March 1992 valuation R=ANZEZA=1-H

ftfE 13,602 - - - - 13,602
1,284,634 997,891 3,252,460 252,674 110,754 5,898,413
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12.

13.

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

As at 31 March 2023, the Group’s management identified certain
retail shops of its retailing and distribution of casual apparel
and accessories business which continued to underperform;
and estimated the recoverable amounts of the corresponding
property, plant and equipment. Based on these estimates, an
impairment loss of HK$537,000 (2022: Nil) was recognised during
the year to write-down the carrying amount of these items of
property, plant and equipment to their recoverable amount as at
31 March 2023. The recoverable amount of the items of property,
plant and equipment is determined based on a value in use
calculation using cash flow projections based on financial budgets
covering the remaining lease terms. The pre-tax discount rate
applied to the cash flow projection ranged from 14.4% to 16.0%.

Certain medium term leasehold land and buildings were revalued
in 1992 by independent professionally qualified valuers. Since
1993, no further revaluation of the Group’s leasehold land and
buildings had been carried out as the Group has relied upon the
exemption granted under the transitional provisions in paragraph
80A of HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment, from the
requirement to carry out future revaluations of its property, plant
and equipment which were stated at valuation at that time. Had
such leasehold land and buildings been carried at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation, their carrying amounts would have
been approximately HK$535,000 (2022: HK$971,000).

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

REFREE
REMFEL R EW S FHE
(hrete)

Carrying amount at beginning of year
Net fair value gain on investment
properties (note 6)

RERREE

Carrying amount at end of year

12.

13.

31 March 2023 —E-=#=H=+—H

M BRERSEE®E)
BE2023F3A310 ' AEEEEERIAET
REAXENERERMNZTERDENTE
& EETEEYNE  BERZENTHRE S
B o REBZEMT WAFRERAREESE
ABHE537,000c(ZE-—F : &) > HgE
Ly BMERSBEENREEMEZE -2
“=F=ZA=t+-HBMNTKRESE - E 0 K
ERZEEENTERSELRIEERAEEST
EREN  ZEAEENTERERESRE
AR ZREAREFRUENRERIGEEHR
MEKTEE - EARBESRETRANITRRE
EA14.4%%16.0% °

BOPHEELHREFBR-ANZFEE
NEXEMGEEMETEML - ARBE-NAZ=
Fe WEHEHASIHREFHEE—SE
EE BAEEREBSERE1657Y
#  BERREFOARBEMRI - #%5H
HEBUERMMEARNYSX - BEREREEHN
RERBFER - MZEHEL B RETFTRE
SERARREITEIR - HREERNSBYE
535,000t (= Z =% : j8¥971,0007T) °

REWE
2023 2022
—E_-= —E_—
HK$000 HK$’000
BT BHEFT
532,077 517,995
11,328 14,082
543,405 532,077
BAkELEFRAT —ZT-=F#
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13.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The investment properties with a carrying value of
HK$543,405,000 (2022: HK$532,077,000) are situated in Hong
Kong. The Group’s investment properties consist of 12 (2022: 12)
industrial properties in Hong Kong. The directors of the Company
have determined that the investment properties consist of one
class of asset, i.e., industrial, based on the nature, characteristics
and risks of each property.

The investment properties in Hong Kong were revalued on 31
March 2023 based on valuations performed by Chung, Chan &
Associates, independent professionally qualified valuer. Each
year, the Company’s board of directors decides to appoint which
external valuer to be responsible for the external valuations
of the Group’s properties. Selection criteria include market
knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional
standards are maintained. The Group’s financial controller has
discussions with the valuer on the valuation assumptions and
valuation results once a year when the valuation is performed for
annual financial reporting.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under

operating leases, further summary details of which are included
in note 14 to the financial statements.
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
Fair value hierarchy
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s investment properties:

13. BEWHE#®)
ARBEER
TREAAEDREYEN D ABHBER

Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2023
R-B==
Quoted
prices

= —=

in active
markets

IR R
™IS RE
(Level 1)
(B—%)
HK$°000
EBETT

AT R IR
DAfEE

T -

Recurring fair value
measurement for:
Industrial properties

Significant
observable
inputs

BEX
AEEN
[TPN-¢-
(Level 2)
(B=%&)
HK$°000
BT T

Significant
unobservable
inputs
BEARFH
B

A B
(Level 3)
(B=#)
HK$’000
BT T

543,405

F=ZA=t+—-HNAAEFERA

Total
BE
HK$’000
BT T

543,405

Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2022

REB-=F=ZA=1+—HNAAREFTERA

Quoted

prices
in active
markets

Significant
observable
inputs

BX

Significant
unobservable
inputs

EATA

AV B ATERER MY N

TiZHRE [P ¢ A IE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(EE—4R) (E=#) (B=4R) Wz
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
BHEFT BT BT T BT T

Recurring fair value AT EEEMEMN
measurement for: AREGE
Industrial properties TH#EF - - 532,077 532,077
BAEEEFRLE —T-=F%
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 13. REWHE @)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) RABEERE)
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value FR E-REE_FEIREMARE
measurement between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into STEMNER FMERAE=REAZEL(ZZ
or out of Level 3 (2022: Nil). TTEFE) o
Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within PEARAE=ZFAABEERNAABETTELER

Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

Industrial
properties

I¥iEF
HK$000
BT T
Carrying amount at 1 April 2021 R-ZE-—FMA—BIRAE 517,995
Net gain from fair value adjustments AREFAERRFRE 14,082

Carrying amount at 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022 &

—ECCFNA-BREE 532,077
Net gain from fair value adjustments ARERARRSFH 11,328
Carrying amount at 31 March 2023 RZE-Z=F=A=+—HKHAE 543,405
Set out below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and UTAREMEGEMANGES EREEH
the key inputs to the valuation of investment properties: ABENBE

Valuation techniques Significant unobservable inputs

fhER % EXTUBENBAZE

Industrial properties Income approach Estimated rental value HK$6.3 to HK$19.9 HK$6.3 to HK$22.1
located in Hong Kong: W& i (per sq.ft. and per month) BH63TE 199 Bke 3T BE2.17
UREBNIRET S BEEFIRRES)
Market yield 2.9% t0 3.1% 2.8% t03.3%
mi5lEE
Direct comparison Unit market price HK$4,202 HK$3,930
approach (per sq.ft) B#4,2027T E13,9307T
BELEE BEUNSEEFIR)
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Income approach

Under the income approach, fair value is estimated on the basis
of capitalisation of existing rental income.

The market rentals of the investment properties are assessed
and capitalised at the market yield expected by investors for this
type of properties. The market rents are assessed by reference
to the rentals achieved in the investment properties as well as
other lettings of similar properties in the neighbourhood. The
market yield, which is the capitalisation rate adopted, is made
by reference to the yields derived from analysing the sales
transactions of similar properties and adjusted to take account of
the valuers’ knowledge of the market expectation from property
investors to reflect factors specific to the Group’s investment
properties.

The key inputs were the market rent, the market yield and
the estimated cost to completion, which a significant increase/
decrease in the market rent in isolation would result in a
significant increase/decrease in the fair value of the investment
properties and a significant increase/decrease in the market yield
and the estimated cost to completion in isolation would result in
a significant decrease/increase in the fair value of the investment
properties.

Direct comparison approach

Under the market approach, fair value is estimated by the direct
comparison method on the assumption of the sale of the property
interest with the benefit of vacant possession and by making
reference to comparable sales transactions as available in the
market.

The valuation takes into account the characteristics of the
investment properties, which include the location, size, layout,
view, floor level, year of completion and other factors collectively,
to arrive at the market price per unit.

The key input was the market price per unit, where a significant
increase/decrease in the market price would result in a significant
increase/decrease in the fair value of the investment properties.

13.

31 March 2023 —E-=#=H=+—H
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14. LEASES 14. #HE

REBERBEBA
FEBEEELEHTEANSERE L1
BFOEESRE @ EATHMET — RS
EAEEZRLHHEENKRRESHERR20E
SOEMMEE L - I B MARHEMNN - BFH
E-REA2Z25FWHER - B -LBEY
FHERWEESE > TESE—TH -

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of leasehold land
and premises used in its operations. Lump sum payments were
made upfront to acquire the leased land from the owners with
lease periods of 20 to 50 years, and no ongoing payments will be
made under the terms of these land leases. Leases of premises
generally have lease terms between 2 and 25 years. There are
several lease contracts that include variable lease payments, which
are further discussed below.

(a)  Right-of-use assets (a) EFESE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and EENFERAEEERDARERESHN
the movements during the year are as follows: T

Leasehold land Premises Total
T BF &&t
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000
BT T BT T BT T
As at 1 April 2021 R-ZE-—FWAF—H 113,453 417,300 530,753
Additions Hriz - 273,934 273,934
Depreciation (note 6) e (Hte6) (4,695) (234,419) (239,114)
Revision of a lease term arising ERA[#ENHEE
from a change in the BARRE B MAELEN
non-cancellable period HEEE
of a lease - (11,869) (11,869)
Impairment loss recognised EERZRERE
(note 6) (Kiite) - (40,769) (40,769)
Exchange realignment & H R (63) 11,779 11,716
As at 31 March 2022 and N-E-_—_&=8
1 April 2022 =t+—HK
ZE--FMA—H 108,695 415,956 524,651
Additions g - 107,307 107,307
Depreciation (note 6) e (fft6) (2,490) (156,121) (158,611)
Revision of a lease term arising RETRA[#ENHEE
from a change in the BARRE BN M A
non-cancellable period HEBET
of a lease - (47,347) (47,347)
Impairment loss recognised ERERZRHERRE
(note 6) (KizF6) - (6,013) (6,013)
Exchange realignment BEE 54, %R (512) (14,682) (15,194)
As at 31 March 2023 R-ZBE-_=F=H
=+—H 105,693 299,100 404,793
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14. LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(a)

(b)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

As at 31 March 2023, the Group’s management identified
certain retail shops of its retailing and distribution of
casual apparel and accessories business which continued
to underperform; and estimated the recoverable amounts
of the corresponding right-of-use assets. Based on these
estimates, an impairment loss of HK$6,013,000 (2022:
HK$40,769,000) was recognised during the year to write-
down the carrying amount of these items of right-of-
use assets to their recoverable amount of Nil (2022:
HK$74,015,000) as at 31 March 2023. The recoverable
amount of the items of right-of-use assets is determined
based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering the
remaining lease terms. The pre-tax discount rate applied
to the cash flow projection ranged from 14.4% to 16.0%.
(2022: 12.6% to 18.0%).

Lease liabilities
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements
during the year are as follows:

RMUA— BREE
oS
BERZ(H7ZE8)
HEARE 220195 EBRES

Carrying amount at 1 April

New leases

Accretion of interest (note 8)
COVID-19-related rent concessions

from lessors HERENEESR R
Payments (MBS
Revision of leases term arising from AR EENEE
changes in the non-cancellable HARRE B MAEERN
period of leases HEBT
Exchange realignment & H R

Carrying amount at 31 March

Analysed into: DT
Current portion 5 R ER (D
Non-current portion RHIEBD

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note
37 to the financial statements.

31 March 2023 —E-=#=H=+—H

14. #BE @)

FEBEREEAHE)
(a) RAREEHE)

(b)

R=A=+—HERHE

RZZ-=F=A=+—0  &xEEE
BEEHERRGY2SERDHE
BHEANTETRRBETENTES
o WEFEEFEREEENTRES
B REZEMET  REAFEREER
REE B A8%6,013,000T (ZFE==
& : #B%40,769,0007T) ¢ LA ELEAE
AEEEEENEREMRZE T ==
FZA=+t-HAMTKRESEZTIT(=
T4 1 B%74,0150007T) © fFH
BEEBRENTEKREHERREEAE
BtEREN  ZERAEENTER

RRERETEE  ZHREREFFEUER
REF KA EHRMNIEEE - AR
BEeREBVANTEREER14.4%F
16.0% (ZZ-Z"F : 12.6%Z£18%) °

HERRE
HESBREERZBHNT -

2023 2022
—EB-=fF g
HK$°000 HK$’000
EETFT BT T
577,236 540,987
107,307 273,934
20,898 27,088
(1,021) (4,493)
(171,245) (264,679)
(86,755) (11,806)
(30,397) 16,205
416,023 577,236
117,871 176,824
298,152 400,412
416,023 577,236

RS 5 B DA AR RN 37
I o
EkEREAFRAT —ZT-=F%
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31 March 2023 —E-=#=H=+—H

14. LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(c)

(d)

The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases

are as follows:

14.

HE =)
REBEREBA(F)
() RIEHPEIHAHEHEYLENT -

2023 2022
—E=-= —E——
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Interest on lease liabilities HEAEMNE 20,898 27,088
Depreciation for right-of-use assets FRAEEENE 158,611 239,114
Expense relating to short-term leases ISR ERENER (KHe)

(note 6) 163,426 104,763
Impairment of right-of-use assets FRAEEERE 6,013 40,769
Variable lease payments not included in AT HERTEIE

the measurement of lease liabilities EHE8EWTESP (Mite)

(note 6) 83,223 209,160
(Gain)/loss on leases term arising from AR EENA SR EEMm

changes in the non-cancellable period EEWASBIT 2 (k) EE

of leases (39,408) 63
COVID-19-related rent concessions 2019 2 EARE S HENE SRR

(note 6) (Ktzte) (1,021) (4,493)
Total amount recognised in profit or loss RIBHE PRI LIES T 391,742 616,464

Variable lease payments (d) HEEHEEM

The Group leased a number of retail stores and units in
shopping malls which contain variable lease payment
terms that are based on the Group’s turnover generated
from the retail stores and the units in the shopping malls.
There are also minimum annual base rental arrangements
for these leases. The amounts of the fixed and variable
lease payments for the current year for these leases were
HK$171,245,000 (2022: HK$264,679,000) and HK$83,223,000
(2022: HK$209,160,000), respectively.

The Group has various lease contracts that have not yet
commenced as at 31 March 2023. The future undiscounted
lease payments for these non-cancellable lease contracts
are HK$7,104,000 (2022: HK $5,899,000) within one year
and HK$13,308,000 (2022: HK$8,912,000) after one year but
within five years.
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AEBEBNTONFET HSEER
KB B EEEABY B
B RO IS M T R AR
NBEEHHEL  ELA AR
MEEEARSRY - BLERERSE
ERANEENTRERRED RS
#5171,245000 T (Z 2= ZF : B
264,679,000 7T ) & 8 % 83,223,000 7T
TR 1 ##209,160,0007T) ©

AEEBR-ZE-_=F=A=+—-HBAH4
KAEABRNSERESE - BLETATH
HYHESRMNARRATERAERE—
FRBEBUET, 104,000 (ZBE=F :
7%5,899,0007T) ' —FRERAFRE
7% 13,308,000 T (ZE - F : B
8,912,0007T) ©



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

14. LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(e)  The Group has several lease contracts that include extension
options. These options are negotiated by management to
provide flexibility in managing the leased-asset portfolio
and they are aligned with the Group’s business needs. These
leases generally have lease terms of two to four years with
an additional extension period of two to three years. These
options were not included in the measurement of the lease
liabilities as of 31 March 2023 because it is not reasonably
certain that the leases will be renewed.

(f) The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 31(c) to
the financial statements.

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 13) consisting of
12 (2022: 12) industrial properties in Hong Kong under operating
lease arrangements. The terms of the leases generally require
the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent
adjustments according to the then prevailing market conditions.
Rental income recognised by the Group during the year was
HK$14,402,000 (2022: HK$13,887,000), details of which are
included in note 6 to the financial statements.

At 31 March 2023, the undiscounted lease payments receivable
by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating
leases with its tenants are as follows:

R—FR
EEEAF(BEEEMF)

Within one year
In the second to fifth years, inclusive

31 March 2023 —E-=#=H=+—H

14. #BE @)

KEBERFRBEA(E)

(e) FEEBLMHEFELHEEENEES
E - BLRERATEERRUREMRE
BHEEEASHNETYE - XAEFR
BEAEEWEBER - ZEHIWAE
EEH-REMEME - WA LUEEINE
EME=F - HRHAREEEREHAE
EESEY it REREY RERE
R-B-=F=-A=+—-HAWNHEEEE

HEET

() HERSRHLFESKENYHRKRM

5$31(c) °
AEBEFEREHEA
AEERBLAEHEZHALBETURES
WI2(ZB=ZF  12)AIEEFZREY

E(MEE13) - MARRTI —REBRBEFL LM
FRBEERAERRFERHSREMMFEHA
ERE - AEERFAER 2ES WA LB
14,402,000t (=== £ : j8%13,887,000
7T)  FIEEN SRR ARG o

R=F==F=A=1+—-0  FTEEREEX
METZZ T A HEHE 2 ARG EEREE
RBEZEBMERDT

2023 2022
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT

17,155 17,255
7,570 2,963
24,725 20,218

BAkELEFRAT —ZT-=F#
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31 March 2023 —E-=#=H=+—H

15. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

At beginning of year REHD
Additions NE

Transfer to property, plant and

equipment (note 12) (HaE12)
Foreign exchange adjustments SNERE
At end of year REXR

16. TRADEMARKS

AR IREE

Cost and carrying amount

Trademarks are regarded as having indefinite useful lives because
the products with the trademarks are expected to generate net
cash flows indefinitely.

Impairment testing of trademarks with indefinite useful lives
Trademarks are allocated to a group of retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and accessories cash-generating units for
impairment testing.

The value of trademarks with indefinite useful lives is assessed
annually by using the relief-from royalty method calculated
based on a five-year cash flow projection approved by senior
management. The recoverable amount of the trademarks was
equal to the future royalty savings resulting from ownership of
the assets.
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B - BERRE

15. EEIRE
2023 2022
:g: = :;i::

HK$’000 HK$°000

BEF T BT T

128,657 28,358

102,907 135,700
(214,511) (38,479)

(11,835) 3,078

5,218 128,657

16. B

2023 2022
—EB-=fF

=
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT

33,293 33,293

ARER AR ES N E A F R ERMZE
BNERTERHELERESFRA -

EREAFHBRRNRENR
BAERIEZERRGIZERTHEA—A
REeEEBEuERERNR -

ERXERAFHBEENEESFUENEHE X
BESREBABHENTFREREMT -
ARZAWESEEERNERZEEMEGEN
RREFE -
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17.

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

31 March 2023 —E-=#=H=+—H

TRADEMARKS (continued) 16. EE@®)

Impairment testing of trademarks with indefinite useful lives ERFAFEHEENRENR(E)
(continued)

The key assumptions, including the royalty savings rate, sales ARESFRFIEEFEREIRNEER
annual growth rate and pre-tax discount rate, used in the annual BNEFBHEE HEFERERBAIME
impairment testing of trademarks with indefinite useful lives are =T

as follows:

Royalty savings rate BHREHEXR 1.5% 1.5%
Sales annual growth rate HEFIERE 2.0% 2.0%
Pre-tax discount rates A ERIR = 15.6% - 17.3% 13.8% - 19.3%
The sales annual growth rate is the average annual growth rate FRRMEEFIEREARABMBNFIIFIER
over the forecast period. It is based on past performance and L WERUARRREEBHMSEEN
management’s expectations of market development. FEER o
The royalty savings rate used is with reference to comparable FIRNERNESREXEN2RER —REAZSE
intangible assets and the related royalty rates that the buyers BEEMIXANAILE BT EEREREANEE

typically pay for the use of such assets.

The pre-tax discount rates used are before tax and reflect specific FR MY BRIR R T B A 3b = FRARBA B8 V45 E /B
risks relating to the relevant units. B o
The values assigned to key assumptions are consistent with PEREFEHEENEEEMEEMRFE—E -

external information sources.

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 17. RBMERR2RE

In the prior year, the Group acquired an additional 50% equity REFE  AEEQEMBE=FRRWE
interest in Megawell from the other shareholders, which are BEREIIS0%BE  SERERAEEENES
independent third parties of the Group and Megawell become a EfEATR -

wholly-owned subsidiary since then.

The following table illustrates the financial information of the TREJEAEBMZLFENBEHE AT 2
Group's associate that is not material: B ER
2022
—E——
HK$’000
BT T
Share of the associate’s profit and total REEREGEE DT
comprehensive income for the year wA R ZEWA 28,795
Dividend received 2R E 34,421

BAESEERAT —T-=5% @
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31 March 2023 —E-=#=H=+—H

18.

19.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss:

Unlisted investments, at fair value

Less: non-current portion

L IERENER D

REIER

Current portion

The above unlisted investments as at 31 March 2023 and 2022
were investment products issued by financial institutions. They
were mandatorily as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss as their contractual cash flows are not solely payments of
principal and interest.

DEBT INSTRUMENTS AT AMORTISED COST

Debt instruments at amortised cost REEHERANERIA
- Hong Kong —-B8
— Elsewhere —Hiih =
Less: accumulated impairment W BEORE
Less: non-current portion B IERENED
Current portion TRENERLD

The debt investments at amortised cost represent investments in
listed debt instruments, with fixed interest return.

The investments had an aggregate nominal value of
HK$104,040,000 (2022: HK$173,513,000), and bore interest at
rates ranging from 1.60% to 8.75% per annum (2022: 3.43% to
8.75% per annum). The amortised cost of the debt instruments at
amortised cost was computed as the amount initially recognised
minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative
amortisation using the effective interest rate method of any
difference between the initially recognised amount and the
maturity amount.
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18.

FLEWRE - ROANE

19.

BAREFABENERMEE

2023
—EB-=F

2022
—E-C

HK$’000
BT T

HK$’000
BT

BAREFABZNEREE !

41,350 53,132
(23,986) (50,786)
17,364 2,346

R-B-=FR-ZT-_F=A=+—H  t
MIFEHRESSHBBRITZREER - H
REZEERNENESRTBEEERSRAE
T AZERMSEIBERBRAAETAE
HHERMERE -

RE#ENEANERIA
2023 2022
—E-=F T

HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT
71,133 79,097
32,655 94,102
103,788 173,199
(63,571) (64,088)
40,217 109,111
(14,860) (30,102)
25,357 79,009

ZRCHBERANEB T ASRENEGEEF
BEHz LHEBIA -

ZEREMNEFTEER B 104,040,000 T
(ZEB=Z—% : #%173,513,0007T) » FF
ZH1.60%E875% ("B __F :343% %
8.75%) - ME MR ANBEHE TA 2 S #eH
R E DR EERNSEREATEEN
A& B LESREEABRREAEDRE
REeFEHINPASBE o ZRNRTHE AT
Ho
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31 March 2023 —E-=#=H=+—H

19. DEBT INSTRUMENTS AT AMORTISED COST (continued)  19.

The movements in provision for impairment of debt instruments

RE#BERANEEIE®m)
ROBMERANEE TERERBNSHN

at amortised cost are as follows: T

20.

2023 2022

—E=-= —E——
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
At beginning of year REA 64,088 66,908
Reversal of impairment recognised (note 6) BB B (Ke) (517) (2,820)
At end of year RER 63,571 64,088

Included in the above provision for impairment of debt
instruments at amortised cost is a provision for certain individually
impaired investments of HK$63,571,000 (2022: HK$64,088,000)
with a carrying amount before provision of HK$73,228,000 (2022:
HK$73,886,000). These impaired investments relate to debtors
that were in financial difficulties and were in default in interest
and principal payments and most of the balance is expected to be
irrecoverable.

The impaired debt investments were considered to have high
credit risk, and the loss allowance recognised during the year
was therefore measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected
losses. The decrease in the loss allowance was due to o decrease
in credit risk of default in interest and principal payments.

INVENTORIES

20.

ELMZEEERANER T ARERETE
EE TEEBIHBENIREB%63,571,000T
(ZEB-—F : #¥%64,088,0007T) + EBEA
BRE{E A 81£73,228,000 T (ZB= =% : &
#573,886,0007T) °c ZECRHENRERER
BERAREBRERZEEITEENERE
SWE - BRI ASHHEELINE o

HEEBRENRAEASERRR - BitR
FRABIANWERBRRENREFHNERE
RSB - BRBERD ZHRFEMA

ENENZNREBEE -

FE

2023
—EB-=F

HK$000
BRTT

2022
—E-—

HK$°000
JBMF T

Raw materials B 316,030 776,540
Work in progress ER® 213,227 325,835
Finished goods R m 836,812 1,224,033
Consumables ERYH 153,820 157,740
1,519,889 2,484,148

EAEREFRAT —ZT-=FRH
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21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 21. BUWRARRERE

®

Trade receivables FEWRBRTR
Impairment A
Bills receivable EREE

The carrying amount of bills receivable approximated to their
fair value as at 31 March 2023 and 2022. Their recoverability was
assessed with reference to the credit status of the debtors, and
the expected credit losses as at 31 March 2023 and 2022 were
considered to be minimal.

Payment terms for the Group’s customers mainly range from
“cash before delivery” to “90 days from the date of invoice”. A
significant portion of the customers trade with the Group under
documentary credit terms. The Group seeks to maintain strict
credit control on its outstanding receivables and has a policy to
manage its credit risk. Since the Group'’s trade receivables relate to
a large number of customers, there is no significant concentration
of credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral over its
trade receivable balances, certain trade receivable balances are
covered by trade insurance policy arranged by the Group for
minimizing the credit risk. Trade receivables are non-interest-
bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss
allowance of HK$26,707,000 (2022: HK$29,346,000), is as follows:

Within 90 days 90H R

Over 90 days 90B M L
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2023 2022
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BEFT

589,079 935,897
(26,707) (29,346)
562,372 906,551
239,822 219,877

ERRENREEEAR-ZE-_=FR_-F
TTEZAZT-ANARERE - ATKE
HRSEEBANERRRTMEEN  R2F
CEERZBECFEZRA=+-BNRHEE
BREFERAMTRE -

REBEFIERPBIEREE IZ[#RA
BHI90K | - HPAEEREMD 2 U= ARER
EBETRS - ARBYHRRFIRER —ER
EEFTENEREERR - ARAEEER
REREERSER  BLHIBERNEEEHR
B o A EE I H W IRR AR EEM
Eifm  AEEARERIEERARMARD
FEW R AL P E B RBEUR - BUIRRA
FERIEL o

REFER - RBEFARRIORISRBEBE
26,707,000 7T (= = =% : ##29,346,000
TO) B ZBEBERA AR AT

2023 2022
—ZEq-= —E-_—F
HK$’000 HK$000
BYFT BT
417,019 831,462
145,353 75,089
562,372 906,551
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TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

Movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade

receivables are as follows:

31 March 2023 —E-=#=H=+—H

EWERR R B (%)
FEWEBRZOREIS A BENEBMT

At beginning of year RELD
Reversal of impairment (note 6) RAER B (fEE6)
At end of year RER

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The
provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of
various customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by
geographical region, product type and coverage by other forms
of credit insurance). The calculation reflects the probability-
weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting date
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions. Generally, trade receivables are written
off if past due for more than one year and are not subject to
enforcement activity.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure
on the Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix:

Retail and distribution of casual apparel and accessories:

As at 31 March 2023

2023 2022
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BEFT

29,346 51,472
(2,639) (22,126)
26,707 29,346

RERE B BRBBEAE R ETRED T AT
ERMEEER - BEZRDREEBRUESE
B2 ZE%F 2 MAER 2 EH B (BRiE
HEE - ERENURAMEERRRZE
HHEB D) FE o WIEFERRIFARINE
HR - SRCREEERNRSINRBES
E -~ BAARR R AR RGBT FRR S 2E
ERARPER - —RME - EZEBERRAY
BHBB-FRBAZRNBEBTEDAT
LA

T XHFIE R E A R E 2 EURRK
AREFEERBZER

ERRE 2 ZERDH

R-ZBZ=F=ZA=+—H

Past due
(=gt

Less than
90 days
DHR0K

Current
=8
Expected credit loss rate RHEEBER 0.19%
Gross carrying amount IREZE
(HK$°000) (EB#FT) 64,926
Expected credit losses FEHEERSE
(HK$°000) (BHFT) (124)

0.00% 47.39% 18.34%

24,627 56,100 145,653

- (26,583) (26,707)

BAESEERAT —T-=5% @
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21.

22.

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)
Retail and distribution of casual apparel and accessories:
(continued)

As at 31 March 2022

21.

EWERA R B8 ()
ERREHGYBERH  (F)

R-ZB-_—_f=B=+—H

Current
=8
Expected credit loss rate FEHEERFEER 0.19%
Gross carrying amount BREAE
(HK$°000) (BHTFT) 145,171
Expected credit losses FEHEERE
(HK$°000) (BHTFT) (277)

Past due
BEH
Less than Over
90 days 90 days
SiNCTIPS HBIOK
0.05% 69.18% 13.26%
34,190 41,995 221,356
17) (29,052) (29,346)

Production, dyeing and sale of knitted fabric, yarn and garments:

As at 31 March 2023, the gross carrying amount of trade
receivables measured at amortised cost for this segment was
HK$443,426,000 (2022: HK$714,541,000), of which the expected
credit loss was minimal.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

o IEREED

Less: non-current portion:

- long-term prepayments —REFEARIE
- long-term rental deposits -REHESES
Current portion TRENEE D

Deposits and other receivables mainly represent rental deposits
and deposits with suppliers. In situations where no comparable
companies with credit ratings can be identified, expected credit
losses are estimated by applying a loss rate approach with
reference to the historical loss record. The loss rate is adjusted to
reflect the current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions, as appropriate. The loss rate applied as at 31 March
2023 and 2022 was insignificant.
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22.

FENFIE » AT RHEARBERR

HEH  MOREMIRZEHRER

REZBZ=F=ZA=+—0 ko ENZRE#
£H PR AN B FELUR BR 71 BR T 4218 5 78 15 443,426,000
TT(ZEZZF : Bl714,541,000T) - HFFE
HEEBBEYTRE -

FNRIR » s &R E ALY AR

2023

—B-=fF

2022
—E-—

HK$000
JBIF T

HK$°000
BETT

320,665 400,841
(1,799) (14,530)

(66,540) (69,518)

252,326 316,793

BERAMBREREREHERERA T
ez % - REERB AR EENRCTL
EBABZERT - A2EELEBLEER
BEREUETRREERE - ZBBRRETH
B BRE AT R B AR SR A R (20E )
2R - EREE LASRENSREEETH
REBHNBHNEURRER - N=T==
FR-ZZBZZEZ A= T BHNBERBET
EBRMTRE -
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24.

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Forward currency contracts: RHMEEH
Assets EE
Liabilities a&

The Group has entered into various forward currency contracts
to manage its exchange rate exposures which did not meet the
criteria for hedge accounting. Changes in the fair value of non-
hedging currency derivatives amounting to HK$3,122,000 (2022:
credit of HK$7,353,000) were debited to the statement of profit
or loss during the year.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

RERBITFER
REIZH=EAREHz
T
RETZA=EANRERHZ
T

Cash and bank balances

Time deposits with original maturity
within three months when acquired

Time deposits with original maturity of
over three months when acquired

At the end of the reporting period, the above balances include
cash and bank balances denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") of
HK$401,998,000 (2022: HK$473,482,000).

RMB in Mainland China is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, and Sale
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Time and structured deposits are made for periods
less than or equal to one year depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective
short term time and structured deposit rates. The bank balances,
time and structured deposits are placed with creditworthy banks.

31 March 2023 —E-=#=H=+—H

TTHEERMIA
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BEFT
7,513 8,251
5,829 5,395

AEECEITZENFEEASTERNERE
NEGHLUEBEERRR - RER - RNER
RPHBROFEFIESTEEENAAEE
BHEE3,122,0000(Z B ZF : LB
7,353,0007T) °

RERBRESEEY

2023 2022

HK$°000 HK$°000

BEFT BETFT

552,301 631,782

1,032,468 363,458

342,667 1,368,748

1,927,436 2,363,988

REBESRR  UEEREEUARBEE 2R
S RIBITFRER401,998,000c (===
F : j8%473,482,000T) °

ARERMEREREAHARAEMER -
RIEPEREMINEERIRPINREE - EBER
NEEERTE  AEEEEEBEREETIH
BB ZRITIEARBRBBHMEY -

RITERRES BRITERFRREUTBH S =X
ME - ERRAEBUER2ERBA—FHU
T BFAEEZARREFRME - WRE
EHMESREBETERARRIAL - R1TF7
RREMREBUERENEERFARIT -

BAkELEFRAT —ZT-=F#



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R =E

31 March 2023 —E-=#=H=+—H

25. TRADE PAYABLES 25. FE{SERRX
2023 2022
—E=-= —E——
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Trade payables FE(SERR 435,979 908,449
An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the RBERR  REZEQBH2ENRFIIRERD T
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: mT

2023 2022
—E=-= —E——
HK$°000 HK$000
BT T BT T
Within 90 days 90HA 425,380 860,984
Over 90 days 90B M 10,599 47,465
435,979 908,449
At the end of the reporting period, the trade payables are non- RBEER  BHRAAFHER —KREBIOX
interest-bearing and are normally settled on 90-day terms. HYBRER -
26. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES 26. HittfENRARETEE
2023 2022
—EB-=F —=-=
Notes HK$°000 HK$000
Biat BT T BT
Other payables H{th FE{TBRFX 216,707 316,360
Accrued liabilities EEtas 288,732 230,301
Contract liabilities aHaE (a) 18,527 24,924
Provision for reinstatement costs 1E18 R AR (b) 17,795 18,261
541,761 589,846
Less: non-current portion W ERE D (9,999) (9,160)
Current portion MENER D 531,762 580,686
Other payables and certain accrued liabilities are non-interest- Hit AR E TEAEEREWE - BF
bearing and have an average term of three months. BEREA=MEA -
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

26. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

(continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

Details of contract liabilities as at 31 March 2023 and 2022 are as
follows:

31 March 2023 —E-=#=H=+—H

26. HittENERRREGEE ®)

Advances received from customers W EFET
— Sale of goods —HEED
Customer loyalty programmes FEFERHGE

Contract liabilities include short-term advances received to deliver
goods and customer loyalty programme reward points. The decrease
in contract liabilities in the year ended 31 March 2023 was mainly
due to the decrease in short-term advances received from customers
in relation to the sale of goods and the decrease in customer loyalty
programme reward points.

The movements in the provision for reinstatement during the year
are as follows:

wiE -
(@) R-E-ZFR-F-_—F=ZA=+—A2
BRIEEFEWT :

2023 2022

—¥== —E-—fF

HK$'000 HK$000

EEFT HETT

11,535 13,074

6,992 11,850

18,527 24,924

BREBEEIEBI N E KR Z R
BREFEHAN B CERERS - REE=F
CEZFZ A=t —HUEFERASHEREFTA
g FERRREF G B REES
BAEMPTE 850 A3 & K ig & P U
Z IR BB HH o

(b) EEAFBEEFAZBUT

HK$°000

BT T
At 1 April 2021 R-E-—FGH—H 18,334
Addition during the year FRFE 1,050
Utilised during the year FREH (1,252)
Exchange alignment B 129
At 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022 REE-——F=Zf=+—AR=-F=—FmWHF—H 18,261
Addition during the year FRFE 600
Utilised during the year EREH (750)
Exchange alignment EZHE (316)
At 31 March 2023 RoFE-=F=F=+—H 17,795

Pursuant to the terms of the respective tenancy agreements
entered into by the Group, the Group is required to return its
leased properties to the conditions as stipulated in the tenancy
agreements at the expiration of the corresponding lease term as
appropriate. The provision for reinstatement costs was estimated
based on certain assumptions and estimates made by the Group’s
management with reference to historical reinstatement costs and/or
other available market information. The estimation basis is reviewed
on an ongoing basis and revised where appropriate.

WRI5E AL BT L A FE BT AR 1% 50 - 2518
ARIEEEER ER R R EYEES
EEHRBRERRA o EEEABRIETIRIF
FEMEEFSZBEEELLIR HEM
B[ 5 ERHEH B9 TIRR R G a1 tEH 18
it o 1At BES/FERL - WHEEEERT
EITIEET °
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31 March 2023 —E-=#=H=+—H

27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 27. MIERITER

Effective Effective
annual annual
interest rate interest rate
(%) Maturity HK$°000 (%) Maturity HK$'000
BRERE BRFEFIZE
BETFT (%) ZI#A BT
Current bkl
Bank loans-  $R{TEEH - 4.88-4.93 Within 1 year 431,688 0.64 -3.00 Within 1 year 1,308,278
unsecured IR or on demand or on demand
R-FRHFRER R—FRFRER
431,688 1,308,278

2023 2022
—E-= —E_C
HK$°000 HK$000
B FT BT T
Analysed into: oA
Bank loans repayable: FEEEIRITER
Within one year or on demand R—FRHIRER 431,688 1,308,278
As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, all bank borrowings are in Hong R-B_=FR-ZFB__F=A=+—H" M
Kong dollars, RMB or United States dollars. BRITERIRBE - ARBERET -
As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, the Group’s banking facilities R-BZ=FR-ZB-__F=ZA=+—H &
were supported by corporate guarantees from the Company and SENRTEENHAARRERDHEB AR
certain of its subsidiaries. EH R -
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28. DEFERRED TAX

Deferred tax liabilities

At beginning of year
Deferred tax charged/
(credited) to the

statement of profit or loss
during the year (note 9)

Exchange realignment

At end of year

Deferred tax assets

At beginning of year

Deferred tax credited/
(charged) to the
statement of profit or loss
during the year (note 9)

Exchange realignment

Atend of year

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

31 March 2023 —E-=#=H=+—H

28. EAEFHIR
EEBEEE
Withholding tax Depreciation
on the distributable allowance in
profits of the Group's excess of related
PRC subsidiaries depreciation Others
REENTENEAT HuHRTEERN
AHARERINENSE RERHE Hfty
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
“F-=F C-E--F CZE--f CZZE-C-F CZE-SE -ZE-CfF ZE--E C“ECCE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BlTr  BETr  BMTr BETr BEFn BEFr BEFn BT
READ 84,297 90,658 8,468 9333 7211 7,214 100,042 107,205
FRREERY
B/ (L)t
BREBA(M29)
(20,144) (6,361) 14,630 (1,273) 52 63 (5.462) (7,57)
EHAZ - - (468) 408 1,703 - 1,235 408
RER 64,153 84,297 22,630 8,468 9,032 7277 95,815 100,042
Losses available
Unrealised losses for offsetting
on derivative against future Right-of-use assets
Inventory losses financial instruments taxable profits and lease liabilities Total
fiEeBIA ARMEEERA% EREEER
EfE% AEREE ERARANESR HERE ait
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
ZEC-E CECCE OCECCE O CECCE O CEC-E O CECCF CEBC-E CECCE O CEC-E O CECC
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000
BTn  BETn  BETn BEFn BETn BRTn BRTn BRI BT BETa
REY %38 - 670 301 35,952 27,399 12329 11,561 73293 39,261
FRRERRT
L/ ()
ERBEANDY)
(16,0690 2434 831 n (4,369) 179 236 298 (19371) 3250
BB (2.263) - (428) 298 (2.387) 759 (890) 410 (5.968) 1521
RER 6,010 2430 1073 670 29,196 35,952 11,675 12329 47,954 73293
BAERERRAT —T-=FR%
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31 March 2023 —E=-=#=H=+—H

28.

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$510,972,000
(2022: HK$582,906,000) that are available indefinitely for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in
which the losses arose. The Group also has tax losses arising in
Mainland China of HK$1,377,309,000 (2022: HK$1,140,049,000)
and in Taiwan of HK$108,979,000 (2022: HK$94,784,000) that
are available for offsetting against future taxable profits of
the companies in which losses arose for a maximum period
of five years and ten years, respectively. In the prior year, the
Group had tax losses arising in Indonesia of HK$355,000 that
were available for offsetting against future taxable profits of
the companies in which losses arose for a maximum period
of five years. Deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses of
HK$495,517,000 (2022: HK$567,336,000), HK$1,350,663,000 (2022:
HK$904,568,000), HK$108,979,000 (2022: HK$94,784,000) and Nil
(2022: HK$355,000) arising in Hong Kong, the PRC, Taiwan and
Indonesia, respectively, have not been recognised as they have
arisen in subsidiaries for which no assessable profits are expected
to be generated in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the
deductible temporary difference totalling HK$238,832,000 (2022:
HK$323,611,000) as it is not considered probable that taxable
profits will be available against which the above items can be
utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in
Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008
and applies to earnings generated after 31 December 2007. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rates are 5% and 10%.
The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in
respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008. At 31 March
2023, the Group did not have unprovided withholding tax (2022:
Nil).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment
of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023

28.

ERERIE (7)
AEEBREBELECHREBRABY
510,972,000t (= Z = = & : #1582,906,000
) ZEELEBEEBEN QAR UEREHE
BZEERFERERRZERBER - K&
BRFAFEAERALEEEZHERIES B
5 78%1,377,309,000t (ZE=-—F : B
1,140,049,0007T ) 2 ;8#5 108,979,000 7T (=&
T B94,784,0007T) - BREELRE
BENARAFERZESEREREEZEBE
EESBEFRTERAMNERBET o AL
FE > AEBROEELEZHEEEBABYE
355,000t  ZAEERIEEEN AR TER
ZEBRAEREEZBEEELFANERS
R o HRBHZEMB AR RERTE
EEERBEA > NEB - PEXE - 5K
EeEE 2 RIEEED 5 A% %495,517,000
T(ZFTZZF : % ¥567,336,0007T) °
7 % 1,350,663,000 T (Z T - —F : B
904,568,000 ) ~ 7% #5 108,979,000 (=&
T 194,784,000 RE(ZE ==
% : JBME355,000T ) AYIEFERL 1B & I SETT
TR o

AR A 8% 238,832,000 T (=B :
323,611,000/ 70) (AT HIH BT L ZRE R TER
EERIBEE  EARKATKIRESAE
A LiliE B WRERRUER

RIBEPEICEMERE  PEKENIINERSE
BREAMNSTREESRNREIRE10%TEN
BE ZERB-_ZTTNF—A—AREN
YEAR-—ZZELtF+-_A=T—HEBEEN
R o A REERRF—EABRBINFE -
EHASERREAPEAEERBERE - BAR
REBHHEA5%R10% B AEBFZ
ERFERERIVHBEBLATDBE ST NE—
B—HERNEFIFfDIRNWREERINHENS
F-RZBZ=F=ZA=+—8 » ~NEELE
RBERIBE(ZE-—F 1 &) -

ARFEAHERRKE RS  WEEHEME
BMFTER 2 RR -



29.

30.

31.

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

SHARE CAPITAL

Shares

Authorised: ERE
2,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.05 each
in nominal value 7B#£0.057C
Issued and fully paid: ERITRHE :

1,381,696,104 shares of HK$0.05 each

in nominal value 7B#£0.057C

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements therein for
the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

The Group’s contributed surplus represents the difference
between the nominal value of the issued share capital of the
Company and the then nominal value of the issued share capital
of the subsidiaries acquired at the date of acquisition, as a result
of the reorganisation which occurred before the listing of the
Company'’s shares in 1992.

The Group applied the transitional provisions of HKFRS 3
that permitted goodwill in respect of business combinations
which occurred prior to 2001, to remain eliminated against
consolidated retained profits. The amount of goodwill remaining
in consolidated retained profits, arising from the acquisition of a
then associate, was HK$110,648,000 as at 31 March 2023 and 31
March 2022.

The Group's capital reserve represents the difference between the
consideration for the acquisition of a non-controlling interest and
the respective carrying value.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS

(@) Major non-cash transactions
During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of HK$107,307,000
(2022: HK$273,934,000) and HK$107,307,000 (2022:
HK$273,934,000), respectively, in respect of lease
arrangements for premises.

29.

30.

31.

31 March2023 —E=-=#=H=+—H

ELEN
LR

2023
—EBo=F

2022
—E-=

HK$000
BHEFT

HK$000
BT

2,000,000,000% & IR EI1E

100,000 100,000

1,381,696, 1042 R E{E

69,085 69,085

(=N
REBMRAAFERBEFEOERSERES
ZEBLIIRGERBBBER -

HEARBRDE-—NANZF LHATMNER -

FEECBEHBRBAR AR ECRITREAZHE
ERPFUCEB I B 1 Bl A WS B B 2 B BT IRAE
Bz -

AEEC S| AEBYHRELEREIFBIEN

R AFR-ZE-FRBENEBSH
EENBHEEHERGSREERME - BW

B-RHERBELLAAEENEE  NESRN
FERBEANF  HEER-_ZT-_=%=A
=E+—BR-ZE--F=ZA=+-—HBABY
110,648,0007T °

AREE R IR IR BB SF IR RS (B
HERHEE 2 BREH

MERMEE

(a) FEFBRLXS
TER > REERYENHEEZRYEM
S OREAREERHESBZER
£ R 5 Bl &% ¥107,307,000 T (=
T4 jB1273,934,000 7T ) KB
#107,307,000 c (ZE - —F : B
273,934,0007T) °

BAkELEFRAT —ZT-=F#
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31 March 2023 —E-=#=H=+—H

31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 31. R&HREREBERM T (@)
CASH FLOWS (continued)
(a) Major non-cash transactions (continued) (@) EEHREXH(E)
During the year, the Group had non-cash modifications to KER AEERYENEEZREM
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of HK$47,347,000 = ORERAEEEREEEGZHK
(2022: HK$11,869,000) and HK$86,755,000 (2022: 8 & R D Bl A8 47,347,000 T (=
HK$11,806,000), respectively, in respect of lease T F : B¥11,869,000T) KB

arrangements for premises. #586,755000 L (ZZE - "F : B

11,806,0007T) °

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities (b)

METHEL2EEED

Interest-
bearing bank
borrowings

Lease
liabilities
HEAE
HK$'000
BT T

M 2RITER
HK$°000
BT T

At 1 April 2021 RZE-_—-FMNA—H 540,987 855,330
Changes from financing cash flows METDEE S (237,591) -
Interest paid classified as financing ENFEDEARE

cash flows BER (27,088) -
Repayment of interest-bearing bank EEMERITER

borrowings - (3,377,438)
New leases HiEE 273,934 -
Revision of lease terms arising from AR ESEWA SRR EEMm

changes in the non-cancellable period EENEERS

of leases (11,806) -
Interest expense FEZH 27,088 -
COVID-19-related rent concessions HAARMRZ 20195 B BIRFS

from lessors HERENEESRS (4,493) -
New interest-bearing bank borrowings i BRITE = - 3,830,193
Exchange realignment (& 5 R 16,205 193
At 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022 R-ZB-ZZF=A=+—HEK

—E-"FMA—H 577,236 1,308,278

Changes from financing cash flows REEHEE2EE (150,347) -
Interest paid classified as financing 2NFES EARNE

cash flows HER (20,898) -
Repayment of interest-bearing bank BB ERITER

borrowings - (3,313,733)
New leases FHE 107,307 -
Revision of lease terms arising from AR Al iR S HRPR 2 B i

changes in the non-cancellable period ELEWEEER]

of leases (86,755) -
Interest expense FEZH 20,898 -
COVID-19-related rent concessions HE AR 220195 R BN AS

from lessors HENESRER (1,021) -
New interest-bearing bank borrowings ¥ BR4TE = - 2,437,032
Exchange realignment FE 5,55 (30,397) 1
At 31 March 2023 R-ZZEZ=F=ZF=+—H 416,023 431,688
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(9]

Total cash outflow for leases
The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement
of cash flows is as follows:

BT
BMEZEBA

Within operating activities
Within financing activities

32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a)

(b)

At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not
provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

Bank guarantees given in lieu of
property rental deposits

RITHER

In prior years, the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department
(the “IRD") initiated a review on the tax affairs of certain
subsidiaries of the Group for the years of assessment from
2005/2006 to 2018/2019 (the “Tax Affairs”). The Group
purchased tax reserve certificates totaling HK$619,497,000
for the protective tax assessments issued by the IRD for the
years of assessment from 2005/2006 to 2016/2017.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group submitted
a settlement proposal (the “Settlement Proposal”) to the
IRD for compromising the Tax Affairs. With the Settlement
Proposal accepted by the IRD, the Tax Affairs were fully
and finally resolved. Based on the Settlement Proposal,
the total net additional tax and interest payable in regard
of the Tax Affairs was HK$351,021,000. The Group had
already made sufficient tax provisions for the Tax Affairs
in the consolidated financial statement of previous years.
After utilization of HK$285,201,000 tax reserve certificates
and HK$65,820,000 provisional tax kept by the IRD for the
additional tax charged, the IRD refunded the overpaid
provisional tax and the unutilized amount of tax reserve
certificates to the Group, totaling HK$368,860,000.

REERMEZEEZ

31 March2023 —E=-=#=H=+—H

31. HREBERERMT @)

(0

HERSRHARE
BEARERERTHEHERSRLALE
mTF :

2023 2022
—EB-=fF g
HK$°000 HK$’000
EETFT wFr
246,649 341,011
171,245 264,679
417,894 605,690
32. EEE
(a) RIBEMR  UTHBEEERRIHER
FRPEHE

(b)

2023
—EB-=F

2022
—g——

= —

HK$°000
JBMF T

HK$000
BRTT

5,966 5,130

RUATEE - BEBKRE(HBE ) @A
EEFHMBLARRER=-=ZTH
—gg/\;zé:g—}\/iﬁ—jﬁ%ﬂi
ENHESR(ZHRBEEDETE
%o AEECHBERE 2SR =
TEREZE—R/ZE—LRBEE
HREMER BT EBERRSEEE
619,497,0007T °

RBE-E-_S=ZA=+-HLEE
A AEBERRBRRT —EMBLER
(TZHBERD  UZHZRESE -
ENRRINMAR  ZHBBEER
W REHR - REZMNBHER - ZH
BEENETTRMNENTIEFERFE
#78#351,021,0007T ° AEEE R
AMFEZHEEUBRRTIAZBBS
HFHRHANTIRER - EEABYE
285,201,000 T EMR S FREER
7B #565,820,0007T BY & B TR X AF 3R
SIMHIEE  HRCRESHNE B
RAREANRBESSHETAER S5
751£368,860,0007T °
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31 March 2023 —E-=#=H=+—H

33. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 33. ERMEE
The commitments for capital expenditure of the Group at the end REBENRERREUTEAE L HFAE :

of the reporting period were as follows:

2023 2022

HK$°000 HK$000
BEFT BT

In respect of property, plant and equipment  F¥I% « BEKRRE @ 25140

- contracted but not provided for BRZRE 25,251 55,798
34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 3. BEAEXXRS
(@)  During the year, the Group had the following related party (@) RER > FAEEZETUTEEALR
transactions: %

2023 2022
HK$°000 HK$°000
BYFT BT
Rental expenses paid to related MEEQ R
companies HEEA (i) 13,977 19,967

Note: Mt -

(i) Rental expenses were paid to related companies, of which (i) M B HR L TEERAERIHG
certain directors of the Company are also the directors BERPEALEZE L A EERE
and beneficial shareholders, for the provision of directors’ & BEFIH RIS 0 ZERE]
quarters, a retail outlet and a training centre for certain REEREmRRIBAL A 2%
subsidiaries in Hong Kong and Mainland China. The directors EE - EFRREACHLIREH
considered that the monthly rentals were charged based on BELE#FTHZ TS BISET o 14
the prevailing market rates at the dates of entering into the CEEFZHEEAE GITREEZH
tenancy agreements. The rental expenses of the directors’ 2 WEFHIRUBIRENZT

quarters were included in the directors’ remuneration as
detailed in note 7 to the financial statements.
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

On 26 January 2022, the Group entered into a lease
agreement with Mountain Rich Limited (“MRL"), a company
wholly owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an executive director
and controlling shareholder of the Company, to lease
Tianjin Bin Jiang Fu Shi Commercial Building at Bin Jiang
Road, He Ping Qu, Tianjin, China from MRL as a retail outlet
for the retail and distribution of apparel and accessories
business of the Group for a term of two years commencing
from 1 April 2022 at the monthly rent of RMB930,930 for
the period from 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2024. During
the year, the Group paid to MRL operating lease rentals
in respect of the above property of HK$8,346,000 (2022:
HK$14,360,000).

On 26 January 2022, the Group entered into a lease
agreement with Latex (Hong Kong) Limited (“Latex”), a
company wholly owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an executive
director and controlling shareholder of the Company,
to lease a property located at 22 Perkins Road, Jardine’s
Lookout, Hong Kong from Latex as a director’s quarters of
the Group for a term of two years commencing from 1 April
2022 at the monthly rent of HK$400,000. During the year,
the Group paid to Latex operating lease rentals in respect of
the above property of HK$4,800,000 (2022: HK$4,800,000).

On 26 January 2022, the Group entered into a lease
agreement with Winson Link Enterprises Limited (“WLEL"),
a company wholly owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an
executive director and controlling shareholder of the
Company, to lease Room 4207B, 42nd Floor, Metroplaza
Tower Il, 223 Hing Fong Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories,
Hong Kong and a car parking space from WLEL as a training
centre of the Group for a term of two years commencing
from 1 April 2022 at the monthly rent of HK$69,280. During
the year, the Group paid to WLEL operating lease rentals
in respect of the above property and a car parking space of
HK$831,000 (2022: HK$807,000).

31 March 2023 —E-=#=H=+—H

34, BEALRS #®)

(b)

RZZEZ_F—-—A=+XB £KH
BIEEBRERARA(TLED (BEL
ANBITESRERRRBEWELES
EEE)ETHERE @l EEHEN
R EXRET A F BB TIE28255 M —
HEAERE  FATEEERREY 2
TERDHEEBNTEMT A=
—“FMNA-RRASNWE  SAHES
B ARY930,9307T - RAHA - A&
ER LA ERLEXFLEHER
£78%58,346,000T (= F : B
14,360,0007T) °

AZZE_—F—-HA=+xH  xEH
BYEEB)ERATTIE] (BAE
RAPTESRERBRENELES
EEE)ETHERE B EEMEN
REBZEALAERBE2ENYE
EAAEB-—EEBEE2RH AT
——FNE-HARANWME A
£ 5B %400,0007T - RABR - A&
EH A ER T EXINEEAER
£ 78%4,800,000T (=T _F : B
4,800,0007T) °

RZB-Z-F—A=+7xH rEEH
KEELERRAT([KEHE]) (BE
RAPTESRERBRENELES
EHER)EITHERS - mkiEEAME
BB ARBESK2IEHESES
5" E42124207BE - EAREE LS
Rk — BN A BB R EREER
10- 165 B EX BB ABEWNEEN o
H-ZE-__FMA—Hie HEME
S AESHB69,2807T - AAHRA -
AEER LAY EREBEVEKEEE
HEEHERSBES31,000T (=ZF
— 4 @ B%807,0007T) ©
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31 March 2023 —E-=#=H=+—H

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 3. BAEAXTRZ @)

(b)

(0

(continued)

Rental expenses paid to related companies also constituted
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. Save as disclosed under the
section of “Details of non-exempt continuing connected
transactions” of the Report of the Directors, the rental
expenses paid to related companies which constitute
continuing connected transactions are exempt from the
reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements set out in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

Short term employee benefits EHEEET

Post-employment benefits BBz ER

Total compensation paid to FEEEABR
key management personnel E2a Bk

The key management personnel of the Group refers to the
executive and independent non-executive directors of the
Company.

Further details of directors’ remuneration are included in
note 7 to the financial statements.
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(@]

(4)

BEEARXNNEESERTER LS
BABVATHEERS - BRRERE
EERENTERRNBSERERS
FHEI—E BT REEARXNTH
HEERATHBRER EHRAE14ATSR
EEHRRRER  DERERRAED

TEETEERASHH

2023 2022

—EBo=F T
HK$’000 HK$’000
B TFT BHF T
35,417 47,457
18 18
35,435 47,475

AEBNETEEEASRNAQRNHT
EERBUFHITES -

EEMEFBERNYEHRRMEET -
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31 March 2023 —E-=#=H=+—H

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 35. RERESINEMIA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RESHR FESHIAREENT :

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Financial assets THMEE
2023 —E-=F
Financial Financial
assets at fair assets at
value through amortised
profit or loss cost Total
BARBERA  REBEHRE
ERNERMEE HemEE &%
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT BT
Trade receivables FEWERTR - 562,372 562,372
Bills receivable EWEE - 239,822 239,822
Financial assets included in prepayments, BEREARE -T2k
deposits and other receivables HitEWRRAZERmEE - 88,119 88,119
Debt instruments at amortised cost REBERANERIR - 40,217 40,217
Financial assets at fair value through BAREFABRN
profit or loss SREE 41,350 - 41,350
Long-term rental deposits RS - 66,540 66,540
Derivative financial assets fTHEeREE 7,513 - 7,513
Cash and cash equivalents HERBELZEEY - 1,927,436 1,927,436
Total A% 48,863 2,924,506 2,973,369
2022 —E-CF
Financial Financial
assets at fair assets at
value through amortised
profit or loss cost Total
BAREGA REEEEAR
BRNEHEE HemEE &%
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BEFT BEFT BT
Trade receivables FEUBR R - 906,551 906,551
Bills receivable EWER - 219,877 219,877
Financial assets included in prepayments, BEREARE -T2k
deposits and other receivables HinEW IR Az eREE - 126,134 126,134
Debt instruments at amortised cost RO BERANERTIA - 109,111 109,111
Financial assets at fair value through BAREFABRN
profit or loss SREE 53,132 - 53,132
Long-term rental deposits ek S - 69,518 69,518
Derivative financial assets TTHEEREE 8,251 - 8,251
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBSZEEY - 2,363,988 2,363,988
Total A5t 61,383 3,795,179 3,856,562

BAESEERAT —T-=5% @
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued) 35. REFESHEMIAm

Financial liabilities SRAEE
2023 —E-=F
Financial Financial
liabilities at fair liabilities at
value through amortised
profit or loss cost
RE#H
BRARETA R
Baemas SREE &5t
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T
Trade payables FETERRR - 435,979 435,979
Financial liabilities included BIEREMENERR
in other payables and Eratrzemas
accrued liabilities - 338,859 338,859
Derivative financial liabilities fTEeREE 5,829 - 5,829
Interest-bearing bank borrowings M EERITER - 431,688 431,688
Lease liabilities HEaE - 416,023 416,023
Total ast 5,829 1,622,549 1,628,378
2022 —E-CF
Financial Financial
liabilities at fair liabilities at
value through amortised
profit or loss cost
RE#E
RAREFA FRAEY
BENEREE EA=N ast
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT T BHFT
Trade payables FEATERRX - 908,449 908,449
Bills payable FEREE - 10,108 10,108
Financial liabilities included BIEREMENERITR
in other payables and Estatrzemas
accrued liabilities - 395,211 395,211
Derivative financial liabilities TEeRaE 5,395 - 5,395
Interest-bearing bank borrowings Mt ESRITER - 1,308,278 1,308,278
Lease liabilities HEaE - 577,236 577,236
Total &5t 5,395 3,199,282 3,204,677
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that

reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:

31 March 2023 —E-=#=H=+—H
SMIAZAAEBEER
AEESRMTACIRAMERAAE(REESR

HARBAREMEE 2SR T AR Ho
T :

Carrying amounts Fair values
IREE ARE
2023 2022 2023 2022
—E=-= —E—— —E-= —E=-=
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT T BEFr BT T
Financial assets SREE
Derivative financial instruments PTHEEMIA 8,251 7,513 8,251
Financial assets at fair value RARBEFTABEN
through profit or loss SREE 41,350 53,132 41,350 53,132
Long term debt instruments at REREEHRAN
amortised cost BXIA 14,860 30,102 15,000 30,528
63,723 91,485 63,863 91,911
Financial liabilities SRas
Derivative financial instruments TESmIE 5,395 5,829 5,395

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, trade receivables, bills receivable, short-term
debt instruments at amortised cost, financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables, trade payables, bills
payable, interest-bearing bank borrowings, and financial liabilities
included in other payables and accrued liabilities approximate to
their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of
these instruments.

The Group's finance department headed by the financial controller
is responsible for determining the policies and procedures for
the fair value measurement of financial instruments. The finance
department directly reports to the Board. At each reporting date,
the finance department analyses the movements in the values of
financial instruments and determines the major inputs applied
in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the
Board.

EEECHMRERBSEEY - BURIR
BWRE - SR CBERANEL TR &
FERENTIR - T ERAMEBRERRA 2/
BE  BARY - BARE - WRKRTERR
BENHEGENRIRETFEERAZEREE
MAAERAREERS  TEARLETA
HEIHFHRE -

REBRPBREREHBEHEERESH
TAAREFEZBERMNE - BEIHEERG
EEgEH - NE-RER - BBEHITEE
TAEESSY  WREGEREAZEIEHA
B GERESSESIE -

BAkELEFRAT —ZT-=F#
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36.

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
as the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in
a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a
forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions
were used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss and debt instruments at amortised cost are estimated based
on quoted prices.

The fair values of the long-term rental deposits have been
calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows using
rates currently available for instruments with similar terms,
credit risk and remaining maturities. Their carrying amounts
approximately to their fair values. The Group’s own non-
performance risk for interest-bearing bank borrowings as at 31
March 2023 was assessed to be insignificant.

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments with
various counterparties, principally financial institutions. Derivative
financial instruments, including forward currency contracts,
are measured using valuation techniques similar to forward
pricing, using present value calculations. The models incorporate
various market observable inputs including the credit quality of
counterparties, foreign exchange spot and forward rates and
interest rate curves. The carrying amounts of forward currency
contracts are the same as their fair values.
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FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 36. $RIEZAAREZEHE)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement TRIPREENESHIENOABITES
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments: &
Assets measured at fair value: RARBEFENEE :

Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2023
R-B-Z=F£=ZA=+—-HWARENERA
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
RIER X DN
THiZH ATEEY TR
WE LIPN: (¢4 BARE
(85—4) (8B=%) (B=#) k]
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT BETT BETF T
Derivative financial assets TEEREE - 7,513 - 7,513
Financial assets at fair value RAREFABRN
through profit or loss THEE - 41,350 - 41,350
- 48,863 - 48,863

Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2022
R=B-=F£=B=+—AWAREHBRA
Quoted
prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
RER EWN EN
i AN TEERERH
RE BWAZE WABE
(55—4R%) (=) € =) k]
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000
BT BT T BT T BT
Derivative financial assets TEEmERE - 8,251 - 8,251
Financial assets at fair value BRAREFABEN
through profit or loss THEE - 53,132 - 53,132
- 61,383 - 61,383

BAERWEMAT —B-=5% @
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36. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 36. €RMTEZAABEEHR®)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Liabilities measured at fair value: BARETENESE

Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2023
R-B-Z=F£ZA=+—-HWARENERA
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
RER =N EDN
5 AJEEN TREEN
WE WABE BWABE
(55—#%) (B=#&) €= Fot o]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BETFTT BETT BYETT
Derivative financial liabilities THEEmEs - 5,829 - 5,829

Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2022
R-E-—E=A=+—HWARETEHRHA

Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
RER EDN EDN
5 AJEE AN
HE W ABE BARE
(E—#) (B=#) (=% k]
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT T BT T BT
Derivative financial liabilities TESRERE - 5,395 - 5,395
As at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022, the Group had no R-BE-_=F=A=+—HR=-Z--%=A
financial instruments measured at fair value under Level 3. =+—H AEETEZRAABEITEE=RZ
SMITA-
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value FR - eREERESHAETEIMARES
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into BE-REE R oBNER  FELE=R
or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial liabilities HMAREH(ZE-F M) o
(2022: Nil).
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36. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 36. €¢®RTEZAAREBEEZHKE)

INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Assets for which fair values are disclosed:

Long term debt instruments at
amortised cost

Long term debt instruments at
amortised cost

REECHERAN
BEHTA

RERCBEM AR
BEHTE

SEREQAABENEE

Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2023
R-B-Z=F=ZA=+—-HWARENERA
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
RIER X DN
THiZH ATEEY TR
WE LIPN: (¢4 BABE
(85—4) (8B=%) (B=#) Fot o)
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000
BT T BT BETT BETF T

15,000 - - 15,000

Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2022
REBZ =B =+—-HNAREFERA
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
RER EDN EDN
HiEH AN TEERERH
HE BARE BARE
(E—#) (B=#%) (B=4) k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
BEFT  BEFT  BETT BT

30,528 - - 30,528

RAEKEARRLE —T-=F8
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37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments, other than
derivatives, comprise interest-bearing bank borrowings, cash and
bank deposits. The main purpose of these financial instruments is
to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables, bills
receivable, trade payables and bills payable, which arise directly
from its operations.

The Group also enters into various derivative financial
instruments, including principally forward currency contracts.
The purpose is to manage currency risks arising from the Group's
operations and its sources of finance.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The board reviews and agrees policies for managing each
of these risks and they are summarised below. The Group's
accounting policies in relation to derivative financial instruments
are set out in note 2.4 to the financial statements.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s bank borrowings with
floating interest rates.

The Group's policy is to manage its interest cost using an
appropriate mix of fixed and variable rate debts. To manage
this mix in a cost-effective manner, the Group may enter into
interest rate swap contracts to reduce its exposure to interest rate
fluctuations.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group's profit before tax and equity (through the
impact on floating rate borrowings).

2023 —EBC-=f
Hong Kong dollar e

Hong Kong dollar B

2022 g
Hong Kong dollar Bk

Hong Kong dollar Bk

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures
arise from sales or purchases by operating units in currencies other
than the units’ functional currencies. Approximately 66% (2022:
67%) of the Group's sales are denominated in currencies other
than the functional currencies of the operating units making the
sale, whilst nearly 35% (2022: 31%) of costs are denominated in
currencies other than the units’ functional currencies.

37.

MRER(F)

BREBREERERBE#)

TRER T EEEFEEMRROERT » &
£ 8 R BATRRI RS S TR R AR

SE(ELIEERNTE

Percentage
point of
interest rate
increase/
(decrease)

FEEH
&, ()
%

(1

JHVEIRE -

Increase/
(decrease)
in profit
before tax
and equity
BRBLAD
AR s
g, (Bd)
HK$°000
BT T

(8,477)
8,477

(14,661)
14,661

S ERR

FEEFEXRZERARE

ZRBRREEE
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37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the RMB
exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group's profit before tax and the Group's equity (due to changes
in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities).

2023 —_Eg==

If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB B EARERE
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB ki35 3, A REEFHE
2022 —BCCF

If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB B ARERE
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB i %5 5, A R#¥ FHE

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that only well-established
customers will be considered for open account terms and the
approval of credit terms is subject to stringent credit check
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, bills receivable, financial
assets included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
debt instruments at amortised cost, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, long term rental deposits and derivative
financial instruments, arises from default of the counterparties,
with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments, which is considered by the directors as not significant
as the counterparties of these other financial assets are mainly
well-recognised corporations.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to

credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 21
to the financial statements.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 37. BIEMESEEERBE %)
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued) EERR(E)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging BARERRFEIER

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum TREYBEBEAEBCZERRZEEEEZRE
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which AREERBR(FERIBAHEREN @ BRIEH
is mainly based on past due information unless other information HERATEBARFHABERRRE D2 ER
is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging TES) UR-ZE-_=FK-_ZE-_—_F=H4
classification as at 31 March 2023 and 2022. The amounts =t+—HZEHERBIN - IE%zeEAS
presented are gross carrying amounts for financial assets. RS EARMEE -

31 March 2023 —E-=H=ZA=+—H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1288
HH
EEEE AR FEHEREERSE

Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
E—HR SRR F=RER 0 B{ES =RE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EBEFT BEFrT BETT BTt BETT

Trade receivables* FEURBR TR * - - - 589,079 589,079
Bills receivable W ZEE 239,822 - - - 239,822
Financial assets included in BENTEMARKIE
prepayments, deposits and ek EMmE
other receivables BRRAZERHERE 88,119 - - - 88,119
Debt instruments at RO BN
amortised cost BEITHE 30,560 - 73,228 - 103,788
Long-term rental deposits REfEe®S 66,540 - - - 66,540
Cash and cash equivalents HEREESZEEY 1,927,436 - - - 1,927,436
2,352,477 - 73,228 589,079 3,014,784

BAESEERAT —T-=5% @
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 37. BI¥EMRTSEEERBE #)
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued) EERR(#E)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued) BRARRR FAEMER ()
31 March 2022 —RICEZA=1—H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 B
FE A
EEEE A AFHEREEER

Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F—KER FTRER F=ER O BEERX wE
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
BT BT BT BT  BEFrT

Trade receivables* FE U BR TR * - - - 935,897 935,897
Bills receivable W ZE 219,877 - - - 219,877
Financial assets included in BEREMTE -

prepayments, deposits and A& RHEELER

other receivables HAZERERE 126,134 - - - 126,134
Debt instruments at bi7qmE:  £:c)p%N:0

amortised cost ERTHE 99,313 - 73,886 - 173,199
Long-term rental deposits EffReES 69,518 - - - 69,518
Cash and cash equivalents HERESZEEY 2,363,988 - - - 2,363,988

2,878,830 - 73,886 935,897 3,888,613
* For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified * KEE G W SRR EEFE (LR BER
approach for impairment, information based on the provision matrix FRBAEIE 2 BRI BRI B A ML 21 o

is disclosed in note 21 to the financial statements.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity
of funding and flexibility through the use of bank overdrafts
and bank loans. As at 31 March 2023, 100% (2022: 100%) of the
Group's total borrowings would mature in less than one year.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual

31 March2023 —&E—-—=#=H=+—H
37. MRRBREEEERBER @)

FED R
AEEEBEZERANBRTEIRIBTERUEE
AESHEEMREZIMENSTEE N2
“=F=ZA=+—H  AEEHLERN100%
(ZZZZF 1 100%)BR—FREIH -

FEERBERRNEREE  REFERER
ZATHEBIERBENT

undiscounted payments, was as follows:

2023
—EB=F
3to
On Lessthan less than Over
demand 3 months 12 months 1 year Total
==
RER =@BAUR +t=@BR BB—F At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT EBEFr BETFT EBETT
Interest-bearing bank borrowings Kt BiR{TE - 435,152 - - 435,152
Trade payables FE(TERFX - 425,380 10,599 - 435,979
Financial liabilities included BIENE IR
in other payables and REFTERBERZ
accrued liabilities SRiBE 53,478 281,183 824 3,374 338,859
Derivative financial liabilities rTHEEmAas - 5,829 - - 5,829
Lease liabilities HEARE - 43,273 103,916 420,925 568,114
53,478 1,190,817 115,339 424,299 1,783,933

2022
—E-—
3 to
On Lessthan less than Over
demand 3 months 12 months 1 year Total
=F
RER Z@AMR +t=—@AR ®BB—F a5t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BEEFrT BT BT  BEFrT BETT
Interest-bearing bank borrowings Kt 24R4TE - 1,256,066 53,551 - 1,309,617
Trade payables FEATERTX - 860,984 47,465 - 908,449
Bills payable FEAT I - 10,108 - - 10,108
Financial liabilities included BIENE A ESIRR
in other payables and REFEBERZ
accrued liabilities SRIBE 69,131 322,225 3,855 - 395211
Derivative financial liabilities TTEEREaE - 5,395 - - 5,395
Lease liabilities HESE - 49,936 143,456 607,216 800,608
69,131 2,504,714 248,327 607,216 3,429,388

BAkELEFRAT —ZT-=F#
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37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group will be
able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return
to the ordinary equity holders through the optimisation of the
debt and equity balance.

The Group regards total equity as capital and manages its capital
structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in
economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the years ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022.

The Group monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is total
interest-bearing debts, less cash and cash equivalents, divided by
total equity. The Group's policy is to maintain the gearing ratio at
an appropriate level.

B BB
kR - RERBESEEY

Total interest-bearing debts
Less: Cash and cash equivalents

Total equity BRER

Gearing ratio (times)
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37.

BRRABEEBEEREE @)

BEREE
FEBEREEEZDERAEEERFENSK
EheD - RNBBRENEREESRES )
EEBERMEESIRADE -

FEBRARERERNLEREREBURR
BABERNEEELRZE - AEETLES
AEHRRKEHVRE - ORRBEGAH
THRURSAFREREE - RBE=Z
CT=EZA=+-BRZBEZZHE=ZA=1+-—
HLEFER EXRAEENER  BERRERFL

FEMEREABBLLEEZES  EXREE
LEREFNBRRERRESEWROBNEER
PRGBS ST E - REENBR EHEERER
BEEERREEKTF -

2023 2022
—EB-=F T
HK$’000 HK$’000
B TFT BHF T
431,688 1,308,278
(1,927,436) (2,363,988)
(1,495,748) (1,055,710)
5,015,563 5,435,519
-0.3 -0.2
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

NON-CURRENT ASSET
Investments in subsidiaries

CURRENT ASSETS
Prepayments and deposits
Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITY
Other payables and accrued liabilities

NET CURRENT ASSETS
Net assets

EQUITY

Issued capital

Reserves (note)
Proposed final dividend

Total equity

FRBEE
RHBARZRE

RBEE
ANRERE £
RERBREZEY
BRBEE

RBAE
HitE SRR B EE

BERE
R
BEATIRA
TG
BRRER S

38.

BRI BRI T

RABRBEBR 2P BRRRERNT ¢

2023 2022
—E_-= —E_—

HK$000 HK$’000

BT BHEFT

2,323,954 1,950,136

207 207

296 362

503 569

249 110

254 459

2,324,208 1,950,595

69,085 69,085

2,116,953 1,743,340

138,170 138,170

2,324,208 1,950,595

BAkELEFRAT —ZT-=F#
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 38. A®MEMRRER®E)
COMPANY (continued)
Note: BiaE -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: KR ERFELT -
Share Capital
premium redemption Contributed Retained
account reserve surplus profits Total
;i€ R
B AR B El s BB REBER B
Note HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
et BT T BT T BT T BT T BT T
At 1 April 2021 RZZE-—FMA—H 703,365 1,695 48,708 1,237,822 1,991,590
Total comprehensive AEEREBALEE
income for the year - - - 456 456
2021/2022 interim ol St el S
dividend paid FEPHRE 10 - - - (110,536) (110,536)
2021/2022 proposed —g-— /8-
final dividend FEBERRHRE 10 - - - (138,170) (138,170)
At 31 March 2022 and R-E=-—
1 April 2022 =A=+—-BR
R-ZE-_FMA—AH 703,365 1,695 48,708 989,572 1,743,340
Total comprehensive AEEREBALRE
income for the year - - - 649,953 649,953
2022/2023 interim —E-— /—F-=
dividend paid FEFRHRE 10 - - - (138,170) (138,170)
2022/2023 proposed B/ FE-=
final dividend FEBRRHRE 10 - - - (138,170)  (138,170)
At 31 March 2023 R-ZB-=F
=B=+—8H 703,365 1,695 48,708 1,363,185 2,116,953

39.

The Company’s contributed surplus represents the difference
between the nominal value of the issued share capital of the
Company and the then combined net assets of the subsidiaries
acquired on the date of acquisition, as a result of the
reorganisation which occurred before the listing of the Company’s
shares in 1992. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), a distribution may be made out of the contributed
surplus under certain circumstances.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the board of directors on 16 June 2023.
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HEARERDE-NAZF EWAINESR
RRB2BHBB/ARAREBITRAZEHE
HFTRBEHRB AR RNRBE A HEEFHE
ZEE - REBRE-NN-—FQEEER
%) - IRETERTIREEHRER -

MBRER 2
FUBBRREON-B-=F AT BHES
ERER RIS -
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